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Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited

Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited (“Shenzhou
International”) and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) is
the largest vertically integrated knitwear manufacture in China.
The Group is principally engaged in the manufacturer of high-
end knitwear on an OEM basis. The Group was also the largest
exporter of knitwear and the largest PRC garment supplier to Japan
according to the 2006 to 2010 reports on the development of
China’s garment industry and the 2006 to 2010 annual reports on
China’s international trade in textiles and clothing.

The Group’s production base is located in Economic Technical
Development Zone of Ningbo and strategically set up garment
factories in Quzhou and Anging of China and Cambodia, the Group
also established sales offices or branch offices in Shanghai, Hong
Kong and Osaka. The Group currently had over 48,600 employees
and the area of the factories spans across 1,530,000 sg.m., which

can produce various knitwear of over 210 million pieces per year.

The Group focus on producing sport wear and causal wear with
the major international renowned clients including UNIQLO, ADIDAS
NIKE, and PUMA. The market is also extended from Japan to Asia
Pacific, Europe and the US market.

Shenzhou International was listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited in November 2005 with an aim to
be the most competitive knitwear manufacturer in the world. The
stock code of the Company is 2313. Shenzhou International was
included as the Constituent Stock of Hang Seng Composite Index,
Hang Seng Composite Industry Index (Consumer Goods) and Hang
Seng Composite SmallCap Index, effective from 8 March 2010.

During the year 2010 and 2011, Shenzhou International has been
named in the “Top 1000 Asian Companies” List of Yazhou Zhoukan
and during the year 2010, it has been recognised by Forbes Asia as
one of the “Best Under A Billion” Companies.
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Financial Highlights

BERFETENKEH

KEY FINANCIAL INFORMATION FOR THE LAST
FIVE YEARS

BE+-A=t-HALEE/W+t=-A=t-AH

For the year ended 31 December/As at 31 December

—E--F —ET-%F ZTENE —TENF —ETLE
2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
TEHRKEN Key Financial Information
(AE¥TR) (RMB’000)
HER Sales 9,043,442 6,719,172 6,093,485 4,822,596 3,655,613
B BT 15 5 311 Profit before income tax 2,059,420 1,624,597 1,473,553 757,420 401,736
FEFE Profit for the year 1,704,847 1,272,645 1,253,114 700,452 408,088
ARBIREREA Profit attributable to equity
FEAE I holders of the Company 1,703,845 1,271,654 1,252,030 699,380 406,882
ERBDEE Non-current assets 3,634,317 3,585,484 3,038,729 2,619,575 2,203,185
mBEE Current assets 4,915,242 3,839,971 2,388,500 1,701,676 1,700,735
TEaE Current liabilities 2,437,331 2,517,503 1,454,532 1,378,905 1,331,079
RBEEFE Net current assets 2,477,911 1,322,468 933,968 327,771 369,656
BEE Total assets 8,549,559 7,425,455 5,427,229 4,321,251 3,903,920
BEERRDERE Total assets less current liabilities 6,112,228 4,907,952 3,972,697 2,947,346 2,572,841
s Total equity 6,112,228 4,813,271 3,895,696 2,872,973 2,480,632
ReRkBALEEY Cash and cash equivalents 1,029,596 519,017 377,717 238,141 233,384
TEHHILE Key Financial ratios
EFIE(%) Gross profit margin (%) 28.8 29.9 31.7 23.8 22.3
FME X (%) Net profit margin (%) 18.9 18.9 20.6 145 1.1
BRBELE %) Net gearing ratio (%) 3.5 18.9 8.2 20.6 22.8
mE L X Current ratio 2.0 15 1.6 1.2 1.3
UG ZEESH (/) Accounts receivable
turnover period (days) 45 41 33 31 26
BEZBEEH(A) Inventory turnover period (days) 107 116 84 71 72
Bt - Notes:
1. BAARBERERZHEABESNIREBESRE 1. Net gearing ratio represents the ratio between total borrowings (less

SEEYRAGER LK
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cash and cash equivalents) and total equity.
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Financial Highlights

RERENWMHNEESEE SALES OF THE GROUP ANALYZED BY
PRODUCT CATEGORIES

BEt-A=t-ALEE
For the year ended 31 December
S —2-2% “ETAF —“EEINF “EFTtF
2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
ARETR % ARBTRT % ARETRT % ARETRT % ARETRT %
RMB’000 % RMB’000 b RMB’000 % RMB’000 % RMB’000 %

o

=

REMR By products
BERE Sports wear 4,949,196 54,7 3,373,294 50.2 2,578,060 42.3 2,042,315 42.3 1,165,198 31.9
UNGEES Casual wear 3,046,903 33.7 2,365,684 35.2 2,835,415 46.5 2,398,304 49.7 2,248,981 61.5
WK k& Lingerie 799,391 8.8 740,586 11.0 524,141 8.6 248,929 5.2 147,920 4.0
Hi T4 e Other knitting
products 247,952 2.8 239,608 3.6 155,869 2.6 133,048 2.8 93,514 2.6
HERBE Total sales 9,043,442  100.0 6,719,172 100.0 6,093,485  100.0 4,822,596  100.0 3,655,613  100.0
—E——F —E-EF —EEBhEF
2011 2010 2009
8.8% 2.8% 11.0% 3.6% 8.6% 2.6%

33.7% 50.2% 35.2%

—BEN\E —EBHF
2008 2007

5.2% 2.8% 4.0% 2.6%

NEEES

Casual wear

BERE
Sports wear

e
Lingerie

H it
Other knitting products

ONONONO

42.3% 49.7%
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BmEoMmomEER

SALES OF THE GROUP ANALYZED BY
REGIONAL DISTRIBUTION

BEt-A=t-HLEE

For the year ended 31 December

“E-—-F% —Z-2F —ZTNE —ZE)N\F e S
2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
ARETR % ARBETL % ARETRI % ARETRT % ARETRT %
RMB’000 % RMB’000 % RMB’000 % RMB’000 % RMB’000 %
®Bmi5 By regions
e International sales
AR Japan 3,224,257 357 2,772,854 413 3201526 525 2,437,304 505 2178725 596
UM Europe 1,949,355  21.6  1,392450  20.7 929,192 153 751,442 156 515,602  14.1
%8 us 516,420 5.7 439,591 6.5 339,692 5.6 261,079 54 298,830 8.2
HiER Other countries 1,428,093  15.8 760,347  11.3 531,090 8.7 455,497 9.5 268,112 7.3
NEE Domestic sales 1,925,317  21.2  1,353930 202 1,091,985  17.9 917,274 19.0 394,344 108
HEmA Total sales 9,043,442 100.0 6,719,172 1000 6,093,485 1000 4,822,596 1000 3,655,613 100.0
—E——F —E2-FF —BEAEF
2011 2010 2009
20.2% 41.3% 17.9%

ONONONONO)

B

Japan

M
Europe

xH
us

H B R
Other countries

B S

Domestic sales
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—EBLHF

2007

52.5%

14.1%

M BB S B T R A R

Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited

59.6%

5



NEEHR

Corporate Information

R

Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited

P&
RN E R BB AR A A

EEg

BOTES

FREKE (ZF)

B

Blmss

Wy ¥E L+

IEREE (R-T——FAA=+BREME)

FHUITES
BRAOBFEE

BYFHTES

PRARFE %5 £
(RZZ—FNA+AEZT)

BER R E
(R=ZZT——FMWA—HBEMT)

BEREE
(RZE—Z=—FWOA—HEZMT)

BEmiE
(RZZE——FNA+BET)

REALE

DEME
PR UK

BREN X
W)L+
PR L

6 RMNBERERZERBRAR

Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited

REGISTERED NAME

Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited

CHINESE NAME
FRMNERR EEIZER AR A A

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. Ma Jianrong (Chairman)

Mr. Huang Guanlin

Mr. Ma Renhe

Ms. Zheng Miaohui

Mr. Wang Cunbo (appointed on 30 May 2011)

Non-executive Director
Mr. Chen Zhongjing

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Chen Genxiang
(appointed on 16 August 2011)
Mr. Dai Xiangbo
(resigned on 1 April 2012)
Mr. Jiang Xianpin
(appointed on 1 April 2012)
Mr. Su Shounan
(resigned on 16 August 2011)
Mr. Zong Pingsheng

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. Chan Tak Hing Kenji

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES

Ms. Zheng Miaohui
Mr. Chan Tak Hing Kenji
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Corporate Information
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Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681
Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands
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BERES
27182708 %
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KEY BOARD COMMITTEES
Audit Committee
Mr. Jiang Xianpin (Chairman)
(appointed on 1 April 2012)
Mr. Dai Xiangbo
(resigned on 1 April 2012)
Mr. Chen Genxiang (appointed on 16 August 2011)
Mr. Su Shounan (resigned on 16 August 2011)
Mr. Zong Pingsheng

Remuneration Committee

Mr. Chan Genxiang (Chairman) (appointed as a member
on 16 August 2011, and appointed as
the Chairman on 1 April 2012)

Mr. Ma Renhe
(re-designated to a member on 1 April 2012)

Mr. Jiang Xianpin (appointed on 1 April 2012)

Mr. Dai Xiangbo (resigned on 1 April 2012)

Mr. Su Shounan (resigned on 16 August 2011)

Nomination Committee
Mr. Ma Jianrong (Chairman)

(appointed on 1 April 2012)
Mr. Huang Guanlin

(resigned on 1 April 2012)
Mr. Jiang Xianpin (appointed on 1 April 2012)
Mr. Dai Xiangbo (resigned on 1 April 2012)
Mr. Zong Pingsheng

REGISTERED OFFICE
Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681
Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman lIslands

PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG
Unit 2708, 27th Floor

Billion Plaza

No. 8 Cheung Yue Street

Kowloon, Hong Kong

RMBEREBRIZERARAR

Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
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Corporate Information

ot hm AUDITORS

LK EETEM BT A Ernst & Young

HEEF AT Certified Public Accountants

EEEE LEGAL ADVISER

KRB RSB Troutman Sanders Solicitors and International Lawyers

BEAERMSEBET Lennon & Lawyers

BRaBFEERLEAR PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

HSBC Trustee (Cayman) Limited HSBC Trustee (Cayman) Limited

P.O. Box 484, HSBC House P.O. Box 484, HSBC House

68 West Bay Road 68 West Bay Road

Grand Cayman, Cayman Islands, KYI-1106 Grand Cayman, Cayman Islands, KYI-1106

ROBFECZEEEIE HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR
AND TRANSFER OFFICE

BEEPREBSHELERAF Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited

BREF Rooms 1712-1716, 17th Floor

2R KNBR1835% Hopewell Centre

AR 183 Queen’s Road East

1711712-1716%F Wanchai, Hong Kong

8 ERJ B S R R A PR )
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Corporate Information

FEEREIT PRINCIPAL BANKERS

PERITRID BR A A Bank of China Limited

REIERTT (BB ) BRAF Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited

RIBIRITHRD B R A A Bank of Communications Company Limited

R IRITIR D B R A A Bank of Ningbo Company Limited
FREEZIRITRMODER AT China Construction Bank Corporation
FERITIRHDBRAA China Citic Bank Corporation Limited

FE S RIRITIRGD BR A A China Everbright Bank Corporation Limited
PEFRERITARADA CITIC Ka Wah Bank Limited

BAERITERAF Hang Seng Bank Limited

FETHRITROBRAA Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited
hEIERT (M) BRAR Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited
FEBRBRROTROBMRAFT Shanghai Pudong Development Bank Company Limited
BITIRIT (BE)BR AR Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited
BEAELEBELRITERRAA The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
REEREBEBRER INVESTOR AND PRESS RELATIONS ADVISER
iPREZE AR iPR Ogilvy Limited

YNETF Bl COMPANY WEBSITE

www.shenzhouintl.com www.shenzhouintl.com

IR 17 4 5% STOCK CODE

2313 2313

HMBER EEERAERR A 9
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Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited

E# % Ma Jianrong | % & =% Chairman of the Board

To All Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | am pleased to announce the
annual results of Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) in 2011 for
shareholders’ review.

During the year, the Group continued to promote the lean production
management, thus contributing to a further enhancement of
production efficiency and an apparent decline in the resources
consumption. We made an initial move into the retail business of
self-owned brands. The building up of the management team was
basically completed. Stores have also been opened in Shanghai,
Ningbo and Suzhou for trial operation. More reasonable product
mix was in place. Continued endeavours were made to promote
the optimization of the layout of production bases. Staff welfare has
also been further strengthened. The achievements during the year
have enabled the Group to lay a firmer foundation for its sustainable
development. Although the industry’s operating environment was
not yet improved, the Group attained satisfactory results in 2011, as
noted from a significant growth in revenue and profitability, and an
increasingly solid financial position. At this point, | would like to thank
the management at all levels and all employees for their efforts. It
is our vision to create a brighter future for the Group with stronger
confidence and greater endeavours from all employees. And, we
hope that investors can cast vote of confidence in the achievements
made by the Group and the support of the development strategies of
the Group.

Annual Report 2011 £ ¥
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During the year ended 31 December 2011, the Group was in a
sound financial position. Total sales throughout the year amounted
to approximately RMB9,043,442,000, up by 34.6% when compared
to 2010. In comparison to profit attributable to the equity holders
of the Company of RMB1,271,654,000 for the year ended 31
December 2010, profit attributable to the equity holders of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2011 rose by 34.0% to
RMB1,703,845,000. Earnings per share reached RMB1.37.

In light of promising business performance and strong financial
position of the Group, the Board of Directors of the Company (the
“Board” or the “Directors”) recommends the distribution of a final
dividend of HK$0.50 (equivalent to about RMBO0.41) per share.

Export value of China’s textiles and garments in 2011 recorded a
continued growth. According to Chinese Customs statistics, the
total export value of China’s textile and garment industry (including
textile yarn, fabrics and finished products as well as apparel and
apparel accessories, the same below) in 2011 was US$247.89
billion, representing an increase of 20.0% over the previous year.
This increase was down by 3.6 percentage points when compared
to 2010. Out of the total export value, the export value of textile
products amounted to US$94.67 billion, representing a year-on-
year increase of 22.9%. The garment export value rose by 18.3%
to US$153.22 billion on a year-on-year basis. In the aftermath
of the financial crisis, the export value maintained a double-digit
growth for two consecutive years. However, the growth was mainly
driven by the adjustment in sales prices in line with the rise in raw
material prices and the surge in labour costs. There was no obvious
growth in the total export volume. On front of the domestic market,
the consumer demand for apparel products continued to grow.
According to the information published by the National Bureau of
Statistics, in terms of the retail sales of goods among the “over-
the-threshold” enterprises, sales of garments during the year grew
by 25.1% over the previous year. The growth was maintained at a
rate of more than 20% for five consecutive years. It is noticed that
there is increasing participation in the domestic market competition
from apparel retail brands and accelerated pace of expansion
into the PRC market by foreign brands over the recent years. The
competition in the apparel retail industry has become intensified.
With the continued growth in market demand and the adjustment in
the structure of the consumption of apparel products, apparel retail
enterprises with competitive edges in quality and price are set to
usher in larger space for development in the domestic market.

ERM B I e AR R R R A R 13
Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
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Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited

During the year, due to the accelerated appreciation of RMB against
U.S. dollars, the continued rise in labour costs, the volatility in
cotton prices, and the relatively tightening of the monetary policy,
the profitability of the industry was generally affected. In addition,
given higher requirements on environmental protection from the
government, some small and medium-sized enterprises (SMEs)
with outdated equipment, backward technology and high energy
consumption began to exit the industry. Under the impact of the
adverse operating environment, the integration of the domestic
textile and garment industry has been speeded up. | believe
that leading enterprises in terms of product quality, production
management and environmental protection will continue to benefit
from the industry consolidation.

In recent years, with the continued rise in labour costs in the country,
enterprises with main competitive edge in costs will face challenges
from counterparties in other low-cost countries. Due to the special
tariff policies among the member countries of the U.S.-led Trans-
Pacific Partnership Agreement (TPP), the competitiveness of the
textile and garment industry in China will inevitably be exposed to
certain impact in the long term. However, from a general perspective,
China’s textile and garment industry in the international community
will continue to be armed with relatively strong competitive
advantages in good infrastructure, comprehensive industry
supporting facilities and high concentration of talented management
and technical personnel. All these advantages helped reduce the
costs of production of textile and garment products in China to
a large extent. In addition, leveraging on the stability of product
quality and enterprises’ capability of promptly responding to market
demand, the international competitiveness of China’s textile and
garment industry has been enhanced.

In 2012, being dampened by the debt crisis in Europe and the
weakened economic recovery in the U.S., the demand for textile
and garment products in the international market is expected to
be weakened. In line with a fall in China’s export trade surplus or
even deficit, the pressure of the appreciation of Renminbi against
U.S. dollars has been greatly eased. Particularly, the exchange
rate of Renminbi against U.S. dollars has been close to equilibrium
following the sharp appreciation of Renminbi over a couple of years.
At present, in view that the global cotton stocks hit historic high, and
the growth in market demand was weakened, the extent of volatility
of cotton prices is expected to be narrowed.

Annual Report 2011 4 #§
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The Board collaborated closely with various dedicated committees
during the year. Tasks were performed in line with the Group’s
overall strategies and goals. Fruitful results were reaped in various
tasks. All members of the Company are committed to maintaining
highest degree of corporate governance as well as achieving fair and
impartial decision-making processes. We will strive for maintaining a
high degree of transparency, and pay every effort on providing open
channels of communication for all shareholders and investors.

I would like to express gratitude to my fellow directors for their
hard work over the year, and to extend heartfelt thanks to the
management at all levels and all staff for their devotion during the
year. The Group’s success in realizing its established goals for the
year is attributed to the diligence and dedication of each and every
member of us. | would also like to thank our shareholders, suppliers
and customers for their enduring trust in the Company. With the
support from all of you, the Group is set to step into a brilliant future.

For the Group’s future development, | believe that opportunities will
outnumber challenges. Yet, continued efforts should be delivered
to enhance the comprehensive competitive strengths of us, and
thus enhance our leading position in the industry. The Group will
further integrate the resources advantages in different regions. The
Group will also expand or newly build production bases in overseas
regions by capturing the prevailing opportunities. Complementary
advantages will be formed with the production base in Ningbo. With
the strengthening of the integration of the retail management team,
the enhancement of the capacity of the management team and the
steady expansion of the retail business sales market, the Group will
lay a foundation for the further development of the retail business in
the future.

| firmly believe that corporate value depends on the value created
by the enterprise to the community. We will continue to uphold our
long-standing tradition to produce quality products for consumer,
offer superb services for our customers and create prominent returns
for our shareholders, thereby endeavouring to reinforce the Group’s
leading niche in the industry.

Chairman of the Board
Ma Jianrong
Hong Kong, 26 March 2012
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OPERATING ENVIRONMENT

China’s export value of textile and garment products in 2011
registered a sustained growth. Against this backdrop, the operating
environment has not yet showed signs of obvious improvement,
and businesses in the industry have faced heightened operation
pressure. In light of the sharp fluctuations in cotton prices during
the year and the continued rise in labour costs, the growth in
export value of textile and garment products was mainly driven by
the adjustment in prices along with the rise in production costs.
Led by the continued rise in production costs, some of the orders
are shifting to low-cost economies around China. Affected by the
debt crisis in Europe and the weak economic recovery in the U.S.,
coupled with the sluggish demand for textile and garment products
in the international market and the accelerated appreciation of
Renminbi against U.S. dollars during the year, higher pressure
was imposed on the profitability of export enterprises. Also, given
that a relatively tight monetary policy was in place, SMEs in the
manufacturing sector had encountered increased financing difficulty
and incurred greater capital cost. The textile and garment industry
will undergo continued and prolonged transformation and upgrading
as well as industry consolidation in the future.
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According to the statistics of China Customs, the total export value
of China’s textile and garment industry (including textile yarn, fabrics
and finished products as well as apparel and apparel accessories,
the same as below) in 2011 was US$247.89 billion, representing
an increase of 20.0% over the previous year. This increase was
down by 3.6% when compared to 2010. Out of the total export
value, the export value of textile products amounted to US$94.67
billion, representing a year-on-year increase of 22.9%. The garment
export value rose by 18.3% to US$153.22 billion on a year-on-
year basis. In 2011, the European Union, the U.S. and Japan
remained the biggest export markets for China in terms of textile
and garment, in aggregate comprising 47.7% of the total export
value of textile and garment during the year which represented a
decrease of approximately 1 percentage point compared to last
year. In particular, the export to the European Union amounted
to US$53.44 billion, representing an increase of 19.7%. Export
to the U.S. amounted to US$37.67 billion with a growth rate of
11.7%. Export to Japan increased by 20.8% to US$27.11 billion.
Furthermore, export to Hong Kong rose by 3.0% to US$15.39 billion.
Export to emerging markets including the Association of Southeast
Asian Nations (ASEAN), Latin America and Africa exhibited faster
increase at a growth rate of 34.2%, 38.1% and 25.1% respectively.
Value of export to these markets amounted to US$19.86 billion,
US$16.59 billion and US$13.63 billion respectively, accounting
for 8.0%, 6.7% and 5.5% of the total value of textile and garment
export respectively. Based on the analysis of the major markets,
the export to the European Union and the U.S. exhibited higher
increase. In respect of the structure of export products, the growth
in textile export continued to outpace the growth in garment export.
Particularly, the textile export to ASEAN and Latin America recorded
higher increase at a growth rate of 34.4% and 34.1% respectively.
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The coastal provinces remained as the major regions for the export
of China’s textile and garment products in 2011. In particular,
export value from the top five provinces accounted for 74.7% (2010:
75.6%) of the total export of China, representing an export growth
rate of 18.5%, which was slightly lower than the average level across
the country. Export value of Zhejiang Province rose by 21.1% over
the figure of the previous year to US$60.25 billion. It ranked first
in China, followed by Guangdong Province, where the export grew
by 13.3% over the previous year to US$42.71 billion. Export value
of Jiangsu Province, Shanghai City and Shandong Province were
US$40.87 billion, US$20.88 billion and US$20.38 billion respectively,
with a growth rate of 21.7%, 17.0% and 17.7% over the previous
year respectively. Coastal provinces will continue to be blessed with
strong industrial competitive strengths by taking full advantages
of their edges in infrastructure, industry supporting facilities and
talented personnel. However, the rising labour costs and resource
prices will affect the layout of production bases in the garment

industry.

According to statistics released by the General Administration of
Customs of China, the import and export value of China’s foreign
trade in 2011 was US$3,642.06 billion, with a growth rate of 22.5%
over 2010. This growth was, however, down by 12.2% when
compared to 34.7% in 2010. In particular, the total export value and
import value amounted to US$1,898.60 billion and US$1,743.46
billion respectively, representing an increase of 20.3% and 25.0%
over the previous year respectively. The import and export trade
surplus was US$155.14 billion. During the year, the import growth
continued to outpace the export growth. The amount of import
and export trade surplus decreased by US$27.96 billion or 15.3%
when compared to US$183.10 billion in 2010. Although there was a
continued growth in China’s foreign trade at a relatively rapid speed
during the year, the growth was not going to follow an optimistic
trend, as indicated from the fact that the growth in the second half of
2011 was much lower than that in the first half of the year. During the
first two months of 2012, the growth rate of the total export value
during the corresponding period fell to 6.9%. The import and export
trade deficit was US$4.24 billion. The decline in export growth
rate was mainly due to the weak economic recovery in developed
countries such as the U.S. and the European Union countries. There
will be a remote possibility for the sluggishness in the demand in the
international market to pick up in the near future.
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At the Nineteenth Asia-Pacific Economic Cooperation (APEC)
Informal Leadership Meeting held on 12 and 13 November 2011
in Hawaii, the U.S.-led Trans-Pacific Partnership Agreement (TPP)
aroused attention from the relevant economies. The nine formal
member countries of TPP (including the U.S., Chile, Singapore, New
Zealand, Brunei, Australia, Peru, Malaysia and Vietnam), together
with Japan, Canada and Mexico announced their participation in
negotiations at present. China, as the most populous Pacific Rim
country across the world, has not joined the economy. As most of
the formal member countries of TPP are resources-based countries,
the total population of member countries other than Vietnam in
developing countries is relatively small. Thus, China’s export of
manufactured goods to the TPP member countries will not be
materially affected in the near term. However, due to the special
tariff policies among the TPP member countries, the competitiveness
of the related industry in China will inevitably be subject to certain
impact in the long term. Vietnam will especially become the country
to benefit from the development of the textile and garment industry
to the greatest extent.

According to the National Bureau of Statistics of China, the total
retail sales of social consumer goods throughout the year in 2011
jumped by 17.1% over the previous year to RMB18,122.6 billion,
the domestic demand maintained a stable growth. In terms of the
retail sales of goods among the “over-the-threshold” enterprises,
the retail sales of garments during the year reported a growth of
22.9% over the previous year, attaining a growth rate of more than
20% for five consecutive years. The sustained economic growth in
China has fuelled the demand for domestic garment consumption.
Notwithstanding this, as a result of a number of factors such as
the reduced growth in investment and the adjustment in economic
structure, the economic growth is expected to be slightly lower. The
growth in consumption may also show signs of slowdown. At the
same time, with the increasing participation in the domestic market
competition from apparel retail brands, especially from foreign
brands which have speeded up the pace of expansion into the
PRC market over the recent years, the competition in the apparel
retail industry has become intensified. A wider variety of choices are
offered for people in terms of consumption of garment products.
Apparel retail enterprises with competitive edges in quality and price
are set to usher in larger space for development in the domestic
market.
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As at 31 December 2011,
to RMB8.2765 prior to the exchange rate reform since 21 July

in comparison to the rate of US$1

2005, the exchange rate of Renminbi against U.S. dollars rose
by approximately 31.4% on an accumulated basis. Specifically,
during the year, the exchange rate of Renminbi against U.S. dollars
increased by 5.1%. Upon exchange rate changes for over six years,
the pressure of RMB appreciation has been significantly mitigated. In
particular, given a decrease in China’s trade surplus or even deficit,
the pressure of RMB appreciation was reduced. RMB exchange
rate has been increasingly close to equilibrium. There may be two-
way volatility. This situation will be conducive to export-oriented
enterprises.

China’s gross domestic product (GDP) in 2011 was approximately
RMB47.2 trillion,
of the previous year. Consumer prices for people rose by 5.4% over

representing an increase of 9.2% over the figure

the previous year. The growth in economy and the rise in prices
have driven a continued surge in labour costs. In addition, changes
in China’s population policy and people’s concept of employment
will exert long-term impact on labour costs in the manufacturing
industry. Labour costs have become the greatest obstacle that
hinders the further development of textile and garment industry in
China. Pivoting on its development over a couple of years, the textile
and garment industry in China has laid a solid foundation, and has
nurtured a large pool of management and technical talents. China’s
textile and garment industry is still well-positioned to build on its
comparative advantages around the world.
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According to the information released by the National Bureau
of Statistics of China, China’s cotton cultivation area in 2011
was 5.04 million hectares, which was an increase of 0.19 million
hectares when compared to the previous year. Cotton production
output throughout the year was 6.6 million tons, representing a
growth of 10.7% over the previous year. Following a reduction
in cotton production output for three consecutive years, cotton
production output in China bounced back to a growth. According
to the information released by the United States Department
of Agriculture (USDA),
2011/12 is estimated to be about 26.92 million tons, representing

the world’s cotton production output in

an increase of about 1.54 million tons or about 6% when compared
to 2010/11.
23.67 million tons, representing a decrease of 1.26 million tons or
about 5% when compared to 24.93 million tons in 2010/11. The
world’s cotton carryover inventory stocks amounted to 13.57 million

The world’s cotton consumption in 2011/12 is about

tons, representing an increase of about 32% when compared to the
previous year. Inventory consumption ratio was about 57%, reaching
a new height over the recent three years. USDA estimates that the
world’s cotton production output in 2012/13 will be 25.80 million
tons, which represents a fall of about 4% compared to 2011/12.
However, cotton production output is expected to be higher than
consumption inventory stocks. Cotton consumption and inventory
ratio in 2012/13 will further increase to 58%. As the world’s largest
cotton consuming and importing country, China’s consumption
accounts for about 40% of the world’s total consumption and
her import accounts for about 48% of the world’s total import.
Changes in China’s cotton prices will play an important part in
influencing the global cotton prices. The once sharply surging
cotton prices exhibited obvious decrease in the second half of
2011.
certain degree. To stabilize cotton production, eight departments
including the National Development and Reform Commission have

Farmers’ incentives for planting cotton will be affected to a

unveiled the “2012 Temporary Cotton Purchasing and Storage
Plan”, whereby temporary cotton purchasing and storage price
in 2012 is determined to be RMB20,400 per ton of standard-
grade ginned cotton. The purchasing and storage initiatives will be
executed during the period from 1 September 2012 to 31 March
2013. Despite a possible decrease in China’s cotton cultivation
area, given that the global cotton stocks hit historic record and
the demand for textile and garment in the international market was
weakened, the possibility of sharp fluctuations in cotton prices have
been significantly reduced. This will exert a positive impact on the
textile industry, which makes use of cotton material as its major raw
materials.
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Consumer prices for households during the year continued to
surge speedily. Consumer prices in 2011 rose by 5.5% over
2010 on an average basis. In order to stabilize prices, the PRC
government continued to put into place a tight monetary policy. As
at 24 February 2012, the deposit reserve ratio has been reduced
twice. However, the deposit reserve ratio for large-scale financial
institutions was maintained at 20.5%. The People’s Bank of China
raised the interest rates for deposits and loans for three times during
the year, thus contributing to a significant increase in financing costs
among enterprises. With the reduction in China’s import and export
trade surplus coupled with the fall in prices, the pressure of the
further tightening of the monetary policy has been greatly relieved. It
is expect that the financing pressure of SMEs can be alleviated to a
certain extent.

With the increasing emphasis on environmental protection from the
government, SMEs with high resource consumption and outdated
equipment will continue to exit from the textile and garment industry.
Also, enterprises with main competitive edge in costs will face
challenges from counterparties in other low-cost countries. China’s
huge domestic market is still in a growth period. Moreover, in
comparison to competitive advantages of other textile and garment
exporting countries, China’s textile and garment products have
secured relatively stable market share in the international market.
Taking into account of all these facts, enterprises with leading
position in terms of product quality, production management and
environmental protection will therefore continue to benefit from the
industry consolidation.

Annual Report 2011 4 #§



BEERWR DT

Management Discussion and Analysis

SR 1o B e R R AT = % SR B

¥¥OE

FA-HERETELCERRPEEES T
A= BERTEERANREE  ARBHET
FEMNR - BERKRSIBWMEZE L B
EEREHRECBEERZ NBERBEMSE
KAE - B AREBBBANT TR FFERT
RITERNBRFENBIE—FPHNREF-=
T——FE AEERSTEENLEEEE
HEWRAMFENBI IR - —ZFEIL
£ 734.6%M34.0% B EF N NEBEER
mHEEEE TEEKHE EREEHE.
EEEMHRE BITAFEESITERET

E—- KA RBRER:
REEREEEE

FRN AEEFERERREEETR BBE
EEETE A ER MR AE &
B EEMXRBRIET BUERZSHEER
SETR-FA SENKNRKEER EFIER
THN9% MAKEWE TFIAREENT
We% BUNEENAKERLFETERTLH
11% ° FEas B 12 P75 2R 2 AU K B9 R
BT RMF - AR MEERER £k
SRR E-

Annual Report 2011 4 #§

BUSINESS REVIEW AND FUTURE PROSPECTS
AND STRATEGIES

Business Review

During the year, the operating landscape of the textile and garment
industry was subject to a number of unfavourable factors, including
the volatile fluctuations in cotton price, the accelerated appreciation
of Renminbi against U.S. dollars, the rise in overall prices along with
inflation, and the dampened demand in the international market as
a result of the weak economic recovery of developed countries such
as Europe and the U.S.. Nevertheless, the Group further reinforced
its competitiveness in the industry through continuous enhancement
of the internal management. The Group attained impressive
operating results in 2011, as noted from an increase in sales revenue
and profit for the year of 34.6% and 34.0% when compared to those
in 2010 respectively. During the year under review, the Group made
further success in enhancing production management, expanding
retail business, adjusting product mix, optimizing the layout of
production bases and strengthening employees’ livelihood welfare.
The specific details of this success are set out as follows:

Stepping up the enhancement of lean production management
During the year, the Group continued to step up the enhancement
of lean production management. By optimizing the production
processes, strengthening the management of raw materials and
refining cost assessment indicators, production efficiency was
greatly improved, while consumption per unit of product continued
to reduce. During the year, the Group’s garment production output
increased by about 19% over last year, contrasting to an increase in
the average number of employees of the Group by merely about 6%.
Water consumption per unit of production output dropped by about
11% when compared to last year. Benefiting from the effectiveness
of the enhancement of lean production management, the adverse
impact of the rise in raw materials, labour costs and energy prices on
the Group was relatively mitigated to a larger degree.
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Making a Move into Trial Operation of Retail Business

The establishment of a retail business management team was
basically completed by the Group during the year, thereby promoting
the increasing integrity among various functional departments.
Following the opening of the first directly-operated store in Ningbo
City on 1 August 2011,
stores in Shanghai and one directly-operated store in Suzhou,

the Group set up two directly-operated

Jiangsu Province respectively during the year. The Group believes
that the apparel consumer demand in the domestic market is
embedded with immense room for further growth. The consumption
structure of the apparel products will be subject to greater
adjustment. Apparel products of premium quality, environmental-
friendly consciousness and affordable prices will become the
mainstream consumption. And, the Group is undoubtedly well-

positioned to ride on its apparent advantages in these horizons.

Ideal Adjustment of Product Mix

Due to the good partnership between the Group and internationally-
renowned sports brands, sportswear sustained a swift growth.
During the year ended 31 December 2011, the sales of sportswear
accounted for 54.7% of the total revenue, surpassing the
percentage of the sales of casual wear to the total revenue by
about 21 percentage points. Taking into account the fact that the
concentration of customers of sportswear was significantly lower
than that of casual wear, the existing product mix has tended to be
increasingly desirable. The Group will endeavor to further enhance
the added value of various products and to provide consumers with
better products.

Optimization of Layout of Production Base

During the year, the Group has started to build a new garment
manufacturing factory Phase Il in Cambodia, and the production
is expected to commence in phases in the second half of 2012.
Cambodia enjoys labour cost advantages over China. Preferential
tariffs are given by garment importing countries such as the
European Union countries to garments manufactured in Cambodia.
In addition, the diversification of production bases can help reduce
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customers’ concerns about risk exposure arising from procurement
concentration. Currently, the Group’s garment factories in Cambodia
and Anging City of central China have achieved substantial
improvement in production efficiency. Cost advantages have been
gradually realized. While China’s coastal areas still have relatively
distinct advantages in terms of logistics, transport and talented
personnel, the Group will keep abreast of the prevailing situation by
adjusting the size of the production base in different regions, so as to
reduce the impact of rising costs on operating results. The Group will
also provide customers with better services.

Strengthening of Employee Benefits

China’s sustained economic growth has contributed to wider
diversity of employment opportunities and choices. Meanwhile,
there are changes in employees’ career attitudes. In addition to the
improvement in salaries of employees, the Group is endeavouring
to strengthen employees’ livelihood welfare and creating an
admirable working and living environment plays a very important
role in stabilizing staff loyalty. The Group has unwaveringly
upheld a business philosophy that stresses the importance of the
strengthening of staff benefits. During the year, the Group continued
to arrange for chartered vehicles to facilitate the return of employees
from outside regions to their hometowns for the Chinese New
Year holidays, and their returned trips to our factories. The Group
has also made a request to the local government, in order for
the children of the employees from outside regions to receive the
educational opportunities as equal as those of the local residents
in Beilun District, Ningbo City in batches. In addition, the Group
is also actively considering the solution to staff accommodation.
It is planning the construction of new accommodation spaces
for employees. The stability of the workforce has promoted the
enhancement of production efficiency, thereby reaping more
promising fruits from its lean production management. These welfare
measures have greatly reduced the pressure of the increase in labour
costs on the Group. For example, the ratio of workers returning back
to Ningbo plant after the Chinese New Year holidays was more than
97%.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

Revenue rose from RMBG6,719,172,000 for the year ended 31
December 2010 to RMB9,043,442,000 for the year ended 31
December 2011, representing an increase of RMB2,324,270,000 or
about 34.6%. The growth was mainly attributable to the following
factors: (1) persistently robust growth of demand from foreign
sportswear customers during the year; (2) the speedy increase in
domestic sales along with new orders from domestic customers; (3)
the further improvement in production efficiency and the increase in
production output of garments as a result of the Group’s continued
efforts in promoting lean production management and optimizing
production processes; and (4) the slight increase in the average
sales price of the Group during the year due to the rise in raw
material prices and labour costs.

The comparison of the revenue of the Group for 2011 and 2010 by
product categories is as follows:

BE+-A=1t—-HLEE

For the year ended 31 December

—E——F —E-TF 2E
2011 2010 Change

ARETT % AREFT % AREFT %
RMB’000 % RMB’000 % RMB’000 %

RE W By product
EEERE Sportswear 4,949,196 54,7 3,373,294 50.2 1,575,902 46.7
NGEEY e Casual wear 3,046,903 33.7 2,365,684 35.2 681,219 28.8
NIKEE R 5 Lingerie 799,391 8.8 740,586 11.0 58,805 7.9
H b st4% Other knitting products 247,952 2.8 239,608 3.6 8,344 3.5
SHE 5T Total revenue 9,043,442 100.0 6,719,172 100.0 2,324,270 34.6
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For the year ended 31 December 2011,
amounted to RMB4,949,196,000, representing an increase
of RMB1,575,902,000 or approximately 46.7% from
RMB3,373,294,000 for the year ended 31 December 2010. The
rapid growth in sales of sportswear was mainly attributable to the

sales of sportswear

widespread recognition of the Group’s competitive advantages in
the industry among customers, and the establishment of stable
strategic and cooperative relationship between the Group and well-
known international sports brands. At the same time, the demand
for domestic garments in the international market during the year
bounced back. This contributed to an increase in orders placed
by foreign customers with the Group. In addition, new orders from
domestic customers also fuelled a growth in sales of sportswear.

Sales of casual wear grew from RMB2,365,684,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2010 to RMB3,046,903,000 for the year ended
31 December 2011, representing a growth of RMB681,219,000 or
approximately 28.8%. The growth was mainly attributable to the fact
that: (1) the procurement demand for casual wear from the Japanese
customers bounced back during the year; and (2) there was an
increase in new orders from domestic customers.

Sales of lingerie increased from RMB740,586,000 for the year ended
31 December 2010 to RMB799,391,000 for the year ended 31
December 2011,
approximately 7.9%.

representing an increase of RMB58,805,000 or
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The comparison of the revenue of the Group for 2011 and 2010 by
market regions is as follows:

BE+T-HA=t—HLEE
For the year ended 31 December

—E——fF —E-ZF gE
2011 2010 Change
ARET T % AREFIT % AREFT %
RMB’000 % RMB’000 % RMB’000 %
&M% By regions
HA Japan 3,224,257 35.7 2,772,854 413 451,403 16.3
BUM Europe 1,949,355 21.6 1,392,450 20.7 556,905 40.0
EH u.S. 516,420 5.7 439,591 6.5 76,829 17.5
HmBER Others 1,428,093 15.8 760,347 11.3 667,746 87.8
BB SH & /et Sub-total for
international sales 7,118,125 78.8 5,365,242 79.8 1,752,883 32.7
W& Domestic sales 1,925,317 21.2 1,353,930 20.2 571,387 42.2
SHE AT Total sales 9,043,442 100.0 6,719,172 100.0 2,324,270 34.6
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For the year ended 31 December 2011, the Group’s sales in the
Japanese market was RMB3,224,257,000, representing an increase
of RMB451,403,000 or approximately 16.3% when compared to
RMB2,772,854,000 for the year ended 31 December 2010. Due
to the success of the market diversification strategy, the growth
rate of the Group’s sales in ex-Japan markets outpaced the
Japanese market. Although there was a fall in the proportion of
revenue from sales in the Japanese market, the Group will continue
to emphasize on and expand into the Japanese market, a single
market accounting for the highest proportion of sales, in its future
development.

During the year ended 31 December 2011, the Group’s sales
from the European market was RMB1,949,355,000, representing
an increase of RMB556,905,000 or approximately 40.0% when
compared to RMB1,392,450,000 for the year ended 31 December
2010. The increase was mainly attributable to the substantial
increase in the Group’s sales of sportswear in the European market.
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Notable growth in sales was also recorded in the U.S. and other
markets including Hong Kong, China, Taiwan, Korea and Singapore.
For the year ended 31 December 2011,
other foreign markets increased by approximately 17.5% and 87.8%

sales from the U.S. and

respectively when compared to the previous year. The substantial
increase in the Group’s sales from other markets was mainly
contributed by markets including Taiwan, Korea and Singapore.

A marked growth in sales was achieved by the Group in
the domestic market.
2011, garment sales in the domestic market amounted to
RMB1,713,873,000, representing an increase of RMB556,646,000
or approximately 48.1% when compared to RMB1,157,227,000 for
the year ended 31 December 2010. The increase was mainly driven

During the year ended 31 December

by the increase in orders from new domestic customers.

Cost of sales and gross profit

The Group’s cost of sales for the year ended 31 December
2011 amounted to approximately RMB6,441,605,000 (2010:
RMB4,713,001,000).
in 2011 was approximately 28.8%, representing a decrease
of approximately 1.1 percentage points when compared to

The Group’s gross profit margin of sales

approximately 29.9% in 2010. During the year, the Group’s revenue
included a gain of RMB140,313,000 (2010: RMB50,920,000) from
foreign currency forward hedges between U.S. dollars and Renminbi.
If such gain from foreign currency forward contract hedges was
excluded, the gross profit margin of the Group’s sales in 2011 was
approximately 27.6% (2010: 29.3%), which was a decrease of 1.7
percentage points when compared to 2010. The slight decrease in
gross profit margin was mainly due to: 1) higher average purchase
price of the main raw materials (being cotton yarn) during the year
when compared to 2010 as a result of the sharp rise in cotton prices
in the first half of 2011; 2) the increase in labour costs; and 3) the
further appreciation of Renminbi against U.S. dollars. However, these
pressures of rising costs were net-off by the improvement in the
Group’s efficiency resulting from the lean production management.
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Equity attributable to the equity holders of the Company

As at 31 December 2011, the Group’s equity attributable to the
equity holders of the Company amounted to RMB6,078,229,000
(2010: RMB4,799,532,000), of which non-current assets amounted
to RMBS3,634,317,000 (2010: RMBS3,585,484,000), net current
assets amounted to RMB2,477,911,000 (2010: RMB1,322,468,000),
non-current liabilities amounted to zero (2010: RMB94,681,000) and
non-controlling interests amounted to RMB33,999,000 (2010: RMB
13,739,000).
of the Company was mainly attributable to the increase in retained

The rise in equity attributable to the equity holders

earnings.

Liquidity and financial resources

For the year ended 31 December 2011, net cash generated
from the Group’s operating activities amounted to approximately
RMB1,641,447,000, contrasting to approximately RMB710,914,000
in 2010. The Group’s net borrowings (bank borrowings less
cash and cash equivalents) as at 31 December 2011 was
RMB214,663,000, compared to net borrowings of RMB910,602,000
as at 31 December 2010, representing a decrease in net borrowings

by RMB695,939,000.

Cash and cash equivalents of the Group’s as at 31 December 2011
amounted to RMB1,029,596,000 (2010: RMB519,017,000). The
total amount of outstanding borrowings was RMB1,244,259,000
(2010: RMB1,429,619,000, in which short-term bank loans
amounted to RMB1,349,887,000 and long-term bank loans
amounted to RMB79,732,000),
borrowings. Equity attributable to equity holders of the Company
amounted to RMB6,078,229,000 (2010: RMB4,799,532,000). The
Group was in a good cash flow position, with a debt to equity ratio
(total outstanding borrowings as a percentage of equity attributable
to the equity holders of the Company) of 20.5% (2010: 29.8%).

all of which were short-term bank
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For the year ended 31 December 2011, the Group entered into an
interest rate swap contract with the relevant bank in respect of a
loan denominated in U.S. dollars. The contract came into effect on
30 April 2011, and will terminate on 31 March 2014. The Group
shall bear interest payment to the relevant bank at a fixed interest
rate of 1.13% per annum, and interest charges to the relevant bank
at the one-month U.S. dollar LIBOR rate. The principal amounts
of the agreed transaction under the contract are US$50,000,000
commencing on 30 April 2011, US$40,000,000 commencing on 28
September 2012, US$30,000,000 commencing on 28 March 2013,
and US$20,000,000 for the period from 30 September 2013 to
31 March 2014. The main purpose of the transaction between the
Group and the relevant bank was to fix the financing cost of the bank
loan.

Finance costs and tax

For the year ended 31 December 2011, finance costs increased
to RMB51,243,000 from RMB35,837,000 for the year ended 31
December 2010. The increase was mainly due to the higher interest
expenses which were in line with the increase in the Group’s average
amount of bank borrowings during the year. The Group’s U.S. dollar
and Renminbi loan interest rates during the year ranged from 1.24%
t0 5.91% and 2.5% to 8.55% respectively (2010: 1.15% to 4.82%
and 4.37% to 5.28% respectively).

For the year ended 31 December 2011, income tax expense of the
Group amounted to RMB354,573,000, representing an increase
of RMB2,621,000 when compared to income tax expense of
RMB351,952,000 for the year ended 31 December 2010. The
increase in income tax expense was mainly due to the significant
increase in taxable profits in 2011 when compared to 2010. The
additional accrual of income tax of RMB53,435,000 made by Ningbo
Shenzhou Knitting Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of the Group, pursuant
to the further interpretation made in 2010 by the tax authority in
2010 on the “2-year exemption, 3-year 50% reduction” transitional
tax concession policy for additional investment claimed in 2009,
reflected a credit impact on the increase in the amount of the income
tax expense in the current year.
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According to the “Notice of the State Council on the Implementation
of the Transitional Preferential Policies of Enterprise Income Tax”,
the corporate tax rate for our manufacturing subsidiaries in Ningbo
Economic & Technical Development Zone shall be 25% from 1
January 2012 and afterwards. After the implementation of the new
tax law, the entitlement of certain subsidiaries to the preferential tax
treatment of the “2-year exemption and 3-year 50% reduction” may
remain in force according to the original tax laws, administrative
regulations and other relevant provisions until the expiry of the
tax holiday. 2012 is the final year for the implementation of the
preferential policies.

Pledge of the Group’s assets

As at 31 December 2011, the Group’s plants and prepaid land lease
payments with an aggregate carrying amount of RMB159,944,000
(as at 31 December 2010: RMB168,963,000)
secure the medium to long-term loan facilities of US$21,000,000

were pledged to

granted by the Zhejiang branch of Export-Import Bank of China. As
at 31 December 2011, the Group had outstanding borrowings of
US$1,545,000 (as at 31 December 2010: US$5,363,000) from such
bank. To secure the Group’s bank overdraft facilities from the Ningbo
Branch of HSBC Bank (China) Company Limited in the amount of
RMB5,000,000, the Group’s plants and prepaid land lease payments
with an aggregate carrying amount of RMB201,851,000 as at 31
December 2011 were pledged as security. As at 31 December 2011,
no overdraft facilities were used by the Group. In addition, the Group
has entered into a credit facility contract with the Ningbo Branch of
Hang Seng Bank (China) Limited in the amount of RMB60,000,000,
for which the Group’s plants and prepaid land lease payments
with an aggregate carrying amount of RMB243,121,000 as at 31
December 2011 were pledged as security. As at 31 December
2011, the outstanding borrowings of the Group secured by way of
asset security from the Ningbo Branch of Hang Seng Bank (China)
Limited was RMB10,000,000 (as at 31 December 2010: nil). Certain
bank loans and credit facilities of the Group and the Company are
secured by the Company and the holding companies controlled by
the directors of the Company.
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Exposure to foreign exchange

As the Group’s sales were mainly settled in U.S. dollar while its
purchases were mainly settled in Renminbi, its costs and operating
profit margin were affected by exchange rate fluctuations. The Group
has adopted a policy to hedge part of its foreign exchange risks in
light of the existing fluctuations of exchange rate between U.S. dollar
and Renminbi. The amounts to be hedged depend on the Group’s
expected revenue, purchases and capital expenditure in U.S. dollar,
as well as the market forecast of fluctuations in the exchange rate of
U.S. dollars against Renminbi.

To avoid reductions in value and volatility of future cash flows
arising from any exchange rate movement between Renminbi and
U.S. dollar, the Group has arranged an appropriate amount of U.S.
dollar borrowings. As at 31 December 2011, out of the total bank
borrowings, U.S. dollar borrowings amounted to RMB902,037,000
(US$143,160,000 based on the original currency) (as at 31
December 2010: RMB525,377,000 (US$79,330,000 based on
the original currency)). In addition, the Group entered into forward
contracts selling U.S. dollar in order to hedge certain of its foreign
exchange risk, particularly those related to U.S. dollar. As at 31
December 2011, the aggregate amount of the outstanding U.S.
dollar forward contracts was approximately US$875,000,000 (as at
31 December 2010: approximately US$620,000,000). The Group
has also entered into a number of non-deliverable U.S. dollar
foreign currency forward contracts. As at 31 December 2011, the
outstanding non-deliverable U.S. dollars foreign currency forward
contracts amounted to approximately US$210,000,000 (as at 31
December 2010: approximately US$685,000,000).

Employment, training and development

As at 31 December 2011, the Group employed more than
48,600 employees. Total staff costs, including management and
administrative staff, accounted for approximately 19.3% (2010:
20.8%) of the Group’s sales during the year. The Group remunerated
its staff according to their performances, qualifications and industry
practices, and conducted regular reviews of its remuneration
policy. Employees may receive discretionary bonuses and monetary
rewards based on their ratings in annual performance appraisals.
The Company also offered rewards or other incentives to motivate
personal growth and career development of the employees, such
as ongoing opportunities for training to enhance their technical and
product knowledge as well as their knowledge of industry quality
standards. Each of the new employees of the Group is required to
attend an introductory course, while there are also various types of
training courses available to all the Group’s employees.
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Capital expenditure and commitments

During the year, the Group’s total investment in property, plant and
equipment and prepaid land lease payments rights amounted to
approximately RMB384,907,000, of which approximately 54% was
used for the acquisition of production equipment, approximately
38% for the construction and acquisition of new factory buildings
and prepaid land lease payments, and the balance was used for the
purchase of other fixed assets.

Contingent Liabilities
As at 31 December 2011, the Group had no material contingent
liabilities.

Events after the reporting period

On 13 April 2012, the Company entered into a placing agreement
with Keep Glory Limited (“Keep Glory”) as vendor and Credit Suisse
(Hong Kong) Limited (“Credit Suisse”) as placing agent pursuant
to which Credit Suisse will procure independent third parties to
purchase up to 85,000,000 Shares of the Company (“Placing
Shares”) at a price of HK$13.80 per Placing Share from Keep Glory
(“Placing”). On the same date, the Company and Keep Glory also
entered into a subscription agreement pursuant to which Keep Glory
has agreed to subscribe for new Shares (“Subscription Shares”)
which is equivalent to the number of Placing Shares sold by Keep
Glory, representing approximately 6.83% of the existing issued share
capital of the Company and approximately 6.39% of the existing
issued share capital of the Company as enlarged by the maximum
number of Subscription Shares, at the same price as the Placing
Shares (“Subscription”). The net proceeds from the Subscription
will be approximately HK$1,158,750,000. Upon the completion
of the Placing and the Subscription, the net assets of the Group
will increase by HK$1,158,750,000 (not taking into account of the
payment of dividends for Placing Shares). The dividend for the entire
year of 2011 will increase by HK$42,500,000. The above impact on
the Group’s financial statements are not reflected in the 2011 annual
financial statements and other parts of this annual report. Details of
the Placing are set out in the announcement dated 16 April 2012 of
the Company.
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FUTURE PROSPECTS AND STRATEGIES

Looking into the future, the Group believes that challenges ahead
will not overshadow the many development opportunities. The
garment and textile industry will face the pressure arising from the
continued rise in labour costs. Hindered by the weak economic
the demand
in the international market in recent years will slow down. At the

recovery of countries including Europe and the U.S.,

same time, there was a relatively large fall in prices of raw materials
(mainly cotton). The exchange rate of Renminbi against U.S. dollars
has been increasingly close to equilibrium. The continuously rising
requirements on environmental protection have eliminated small
and medium-sized enterprises (‘SMEs”) with outdated equipment
from the industry. Industry leaders with advanced technology and
sophisticated management will usher in more promising development
opportunities. The Group’s future development will be focused on
the following aspects.

Efforts will be made to further reinforce the capability to extend the
global reach of the production essential elements. To tap into the
resource advantages of different countries, the Group has expanded
or newly built production bases in overseas regions by keeping
ahead of its business development and changes in the economic
environment. In addition, in respect of procurement, the Group will
take advantages of the bonded preferential policies offered to it by
the State Customs by increasing the procurement of low-price raw
materials in the international market, thereby reducing production
costs.
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Emphasis will be placed on stepping into the garment retail business
in the domestic market. In the coming years, the Group will dedicate
focused efforts on the integration of the retail management team,
the optimization of management system and the steady expansion
of the sales market. By capitalizing on our advantages in the
garment manufacturing industry, we have laid a foundation for the
long-term development of our retail business. Despite relatively
ferocious competition in the domestic garment retail market, the
Group believes that the growth of the garment market space and
the adjustment of the garment consumption structure will present
opportunities for the development of the Group’s retail business. The
number of stores will be appropriately added by the Group.

Our core competitive strengths will be adhered to technology
advancement. We will also establish a long-term, effective incentive
mechanism to encourage employees’ innovation enthusiasm. The
Company will attract the joining of talented people, and share fruitful
results from corporate growth with our employees. Continuous
product innovation and technological breakthroughs are the only
keys to coping with the operating pressure emerging from the
increase in production costs. By making continued endeavours on
the enhancement of product quality, the development and utilization
of new materials as well as the improvement of environmental
friendliness and safety of products, in order to uplift the add value of
products and enlarge market share.

The Group will strive to maintain and enhance its competitiveness in
the industry, to provide consumers with higher-quality products, and
create more prominent returns for investors. The Group is confident
that it will achieve better development in the future.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Group’s stated objective is to enhance its corporate value,
focusing on the solid growth in net profit and consistently stable
in cash flow, to ensure the Group’s long-term, sustainable
development and to achieve sound returns for shareholders. The
Group is committed to raising its corporate governance standards
and increasing the transparency of its operations. Such objective
will be achieved by constantly improving the quality of corporate
governance of Shenzhou International through continuing training
for Directors as well as staff and the appointment of external
professional advisers.

The Board adopted its own Code of Corporate Governance, which
covered all the code provisions and most of the recommended best
practices of the Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the “CG
Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) (the “Listing Rules”) since 9 October 2005.

The Company had complied with all the code provisions of the CG
Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2011.

The recent amendments to the Listing Rules by the Stock Exchange
will come into effect in phases on or before 1 April 2012. In order to
ensure that the Articles of Association of the Company comply with
the requirements of the Listing Rules, the Board has approved to
propose to the Shareholders for adoption of relevant amendments and
the amended and restated new Articles of Association in the Annual
General Meeting to be convened on 29 May 2012. Details of which
are set out in the circular to Shareholders published together with this
annual report. Terms of Reference of each of the Board Committees of
the Company have also been amended and published on the websites
of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

THE BOARD

The Group endeavours to enhance corporate efficiency and
profitability through the Board. The Directors recognise their
collective and individual responsibility to the shareholders and
perform their duties diligently to contribute to positive results for the
Company and maximize returns for shareholders.

As of the issuance of this annual report, the Board currently
comprises five Executive Directors, one Non-executive Director and
three Independent Non-executive Directors, whose biographical
details and family relationships among certain Directors are set
out in the section headed “Biographical Details of Directors and
Senior Management” on pages 50 to 57. There is no other material
financial, business or relevant relationships among the Directors.
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The Board is responsible for governing the Company and managing
assets entrusted by the shareholders. The principal responsibilities of
the Board include the formulation of the Group’s business strategies
and management objectives, supervision of the management and
evaluation of the effectiveness of management strategies.

Day-to-day management of the Group’s businesses is delegated
to the Executive Director or officer in charge of each division. The
functions and power that are so delegated are reviewed periodically
to ensure that they remain appropriate. Matters reserved for the
Board are those affecting the Group’s overall strategic policies,
finances and shareholders including financial statements, dividend
policy, significant changes in accounting policy, material contracts
and major investments. All Board members have separate and
independent access to the Group’s senior management to fulfill their
duties. They also have full and timely access to relevant information
about the Group and are kept abreast of the conduct, business
activities and development of the Group. Independent professional
advice can be sought at the Group’s expense upon their request.

All Directors are required to declare to the Board upon their first
appointment of the directorships or other positions they are
concurrently holding at other companies or organizations. These
interests are updated on an annual basis. A Director should declare
his/her interests and abstain from voting in respect of any proposal
or transaction discussed by the Board in which he/she is deemed by
the Board to have a conflicting interest.

Directors are requested to declare their direct or indirect interests,
if any, in any proposals or transactions to be considered by the
Board at Board Meetings and withdraw from the meetings as
appropriate. The Company follows guidelines (available at the
“Corporate Governance” Section of our website) at each financial
reporting period to seek confirmation from Directors in respect of any
transactions of the Company or its subsidiaries which are related to
Directors or their associates. The identified significant related party
transactions are disclosed in the Notes to the Financial Statements
of the Annual Report.

Annual Report 2011 4 #§



EEERWE

Corporate Governance Report

IREREEAKRE
EEREHEAEBREE I BEREDH-
EFRIFAREREFERARMEARL
ERE MEBRCRANEEERAEEE
B A HEE - MERH AR

BYFHBTESNE LM

B FRTEEMELERETENEN=
NZ— REERBFONITHEEARSLS
BEFEZ ARZITHIEXRHNE A SAKHE
RERBOSIOLFE URERRRAE
BOBEENS - BUFATESTNACER
EXERUNBUNEENER UHtEFS
FHZERIRE - 2RBIUFNTEERCDIR
RERBIMENERE LFAHNLEHR
A AYE 4RSI AR E

ESERERF
AREEEHRTEFEER B AEH
MEE MBERR CXRERARARARER -F
ERBTESECANRIUREERA
TREZBITARIIREZZELFAEX
H HEREFILMBHNEEHEER TERSE
FETTEAS -

AANBARFIEEERESEARNE
B EETRBLAEBNAEMEHN
GHEBRME 2 RE SRR SR
EEMMBRER MEREREERAL
ST -

ARARRBE-_T——F+-_A=+—HIt
FEAABRTHRAZBERTSESH KRRE
BEA BERELE ERAMEEMBTLCME
ARRBMEERE-—REIN 2RES
BEEFU MR-

Annual Report 2011 4 ¥}

CHAIRMAN AND GROUP GENERAL MANGER
The Chairman of the Board and the Group General Manager
have separate and distinctive roles. The Chairman of the Board is
responsible for the overall management of the Board and significant
operational decisions of the Group, while the Group General
Manager is responsible for managing the day-to-day operations of
the Group’s business.

Independence of Independent Non-executive Directors
Independent Non-executive Directors accounted for one third of the
members of the Board. The Independent Non-executive Directors
are outstanding executives or experts in the textile industry who
bring with them expertise in different areas. They provide adequate
control and balances for the Group to protect the overall interests of
the shareholders and the Group. The role of the Independent Non-
executive Directors is to provide independent and objective opinions
to the Board for its consideration and decisions. All independent
Non-executive Directors have submitted written confirmation of their
independence and compliance with the independence guidelines as
set out in the Listing Rules.

Board proceedings

Regular Board meetings are held to discuss the Group’s
operation, financial performance, corporate governance and future
development. At least 14 days prior notice and an agenda with
supporting papers of no less than 3 days of the Board meeting are
given to directors to ensure timely access the relevant information to
discharge their duties.

Minutes of the Board and Board Committees are taken by the
Company Secretary and, together with any supporting papers, are
open for inspection following reasonable notice by any Directors.
Draft and final versions of minutes are sent to all Directors for their
comment and records, respectively.

The Company held 4 full Board meetings for the year ended 31
December 2011, with all Directors attended, except for Mr. Chen
Zhongjing, Mr. Dai Xiangbo, Mr. Huang Guanlin and Mr. Ma Renhe,
each of them was absent from 1 meeting as they had other business
engagements.
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Board meetings will be held at least four times a year with additional
meetings convened as and when necessary to determine overall
strategic directions and objectives and approve interim and annual
results and other significant matters.

During the year, the Chairman also held a separate meeting with all
the Independent Non-executive Directors to address business issues
and concerns.

Board Committees

To oversee particular aspects of the Company’s affairs and to assist
in the execution of its responsibilities, the Board has set up three
Committees, namely Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee
and Nomination Committee. The Committees have been structured
to include a majority of Independent Non-executive Directors as
members in order to reinforce independence. All of the Committees
are governed by its respective terms of reference, which are available
on the Company’s website www.shenzhouintl.com.

All Committees are provided with sufficient resources to discharge
their duties. The Committees report to the Board on a regular
basis to discuss significant issues and findings and to make
recommendations to the Board for making decisions.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a Remuneration Committee in
compliance with the CG Code on 9 October 2005. As of the
issuance of this report, the Remuneration Committee comprises one
Executive Director and two Independent Non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Ma Renhe, Mr. Chen Genxiang and Mr. Jiang Xianpin.
Mr. Chen Genxiang was appointed as a member of Remuneration
Committee on 16 August 2011 and redesignated as Chairman of the
Remuneration Committee on 1 April 2012.

The principal responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee are to
make recommendations to the Board on the overall remuneration
policy and structure for the Directors and senior management and on
the establishment of a formal and transparent process for approving
such remuneration policy. No director will take part in any discussion
on his or her own remuneration. The details of their fees are set out
in note 8 to the financial statements.
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The Company’s objective for its remuneration policy is to maintain
fair and competitive packages based on business requirements and
industry practice. In order to determine the level of remuneration
and fees paid to members of the Board of Directors, market rates
and factors such as each director’s workload, responsibility, and job
complexity are taken into account.

The Remuneration Committee held 2 meetings with full attendance
in 2011 except for Mr. Su Shounan, who was absent from 1
meeting due to other engagements. At the meetings, it reviewed the
remuneration of Directors and senior management.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a Nomination Committee on 9
October 2005. As of the issuance of this report, the Nomination
Committee comprises one Executive Director and two Independent
Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Ma Jianrong, Mr. Zong
Pingsheng and Mr. Jiang Xianpin. Mr. Ma Jianrong was appointed as
the Chairman of the Nomination Committee on 1 April 2012.

The principal responsibilities of the Nomination Committee are
to identify candidates with suitable qualifications as directors,
select and nominate such candidates for directorship and provide
recommendations to the Board; regularly review the structure,
headcount and composition (including skills, knowledge and
experience) of the Board and make recommendations to the Board
for any proposed changes.

The Nomination Committee held 2 meetings with full attendance
in 2011 except for Mr. Huang Guanlin, who was absent from 1
meeting due to other engagements. At the meetings, it reviewed
and recommended the reappointment of retiring directors for
shareholders’ approval at the Annual General Meeting (“AGM”).
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APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

A person may be appointed as a member of the Board at any time
either by the shareholders in general meeting or by the Board upon
recommendation by the Nomination Committee.

In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association, any
Directors appointed by the Board as additional Directors and to fill
casual vacancies shall hold office until the next AGM (in the case of
an addition to the Board) or until the next general meeting (in the
case of filling a casual vacancy), and are eligible for re-election by
the shareholders. In addition, all Directors are required to retire by
rotation at least once every three years at the AGM, subject to re-
election by the shareholders. All Independent Non-executive Directors
are appointed for specific terms for not more than three years.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established the Audit Committee in compliance with
Rules 3.21 to 3.23 of the Listing Rules on 9 October 2005. As of
the issuance of this report, the Audit Committee comprises three
Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Jiang Xianpin,
Mr. Chen Genxiang and Mr. Zong Pingsheng. Mr. Jiang Xianpin was
appointed as the Chairman of the Audit Committee on 1 April 2012.
His expertise in accounting, auditing and finance enables him to
provide leadership for the Committee.

The principal responsibilities of the Audit Committee are to conduct
critical and objective reviews of the Group’s financial and accounting
practices and internal controls. These include determining of
the nature and scope of statutory audit, reviewing the Group’s
interim and annual accounts and assessing the completeness and
effectiveness of the Group’s accounting and financial controls.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are consistent with
the recommendations as set out in “A Guide for Effective Audit
Committee” published by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the “HKICPA”) and the provisions of the CG Code.

The Audit Committee held 2 meetings with full attendance for the
year ended 31 December 2011, except for Mr. Su Shounan, who
was absent from 1 meeting due to other engagements. At the
meetings, it reviewed the 2010 final results, financial report and
auditing issues, with the external auditors, and the 2011 interim
results, the activities of the Group’s internal audit functions,
the internal audit report on business operations and continuing
connected transactions.
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Details of Director’s attendance at the AGM, Board and Board
Committee Meetings held in 2011 are set out in the following
table. The overall attendance rate of Directors at Board Meetings
was 85.7%. As Mr. Wang Cunbo and Mr. Cheng Genxiang were
appointed as Directors of the Company around mid-year, and Mr. Su
Shounan resigned as a director of the Company around mid-year,
they were not able to attend certain meetings of Board Committees
and Sub-committees.

HE/BTERRE
Meetings Attended/Held
Exeex EREEE FMERS REZEE RREFAS
Board Audit Remuneration Nomination
Meeting Committee Committee Committee AGM

BIUFHTES
Independent Non-executive Directors
BRARM K4 1/1 - - - -
Mr. Chen Genxiang
BHREE 3/4 2/2 2/2 2/2 1/1
Mr. Dai Xiangbo
BEmiE 3/4 1/2 1/2 - 1/1
Mr. Su Shounan
rEERE 4/4 2/2 - 2/2 1/1
Mr. Zong Pingsheng
kHTES
Non-executive Director
BRI 3/4 - - - 1/1
Mr. Chen Zhongjing
BITES
Executive Directors
BRRLE 4/4 - - - 1/1
Mr. Ma Jianrong
BEMEE 3/4 - - 1/2 1/1
Mr. Huang Guanlin
SCMEE 3/4 - 2/2 - 1/1
Mr. Ma Renhe
ByEL+ 4/4 - - - 1/1
Ms. Zheng Miaohui
FRREEE 2/2 - - - -

Mr. Wang Cunbo
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FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to prepare the Company’s
accounts which give a true and fair view and in accordance with the
accounting standards generally accepted in Hong Kong as published
by the HKICPA. The Company has selected appropriate accounting
policies and has applied them consistently based on prudent and
reasonable judgments and estimates. The Directors endeavoured to
make a fair and comprehensible assessment of the Group’s current
conditions and prospects in the financial report.

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board recognises its responsibility to maintain an appropriate
internal control system and to ensure accurate reporting of the
Company’s state of affairs to shareholders and the public in a timely
manner.

The Group’s internal control system is designed to enhance
operating effectiveness and efficiency, to safeguard assets against
misappropriation and unauthorized disposition, to maintain
appropriate accounting records and financial reports that are
true and fair, and to ensure compliance with relevant laws and
regulations. The system aims at providing a reasonable, but not
absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss and
managing rather than eliminating operational risks.

The Board, through the Audit Committee, reviewed the internal
control system of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2011,
which covered controls over financial reporting, operations and
compliance, as well as risk management functions, and considered
that the system of internal controls in operation in the Group have
been in place and functioning effectively.

INTERNAL AUDIT

The Internal Audit Department plays an important role in monitoring
the internal governance of the Company. The Internal Auditor
reports directly to the Chairman and has direct access to the Audit
Committee. The Internal Audit Department has unrestricted access
to information that allows it to review all aspects of the Company’s
risk management, control and governance processes. On a regular
basis, it conducts audits on major activities and process of the
Group’s business and support units. It also conducts special reviews
or investigations of areas of concern identified by Management or
the Audit Committee. All audit reports are communicated to the Audit
Committee, Directors and key senior management. Audit issues are
tracked and followed up for proper implementation, with progress
reported to the Audit Committee, Directors and senior management
periodically.
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EXTERNAL AUDITORS

The Group’s independent external auditor is Ernst & Young. The
Audit Committee is responsible for the appointment of the external
auditors and reviewing the non-audit functions performed by the
external auditors for the Group. In particular, the Committee will,
prior to the execution of contract with the external auditors and
the commencement of their duties, consider whether the non-audit
functions will result in any potential material conflict of interest.

The related remuneration for the audit services provided by Ernst
& Young to the Group for the year ended 31 December 2011
amounted to RMB2,260,000.

The Board is satisfied with the audit fees, process and effectiveness
of Ernst & Young and has recommended their appointment as the
Company’s external auditors at the forthcoming AGM.

SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS OF DIRECTORS
The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in the Listing
Rules as the Company’s code of conduct regarding Directors
securities transactions (“Securities Trading Code”). A copy of
the Securities Trading Code is provided to all Directors on their
appointment. Reminder will be issued twice a year, being 30 days
prior to the Board meeting approving the Company’s interim results
and 60 days prior to the Board meeting approving the Company’s
annual results, reminding the Directors that they are not allowed
to trade on the Company’s securities prior to the announcement
of its results (the period during which the directors are prohibited
from dealing in shares) and that all transactions must comply with
the Securities Trading Code. Upon specific enquiries, all Directors
confirmed their strict compliance with the relevant provisions of the
Securities Trading Code throughout the year.

Senior management may be in possession of unpublished price-
sensitive information due to their duties within the Company, and
hence, is required to comply with the Securities Trading Code.
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INVESTORS RELATIONS AND
COMMUNICATION

The Board recognises the importance of communication with its
shareholders. Annual and interim reports offer comprehensive
operational and financial performance information to shareholders
and the AGM provides a forum for shareholders to express their
concerns directly to the Board.

QOur Investor Relations Department communicates with research
analysts and institutional investors in an on-going manner and
provides them with up-to-date and comprehensive information about
the Group’s strategies and development.

The Company also issues press releases from time to time
throughout the year and responds to requests for information and
queries from the investors. Current information on the Company
including interim and annual reports, announcements, press
releases and presentations material can be retrieved through our
Company’s website www.shenzhouintl.com. Information on the
website is updated in a timely manner to ensure that speed, fairness
and transparency of our disclosure. We recognize that not all
shareholders and stakeholders have ready access to the internet.
For those who do not, hard copies of those website information
listed above are available free of charge upon request to the
Company Secretary.

SHAREHOLDERS

Shenzhou International has a policy of open communication and
fair disclosure. Disclosure is a key means to enhance our corporate
governance standards, in that it provides our shareholders and
other stakeholders with the information necessary for them to form
their own judgment and to provide feedback to us. We understand
that more disclosure does not necessarily result in increased
transparency. The integrity of the information provided is essential for
building market confidence.
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The Board and Senior Management recognize their responsibility
to represent the interests of all shareholders and to maximize
shareholder value. Therefore, we strongly encourage shareholders
to put forward proposals at an AGM or Extraordinary General
Meeting (‘EGM”) including a written notice of those proposals that
could be addressed to the Company Secretary at the registered
office. Enquires may be put to the Board by contacting either the
Company Secretary through our hotline 852-2310-4919, email at
2313ir@shenzhougroup.com or directly by questions at an AGM or
EGM. Questions on the procedures for convening or putting forward
proposals at an AGM or EGM may also be put to the Company
Secretary by the same means.

Pursuant to the Articles of Association of the Company, any one or
more shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company
shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to the Board
or the Secretary of the Company, to require an extraordinary general
meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall be held within
two (2) months after the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-
one (21) days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene
such meeting the requesting member(s) himself (themselves) may do
so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requesting member(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the requesting member(s) by the Company.

We will continue to review and, where appropriate, improve on our
corporate governance practices in light of evolving experience,
regulatory requirements and international developments. Corporate
Governance is an evolving process. Good corporate governance is a
journey, rather than a final destination.

AMENDMENTS TO THE LISTING RULES AND
THE CG CODE

In light of the latest amendments to the Listing Rules and the
CG Code have come into effect on or before 1 April 2012, the
Company began incorporating such amendments into its corporate
governance practices on or before 1 April 2012 with a view to
improving its corporate governance in the future.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Ma Jianrong (5 #%8), aged 48, is an Executive Director
and the Chairman of the Group. He is responsible for the overall
business development strategy of the Group and has over 31
years of experience in the textile industry. Prior to joining the Group
in 1989, he worked for Shaoxing Cotton Mill ( 43 2 4% 45 & ) and
Hangzhou Linping Knitting and Garment Plant (/M B &1 4% iR 2
8% ) . After joining the Group, Mr. Ma served as the manager of the
knitting and weaving department, a deputy general manager and
the general manager of Ningbo Shenzhou Weaving Group Co., Ltd.
(“Ningbo Weaving”), the earliest operating entity of the Group. He
has been acting as the chairman of Ningbo Shenzhou Knitting Co.,
Ltd. (“Shenzhou Knitting”) since April 2005. He was appointed as
the chairman of the Nomination Committee on 1 April 2012. Mr. Ma
is a deputy to the People’s Congress of Zhejiang Province. He was
awarded with “Charity Model of Ningbo ( Z R mZ&Z#45) ”, “Charity
Prize of Zhejiang - Individual” (#7/L & 3 4% — & A #2) and “Prize for
Outstanding Charity Contribution in China” (R Bl % & 48)

Mr. Huang Guanlin (Z@@#) , aged 47, is an Executive Director
and the general manager of the Group. He is responsible for the daily
operations of the Group such as production, sales and marketing
and has over 24 years of experience in the textile industry. Mr.
Huang graduated from Zhejiang University of Technology (#7/T T %
X&) majoring in chemical industry management and engineering.
Prior to joining the Group in 1989, he worked for a silk knitting mill
in Yuhang County, Zhejiang Province. After joining the Group, Mr.
Huang worked as the manager and a deputy general manager of the
production and operation department of Ningbo Weaving. He has
been acting as the general manager of Shenzhou Knitting since April
2005. Mr. Huang was the chairman of the Nomination Committee
during the period from October 2005 to March 2012. He is the
brother-in-law of Mr. Ma Jianrong.
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Mr. Ma Renhe (F1=f1), aged 52, is an Executive Director and
a deputy general manager of the Group. He is responsible for
administration, dyeing and finishing affairs of the Group and has
over 35 years of experience in textile industry. Prior to joining the
Group in 1989, he worked for Shaoxing Cotton Mill and Hangzhou
Linping Knitting and Garment Plant. After joining the Group, Mr. Ma
worked as the manager and a deputy general manager of the dyeing
and finishing department of Ningbo Weaving. He has been acting
as a deputy general manager of Shenzhou Knitting since May 2002.
From October 2005 to March 2012, Mr. Ma was also the chairman
of the Remuneration Committee and subsequently redesignated as
a member of the Remuneration Committee. He is a cousin of Mr. Ma
Jianrong (his father and Mr. Ma Jianrong’s father are brothers).

Ms. Zheng Miaohui (B #&) , aged 57, is an Executive Director
and a deputy general manager of the Group. She is responsible for
the financial management of the Group and has over 27 years of
experience in financial management and obtained an accountant
qualification certificate. After joining the Group in 1988, Ms. Zheng
served as the manager and an assistant to the general manager of
the finance department of Ningbo Weaving. She has been acting as
a deputy general manager of Shenzhou Knitting since April 2005.

Mr. Wang Cunbo (E#%), aged 40, joined the Group as the
Department Head of the Finance Department of the Group and
the Financial Controller of Shenzhou Knitting in May 2004. He
was appointed as a Director of the Group in 2011. He graduated
from Zhejiang University of Technology (#7;T T2 K& ), majoring
in biology and chemical engineering, with a bachelor’s degree in
engineering in 1995. In the same year, Mr. Wang studied at Zhejiang
University of Technology where he obtained a master’s degree in
management in 1998. In addition, he has obtained the certificates of
the PRC certified public accountant, the PRC registered tax agent
and the PRC certified public valuer and senior accountant and the
operating permit of the PRC public certified accountant engaged in
securities and futures-related business. Prior to joining the Group, he
was a partner of Ningbo Tianjian Yongde United Accounting Firm ( 2
WREKER A €A S I5FT) , deputy general manager of Ningbo
Yongde Corporate Management and Consulting Firm ( 225 sk & 1> %
EIBFEBERFT) , and has over 6 years of experience in acting as
certified accountant.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Chen Zhongjing (B £ &), aged 50, is a Non-Executive
Director. Mr. Chen has 30 years of management experience in
administrative affairs. He has obtained a certificate of corporate
human resources manager. He worked for the People’s Government
of Ningbo City, and served as the head of Beilun District Committee
Office of CCP (R It @BEZ W AZE L), secretary of Dagi
Township Committee of CCP (R HE KIREZEZER), a deputy
head of the Management Committee of Ningbo Beilun Technology
Park (Z It mBIHEBEREZ®EIE1), a deputy co-ordinating
major mechanical and electrical projects under the Ningbo
government (2 E MIFEREEH B M AZE& EE) . Currently,
Mr. Chen is a Vice Chairman of the Ningbo Development Zone
Holding Group ( %% # @ E & B ) and he is a General Manager
of the Ningbo Economic & Technical Development Zone Jinfan Co.,
Ltd. (B EFAEEESNIEEABR2AF). Mr. Chen is the chairman
of both Ningbo Economic & Technical Development Zone Dangang
Development Co., Ltd. (%)% 2% & K& B R A7) and Ningbo
Jin Shi Microfinance Joint Stock Co. (B¢ A/NEERKRH A
Al) . Mr. Chen was a deputy general manager of Ningbo Shenzhou
Knitting Co., Ltd. in September 2003. He was appointed as an
Executive Director and a deputy general manager of the Company in
October 2005. On 8 February 2010, he was re-designated as a Non-
executive Director of the Company.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Dai Xiangbo (& # %) , aged 50, joined the Group in July 2005
as an Independent Non-executive Director, the Chairman of the
Audit Committee, and a member of the Remuneration Committee
and Nomination Committee. He graduated from Jiangxi University
of Finance and Economics (T 758 48 K2 ) in 1984, majoring in
industrial accounting. He also obtained postgraduate qualification
from the Party School of the Central Committee of C.P.C. (FF &
E ), majoring in economics. Mr. Dai has obtained PRC certified
accountant and senior accountant certificates. He currently serves
as the officer of Zhejing Accounting Service Center I T & &5t A
ERHHL), a professor specially retained by Zhejiang Finance
School at Accounting College (/T Bf 48 27 & 51 26 ) and a fellow
member of the Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(P EFMEestAiHE) . He also serves as an independent non-
executive director of the Haitian International Holdings Ltd. (/&%
B RIERR B R A F]) (its shares are listed on the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange) and the Zhejiang Dilong New Material Co. Ltd. (J#/T 75 &8
MR D BBR A 7)) (its shares are listed on the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange). Mr. Dai served as the division head of the Industrial and
Trade Audit Division of the Audit Bureau in Zhejiang Province (T
EEHBIXELE), the deputy director of the Audit Bureau in
Xianju County, Zhejiang Province I/ T & L/E B ETB) |, the deputy
head of the legal system division of Audit Office in Zhejiang Province
(W& EETEEARE ) and the deputy secretary of Zhejiang Certified
Public Accountant Association (HT)T & = Z &M% E) . Mr. Dai
resigned all positions of the Group in April 2012.
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Mr. Jiang Xianpin (B E fm), aged 47, studied accounting in
Southwestern University of Finance and Economics, the People’s
Republic of China (“PRC”) (78R &1 £ X2 ) from 1982 to 1986 and
obtained a bachelor degree in Economics majoring in accounting.
Mr. Jiang started teaching at Zhejiang University of Technology (3iff
STT ¥ KE) since 1986 and is currently a professor in the School
of Economics, Trade and Management (4% & & ¥ 2% ) of Zhejiang
University of Technology. Mr. Jiang is also a key teaching staff in
the University’s MBA Education Centre and has been engaged
by the Science Technology Department of Zhejiang Province (J#
STA BRI EE) as its special finance expert. Mr. Jiang is the vice
president of the Association of Credit Assessment and Management
of Hangzhou, PRC (#i/NT{EAEE#H &), a director of Institute
of Finance Engineering, Zhejiang Province, PRC (/T & ¢ @l T2
B2 ) and the chief financial adviser to MM B EEEERNA A,
Mr. Jiang was appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director
and the Chairman of the Audit Committee and a member of the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee on 1 April
2012.

Mr. Chen Genxiang (PR %), aged 63, has over 42 years of
experience in the textile industry. Mr. Chen obtained a certificate
of dyeing and finishing engineer from L&&t44 A BB T K2, Mr.
Chen joined the Company’s subsidiary, Ningbo Shenzhou Knitting
Co., Ltd, in 1993. Mr. Chen worked for the Group until 2007 and
was the deputy general manager of Ningbo Shenzhou Knitting
Co., Ltd. responsible for the product development of the Group
until 2007 when he left the Group for retirement. Prior to joining
the Group in 1993, Mr. Chen served as an assistant to the factory
manager of Shanghai Knitting No. 20 Plant and a deputy general
manager of Shanghai Baoye Knitting Company Limited. Mr. Chen
joined the Group in August 2011 as an Independent Non-executive
Director, and a member of the Remuneration Committee and Audit
Committee. He was promoted to the Chairman of the Remuneration
Committee in April 2012.

Mr. Zong Pingsheng (R4 ) , aged 78, joined the Group in July
2005 as an Independent Non-executive Director, and a member
of the Audit Committee and the Nomination Committee. Mr. Zong
was employed as a teacher of the textile engineering faculty at
Southern Yangtze University (JLFA2) (formerly known as Wuxi
College of Light Industry (588 T 3 &% ) and Wuxi University of

professor in 1987. Mr. Zong has been awarded a special government
allowance by the State Council in 1992.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. CHAN Tak Hing, Keniji (BRE ) , aged 41, joined the Group in
September 2008. Now, he is the Financial Controller and Company
Secretary of the Group. Mr. Chan has over 16 years of experience
in auditing, financial controlling, company secretary and accounting.
Mr. Chan holds a Master Degree in Business Administration and
a Degree in Master of Science in China Business Management.
Mr. Chan is also a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants, an associate member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a Certified Tax Adviser in
Hong Kong and an associate member of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England & Wales.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Hu Jijun (#84 &) , aged 43, is a deputy general manager of
the Group. He is responsible for sales and marketing of the Group
and has 22 years of sales and marketing experience in the Japanese
knitwear market. After joining the Group in September 1989, Mr.
Hu worked at the production and operation department of Ningbo
Weaving as the deputy manager and an assistant to the general
manager, responsible for export sales. He has been acting as a
deputy general manager of Shenzhou Knitting since April 2005.

Mr. Chen Lan (FR/&E) , aged 46, is a deputy general manager of
the Group, responsible for the procurement of raw materials, such
as cotton yarn, and information management, and has over 23 years
of experience in textile industry. After joining the Group in July 1989,
he served as the manager of the weaving department, the deputy
manager of the production and operation department, the manager
of the raw materials procurement department and an assistant to the
general manager of Ningbo Weaving and an assistant to the general
manager of the Group.

Mr. Gu Chaoquan (EE#A# ) , aged 50, is a deputy general manager
of the Group, responsible for the production planning of the Group,
and has over 24 years of experience in textile industry. Prior to
joining the Group in 1989, he worked for the government of Beilun
District, Ningbo City, China. Mr. Gu served as the deputy head of
the office, the manager of the garment manufacturing department,
the manager of the No. 1 garment manufacturing department ( £1%
—&F) , assistant to the general manager of Ningbo Weaving and an
assistant to the general manager of the Group.
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Ms. Chen Zhifen (BR=Z %) , aged 43, is a deputy general manager
of the Group, responsible for all garment manufacturing department,
and has over 22 years of experience in textile industry. After joining
the Group in April 1990, she worked as the section chief, the
manager of its garment manufacturing department, the manager
of the No. 2 and No. 6 garment manufacturing departments,
an assistant to the general manager of Ningbo Weaving and an
assistant to the general manager of the Group. During the period
from September 2000 to June 2003, Ms. Chen studied in Naval
University of Engineering (/8% T2 X2 ), majoring in management
engineering.

Mr. Yan Delin (&%), aged 57, is a deputy general manager
of the Group, in charge of the daily administration affairs and its
Cambodian operations of the Group and has over 24 years of
experience in textile industry. He has obtained the certificate of
assistant economist. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Yan worked as
the head of the equipment division of Hangzhou Linping Knitting and
Garment Plant, the head of its office, and a deputy general manager
of joint venture companies under Yuhang Cooperative Office (X1
WIEM R E
a Cambodian company under the Yuhang Cooperative Office. After

, during which, he served as the general manager of

joining the Group in October 1999, Mr. Yan worked as the deputy
head of the office of Ningbo Weaving and has been acting as an
assistant to the general manager of Shenzhou Knitting since May
2005. He graduated from the Correspondence College at the Party
School of the Central Committee of CCP majoring in economic
management.

Mr. Jiang Tao (JI3&), aged 45, is an assistant to the general
manager of the Group and the departmental manager of No. 1 sales
department of Shenzhou Knitting, and has 17 years of experience in
knitting and weaving industry. Mr. Jiang graduated from the faculty of
English at Shanghai University ( _E/8 X&), majoring in English for
international trade. Prior to joining the Group, he worked at Shanghai
Dongfang Rimian Company Limited ( £/ 5 B4 G R A R]) . After
joining the Group in October 1998, Mr. Jiang served as an assistant
to the general manager of Ningbo Weaving and was responsible for
the sales to Uniglo.
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Mr. Cui Jifeng (E£428), aged 48, is an assistant to the general
manager of the Group, responsible for technology and quantity
affairs, and has over 24 years of experience in textile industry. Prior
to joining the Group in 1990, he worked as the deputy factory
manager of Ningbo Beilun Garments Plant (Z & 1t & AR ZE B in
charge of technology. Mr. Cui served as the deputy manager of the
production and operation department and an assistant to the general
manager of Ningbo Weaving.

Mr. Hu Yonghai (#k#§) , aged 46, is an assistant to the
general manager of the Group, responsible for the affairs of fabric
technology, and has over 23 years of experience in textile industry.
He has obtained the certificate of assistant economist. Mr. Hu
graduated from Zhejiang Industrial University (35T T % K 2) with
a bachelor’s degree in industrial management engineering. He
joined the Group immediately after graduation and worked as the
assistant manager, deputy manager of the production and operation
department and an assistant to the general manager of Ningbo
Weaving, responsible for the affairs in connection with fabrics and
technology.

Mr. Pan Lianghua (B R #), aged 57, is an assistant to the
general manager of the Group, responsible for the knitting and
weaving operations of the Group, and has 37 years of experience
in the textile industry. He graduated from a self-study course of the
China Central Radio and TV University (R R E 18 X&) in 1987,
majoring in production operation management. Mr. Pan has served
as the deputy factory manager of Shanghai Knitting’s 20th Plant ( t
EBET4E — 1+ /) , in charge of the technology department, and the
deputy head of the technology division of _b & =18 5= @&1 4% N,
After joining the Group in January 1999, he served as the deputy
manager of the dyeing and finishing department of Ningbo Weaving
and was responsible for production and quality control.
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Mr. Ma Bin ( E#2) , aged 41, joined the Group in 2001. Currently,
he is an assistant to the general manager and the departmental
manager of No. 2 sales department of the Group. He is fully in
charge of the operation and project management and customer
relationship maintenance of the NIKE business department. Mr. Ma
has 12 years of experience in the textile industry. After joining the
Group, he participated in the formation of the Shenzhou Department
of European and U.S. Business and was responsible for targeting
potential customers. He has been responsible for the NIKE business
since early 2005. In January 2009, he was appointed as an assistant
to the Group’s general manager. He graduated from the Department
of Electronic Engineering of the Fudan University and later obtained
his SUFE-Webster joint MBA from the MBA School of Shanghai
University of Finance and Economics. Before joining the Group, Mr.
Ma served as the business development manager of the Sealand
Securities.

Mr. Song Qing (RE), aged 42, is an assistant to the general
manager and the departmental manager of No. 3 sales department
of the Group. He is chiefly responsible for the general management
and system construction of the No. 3 sales department of the Group.
He assists the general manager with other aspects of operations
and has 14 years of experience in the textile industry. In 1994,
Mr. Song graduated from the Department of Computer Science
and Technology of the Northwestern Polytechnical University. He
obtained a Master of Technology from the National University of
Singapore in 2005 and received an NTU-SJTU Joint Executive MBA
(EMBA) Programme in 2008. Joining the Group in January 2007, Mr.
Song has 10 years of work experience in Singapore. Beginning in
1997, he worked as a senior software development engineer for a
software development firm for a year. In 1998, he joined 7k #E T Z£ 7,
ABBR A F] of the textile industry and served as its IT Manager and
Chief Information Officer (CIO) successively.

Mr. Xu Huiguo (22 El]) , aged 59, joined the Group in 2011. He is
currently an assistant to the general manager of the Group in charge
of the administrative affairs of the Group. Mr. Xu has over 41 years of
experience in administration and management. Mr. Xu has obtained
an undergraduate qualification in economic management from the
Party School of the Central Committee of C.P.C. and is a qualified
engineer. Prior to joining the Group, he has been the team leader of
the wiring team (£ #&F%) of Ningbo Electricity Bureau ( Z % & %
/@), a manager and the secretary of the party branch of 2 & &
®EZH A7), the general manager of ZE K& E N F], the chief
of Beilun District Electricity Bureau (3t #t % F) and the general
manager of Ningbo Mingyao Environmental Thermal Power Co., Ltd.
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The Directors of Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) have pleasure in submitting their report together with
the audited financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2011.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND GEOGRAPHICAL
ANALYSIS OF OPERATIONS

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
primary activities of the subsidiaries are set out in note 18 to the
financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by business
and geographical segments is set out in note 4 to the financial
statements and the Management Discussion and Analysis section.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2011 and
the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at that date
are set out in the financial statements on page 71 to 183.

The Directors recommend a payment of a final dividend of HK$0.50
(equivalent to approximately RMBO0.41) per share for the year
ended 31 December 2011, subject to shareholders’ approval at the
forthcoming annual general meeting to be held on 29 May 2012,
to the shareholders whose names appeared on the Register of
Members of the Company at the close of business on 8 June 2012.

No interim dividend was declared for the six months ended 30 June
2011.

There was no arrangement under which a shareholder of the
Company had waived or agreed to waive any dividend during the
year ended 31 December 2011.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and of
the Group during the year are set out in note 29 to the financial
statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in equity,
respectively.

DONATIONS

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the year
amounted to RMB6,074,000.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group are set out in note 15 to the financial statements.
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SHARE CAPITAL

There were no movements in either the Company’s authorised or
issued share capital during the year.

On 13 April 2012, the Company entered into an agreement with
Keep Glory Limited and Credit Suisse (Hong Kong) Limited in respect
of placing of the shares of the Company (“Placing Agreement”).
According to the Placing Agreement, the Company will place
85,000,000 Shares (“Placing Shares”) to independent third parties
by way of top-up placing at HK$13.80 per Placing Share. Upon the
completion of Placing, the net assets of the Group will increase by
HK$1,158,750,000 (before dividends for Placing Shares). At the
same time, however, the dividend for the entire year of 2011 will
increase by HK$42,500,000. The above influences on the Group’s
financial statements are not reflected in the 2011 annual financial
statements and other parts of this annual report. Details of the
Placing are set out in the announcement of the Company dated 16
April 2012 and Events after the reporting period in Management
Discussion and Analysis of this annual report.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company as at 31 December 2011,
calculated in accordance with the Companies Law Cap. 22 (Law
3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands,
amounted to RMB517,395,000, of which RMB504,661,000 has
been proposed as final dividend for the year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association and there was no restriction under the laws
of Cayman Islands, which would oblige the Company to offer such
rights on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders during new shares
issue.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the
last five financial years is set out on page 184.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities shares
during the year ended 31 December 2011.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

No share option scheme was operated by the Company as at 31
December 2011.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of the report were:

Executive Directors:
Mr. Ma Jianrong
Mr. Huang Guanlin
Mr. Ma Renhe
Ms. Zheng Miaohui
Mr. Wang Cunbo
(appointed on 30 May 2011)

Non-executive Director:
Mr. Chen Zhongjing

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Chen Genxiang
(appointed on 16 August 2011)
Mr. Dai Xiangbo
(resigned on 1 April 2012)
Mr. Jiang Xianpin
(appointed on 1 April 2012)
Mr. Su Shounan
(resigned on 16 August 2011)
Mr. Zong Pingsheng

In accordance with Article 86(3) of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Mr. Wang Cunbo, Mr. Chen Genxiang and Mr. Jiang
Xianpin will retire at the retire at the forthcoming annual general
meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

In accordance with Article 87(1) and 81(2) of the Company’s Articles
of Association, Mr. Huang Guanlin and Mr. Chen Zhongjing shall
retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

The Independent Non-executive Directors are appointed for terms
of three years. The Company has received annual confirmations of
independence from Mr. Su Shounan, Mr. Jiang Xianpin, Mr. Chen
Genxiang, Mr. Zong Pingsheng and Mr. Dai Xiangbo and as at the
date of this report still considers them to be independent.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the Executive Directors has entered into a service
contract with the Company for a term of three years which will be
automatically renewed for another term of three years until it is
terminated pursuant to the terms of the service contract. According
to the service contract, it may be terminated at any time by either
party giving the other party not less than three months’ prior written
notice.

Each of the Independent Non-executive Directors has entered
into a service contract with the Company for a term of three years
which will be automatically renewed for another term of three years
until it is terminated pursuant to the terms of the service contract.
According to the service contract, it may be terminated at any time
by the Independent Non-executive Director giving not less than three
months’ prior written notice.

The Non-executive Director has entered into a service contract with
the Company for a term of one year which will be automatically
renewed for another term of one year until it is terminated. According
to the service contract, it may be terminated at any time by either the
Non-executive Director or the Company by giving not less than one
month’s prior written notice.

Under the service contracts, each of the Executive Directors is
entitled to an annual discretionary management bonus as the
Remuneration Committee of the Board may approve, provided that
the aggregate amount of the discretionary management bonuses
payable to all Executive Directors in respect of any financial year of
the Group would not exceed 5% of the net profits of the Group after
taxation and minority interests and less the aggregate amount of the
discretionary management bonuses but before non-recurring items
for the relevant financial year.

REMUNERATION OF THE DIRECTORS

Details of the remuneration of the Directors are set out in note 8 to
the financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed under the heading “Connected transactions”
below and “Related party transactions” in note 35 to the financial
statements, no Director had a material interest, either directly or
indirectly, in any contract of significance to the business of the Group
to which the Company, or any of its holding companies, subsidiaries
or fellow subsidiaries was a party during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the year ended 31 December 2011, none of the directors of
the Company had any interest in any competing business with the
Company or any of its subsidiaries.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details of directors of the Company and senior
management of the Group are set out on pages 50 to 57.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE
SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2011, the interests and short positions of
the directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)) which were notified to
the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including interests and short positions which was taken or
deemed to be held by any such director or chief executive under
such provisions of the SFO) and were recorded in the register
maintained by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO,
or which were notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Companies (“Model Code”) contained in the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”), were as follows:

RAEATNEBERPZFR Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company
HAEQR S BT
£ W3 SHREZER ii&vig - Q=] B4 E 5 (%)
Percentage of
the Issued Share
Capacity and Capital of
Name Notes  Nature of Interest Number of Shares the Company
BEELE 1 NAIER 776,332,500 62.36%
Mr. Ma Jianrong 1 Corporate interests 776,332,500 62.36%
BLEMEE 2 NAER 111,217,500 8.93%
Mr. Ma Renhe Corporate interests 111,217,500 8.93%
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Note:

1. As at 31 December 2011, 776,332,500 Shares were held by Keep
Glory Limited (“Keep Glory”), a company incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands with limited liability, which in turn was owned as to
80.25% by Splendid Steed Investments Limited (“Splendid Steed”),
13.95% by BMX (HK) LTD. (“BMX”) and 5.8% by Super China
Enterprises Limited (“Super China”). Splendid Steed, a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited liability, is wholly
owned by Mr. Ma Jianrong. BMX, a company incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands with limited liability, is wholly owned by Mr. Huang
Guanlin (brother-in-law of Mr. Ma Jianrong and son-in-law of Mr. Ma
Baoxing). Super China, a company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands with limited liability, is wholly owned by Mr. Ma Baoxing (father
of Mr. Ma Jianrong). By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Ma Jianrong is deemed
to be interested in the 776,332,500 Shares held by Keep Glory.

2. As at 31 December 2011, 111,217,500 Shares were held by Fairco
Group Limited (“Fairco”), a company incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands with limited liability, which in turn was owned as to
68.08% by MCC Group Ltd (“MCC”) and 31.92% by certain senior
management of the Group including Ms. Zheng Miaohui and Mr. Wang
Cunbo (executive Directors) and Mr. Chen Zhongjing (a non-executive
Director). MCC, a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands
with limited liability, is wholly owned by Mr. Ma Renhe, an executive
Director and a cousin of Mr. Ma Jianrong. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Ma
Renhe is deemed to be interested in the 111,217,500 Shares held by
Fairco.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2011, none of the
directors and chief executive of the Company had or was deemed to
have any interests or short position in the shares, underlying shares
or debentures of the Company and its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO), which were recorded in
the register maintained by the Company pursuant to section 352
of the SFO or which were notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

At no time during the year was the Company, or any of its holding
companies, its subsidiaries or its fellow subsidiaries a party to any
arrangement to enable the directors and chief executives of the
Company (including their spouse and children under 18 years of age)
to hold any interests or short positions in the shares or underlying
shares in, or debentures of, the Company or its associated
corporation.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES OF
THE COMPANY

At 31 December 2011, the following persons who held interests of
5% or more of the issued share capital of the Company, other than
directors of the Company, were recorded in the register of members
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the
SFO:

RAEARATNEBERDPZHE Long position in ordinary shares of the Company
HARATRE BT
=x iz S REZER ROEE IRZ 8 7 b (%)
Percentage of
the Issued Share
Capacity and Capital of
Name Notes  Nature of Interest Number of Shares the Company
TES 1 E=mEAA 776,332,500 62.36%
Splendid Steed 1 Beneficial owner 776,332,500 62.36%
S 1 NEIR £ 776,332,500 62.36%
Keep Glory 1 Corporate interests 776,332,500 62.36%
] 2 EnEEA 111,217,500 8.93%
Fairco 2 Beneficial owner 111,217,500 8.93%
MCC 2 NGRS 111,217,500 8.93%
MCC 2 Corporate interests 111,217,500 8.93%

B 5 Notes:

R-ZT——E+-_A=+—8 H&E(—XK
REBRABEEMRAIZERAFEE
776,332,50088f% 15 - T 25 - BMX K F| £
Bl 5> Bl A 7% A 7180.25% ~ 13.95% 25.8%
ZHEFE-TES (—RREBEXEESEM
R ZBRARHEELEERERE -
BUX (—RREBREZHESEMAZ AR
NRHEBEBAMEEZERSE - FZE (—RRN
HBRELZHEEAMA L ERAR)AEE
FRE (BBRRAEZRB)2EEE 1R
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1. As at 31 December 2011, 776,332,500 Shares were held by Keep
Glory, a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with
limited liability, which in turn was owned as to 80.25% by Splendid
Steed, 13.95% by BMX and 5.8% by Super China. Splendid Steed, a
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited liability,
is wholly owned by Mr. Ma Jianrong. BMX, a company incorporated
in the British Virgin Islands with limited liability, is wholly owned by Mr.
Huang Guanlin. Super China, a company incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands with limited liability, is wholly owned by Mr. Ma Baoxing
(father of Mr. Ma Jianrong). By virtue of the SFO, Splendid Steed is
deemed to be interested in the 776,332,500 Shares held by Keep
Glory.
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2. As at 31 December 2011, 111,217,500 Shares were held by Fairco, a
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited liability,
which in turn was owned as to 68.08% by MCC and 31.92% by
certain senior management of the Group including Ms. Zheng Miaohui
and Mr. Wang Cunbo (executive Directors) and Mr. Chen Zhongjing (a
non-executive Director). MCC, a company incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands with limited liability, is wholly owned by Mr. Ma Renhe,
an executive Director and a cousin of Mr. Ma Jianrong. By virtue of the
SFO, MCC is deemed to be interested in the 111,217,500 Shares held
by Fairco.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2011, no person, other
than the directors of the Company, whose interests are set out in the
section headed “Directors and Chief Executives’ interests and short
positions in the shares of the Company” above, had interest or short
position in the shares and underlying shares of the Company that
was required to be recorded pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

The percentages of purchases and sales for the year ended 31
December 2011 attributable to the Group’s major suppliers and
customers are as follows:

HEREEZ hHiEEEZ
B 7 (%) B 7t (%)
Percentage of Percentage of
Purchases (%) Sales (%)
BAEER,/BFE The largest supplier/customer 10.2 23.9
AAREER TEAF Five largest suppliers/customers
combined 30.1 79.9
NERTRERE BHEss - mEsBe A+ None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholder (which

SEARR (REFEHMAEEARNRASGRNU £
BEAR)RZETBZHEBTXREFEE T ME

2z
m °
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to the knowledge of the directors owns more than 5% of the
Company’s share capital) had an interest in the major suppliers or
customers at all times during the year.

RMBEREBRIZERARAR 65

Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited



EEERE
Report of the Directors

BEXS

IR EMARANE

TAAZ R BRI - £ H H5 5

KM IS EEM E THE A X5 BB LT

MBI BERER S - ATHEEAT (IR

ETRAIER) BARRETH TR SEE

RN/ EET MARREAEERER
RAMIEL BB -

1 HEREXS

a.

66

HEETFLEYWENRE

RABZ2EN B AR ZF R M
BARAR ([HMHE]) R _F
—EBE+ A -+ —HHEZEKH
MEXBRRAR ([RMNEZE]F
A HEERE B RNEE
AR S EY MR T RN B
HRE-—_T——F—A—HZE=Z
—=F+=-AZ=+—81 " BNt
BAIITE AR R ERSERE
BmEHSENINER=F([HE
Wpak]) o RIMNSTEE I AA TRMNEE
TOR=EAMBMAR TR E R
o LA mMBEERBMES -
SRR EERT A EGKBRE
PIRE—MRAEAEGER B E=
FHEEREUYEREERENTIS
HETFUAEE - AMNEZE BT
EERRREERBEALER
REBEIREBRAR ([REE
2 1) DRI HEA80%NM20%E
BIEEMRAIE14A11(4) KBRS
BAT - AFEARN - ANEE R AN
EEHAITNHEE ARK?,262,000

ﬁo

RMNBERERZERBERAR

Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Certain related party transactions as disclosed in note 35 to
the financial statements also constituted continuing connected

transactions under the Listing Rules,

required to be disclosed in

accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The following
transactions between certain connected parties (as defined in the
Listing Rules) and the Company have been entered into and/or
are ongoing for which relevant disclosure had been made by the
Company in the Prospectus and announcements.

1. Continuing connected transactions

a.

Lease of certain production premises and facilities
Ningbo Shenzhou Knitting Co., Ltd. (“Shenzhou Knitting”),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and Ningbo
Shenzhou Properties Co., Ltd. (“Shenzhou Properties”)
entered into a lease agreement on 21 December 2010,
pursuant to which Shenzhou Properties leased to
Shenzhou Knitting the apparel production properties for
a period commencing on 1 January 2011 and expiring on
31 December 2013, with a right of renewal exercisable by
Shenzhou Knitting for a further term of three years at or
below the prevailing market rate (the “Lease Agreement”).
The Lease Agreement is terminable by Shenzhou Knitting
giving no less than three months’ notice to Shenzhou
Properties. The rental so charged by Shenzhou Properties
is determined by reference to the market rates for
leasing similar properties and production facilities from
independent third parties under normal commercial terms
during the course of ordinary business in Ningbo, China.
Shenzhou Properties, which is owned as to 80% by
Mr. Ma Jianrong, an Executive Director, and as to 20%
by Ningbo Rongrong Industrial Investment Company
Limited (“Rongrong Industrial”), an associate, is therefore
a connected person by virtue of Rule 14A.11(4) of the
Listing Rules. During the year, rentals paid to Shenzhou
Properties by the Group amounted to RMB7,262,000.
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Provision of cutting and sewing services

Shenzhou Knitting and ZF H Mt B4 ER A
7] (Ningbo Shenzhou Shitong Knitwear Co. Ltd.*)
(“Shenzhou Shitong”) entered into a processing services
agreement (the “Processing Services Agreement”) dated
21 December 2010, pursuant to which, Shenzhou
Shitong agreed to provide the Group with certain cutting
services for a period commencing on 1 January 2011
and expiring on 31 December 2013 at a rate of service
charges ranging from RMBO0.8 per piece to RMB1.0
per piece, depending on the technology involved. The
related charges are determined with reference to the
current market prices charged by independent suppliers
for the provision of cutting services of knitted garments.
Shenzhou Shitong, which is indirectly owned by Worldon
as to 80% interest and owned by Rongrong Industrial
as to the remaining 20% interest, is a connected person
by virtue of Rule 14A.11(4) of the Listing Rules. During
the year, the processing services fees paid to Shenzhou
Shitong by the Group amounted to RMB10,830,000.

Supply of packaging materials

Shenzhou Knitting and Shaoxing County Huaxi Packaging
Materials Company Limited (“Huaxi Packaging Company”)
entered into a supply agreement (the “Packaging Material
Supply Agreement”) dated 21 December 2010, pursuant
to which, Huaxi Packaging Company agreed to supply
packaging materials to the Group from time to time on
normal commercial terms which are no less favorable
than those available from independent third parties.
The Packaging Material Supply Agreement is for a term
commencing on 1 January 2011 to 31 December 2013.
Huaxi Packaging Company is owned as to 87.5% by
Mr. Huang Guanquan, who is the younger brother of Mr.
Huang Guanlin, an Executive Director, and as to 12.5%
by Mr. Huang Fuchang, who is the father of Mr. Huang
Guanlin. Huaxi Packaging Company is a connected
person by virtue of Rule 14A.11(4) of the Listing Rule.
During the year, the amount paid to Huaxi Packaging
Company by the Group for the purchases of packaging
materials totalled to RMB36,046,000.

*

for identification purpose only
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The Independent Non-executive Directors have reviewed
the aforesaid continuing connected transactions and
confirmed that the aforesaid transactions had been
entered into (1) in the ordinary and usual course of
business of the Group; (2) either on normal commercial
terms or on terms no less favorable to the Company than
terms available to or from independent third parties; and
(8) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing
such transactions on terms that are fair and reasonable
and in the interests of the shareholders of the Company
as a whole.

Based on the work performed, the auditors of the
Company have provided a letter, confirming that nothing
has come to their attention that cause them to believe
that the aforesaid continuing connected transactions
(1) have not been approved by the board of directors
of the Company; (2) are not, in all material respects, in
accordance with the pricing policies of the Group; (3)
have not been entered into, in all material respects, in
accordance with the terms of the relevant agreements
governing the transactions; and (4) have exceeded
the maximum aggregate annual value disclosed in the
previous announcement dated 21 December 2010 made
by the Company.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the directors, at least 25% of the
Company’s total issued share capital was held by the public as at
the date of this report.

AUDITORS

Ernst & Young has audited the financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2011. A resolution for the re-appointment of
Ernst & Young as auditors of the Company will be proposed at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

By Order of the Board

Chairman

Ma Jianrong

Hong Kong, 26 March 2012
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To the shareholders of

Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted company with
limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Shenzhou
International Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set out on pages 71 to 183,
which comprise the consolidated and company statements of
financial position as at 31 December 2011, and the consolidated
income statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. Our report is made solely
to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.
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We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors
consider internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the
Group as at 31 December 2011, and of the Group’s profit and
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
22nd Floor

CITIC Tower

1 Tim Mei Avenue, Central
Hong Kong

26 March 2012
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Consolidated Income Statement

HE_ZT——F+-_A=1+—HILFE Forthe Year Ended 31 December 2011

—F——F —T-FF
2011 2010
B 7 AR¥ T ARET T
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
'ON REVENUE 5 9,043,442 6,719,172
55 B AR Cost of sales (6,441,605) (4,713,001)
EH Gross profit 2,601,837 2,006,171
E AU A R Wz Other income and gains 5 180,505 201,207
$H & &9 HEK A Selling and distribution costs (106,239) (96,932)
THAX Administrative expenses (516,241) (426,376)
=i Other expenses (49,199) (23,636)
Bl & B AR Finance costs 7 (51,243) (35,837)
R %4 51 F PROFIT BEFORE TAX 6 2,059,420 1,624,597
FTSBiF X Income tax expense 11 (354,573) (351,952)
FEERE PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 1,704,847 1,272,645
AT AT LR Attributable to:
IS/NEIE ¥ =N Owners of the parent 12 1,703,845 1,271,654
FE 12 ) 1 FE 2 Non-controlling interests 1,002 991
1,704,847 1,272,645
BATREERKEIEE A EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE
EhEesRAER TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS
OF THE PARENT 14
HAR Basic AR¥1.37t AR®1.027T
—FEFH — For profit for the year RMB1.37 RMB1.02
g Diluted i A 3 A
— [ FHE — For profit for the year N/A N/A

FREEMMBRREZFBENATEHREN Details of the dividends payable and proposed for the year are
FE13H 5 o disclosed in note 13 to the financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

HE_ZT——F+-_A=1+—HILFE Forthe Year Ended 31 December 2011

—EB-—-F —E-TF
2011 2010
B 5 AR TR ARETTT
Note RMB’000 RMB’'000
FEFHE PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 1,704,847 1,272,645
Hit 2 H WK &= OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
BEMEE Cash flow hedges:
FEEEHAHAIA Effective portion of changes in fair value of
NUIEE=F) d hedging instruments arising during the
B year 25 66,994 70,150
HR G BmEK Reclassification adjustments for gains
R W2 recognised in consolidated income
B O BARE statement 25 (106,638) (42,182)
(39,644) 27,968
HWMEIEINEFS ZE =% Exchange differences on translation of
foreign operations (4,131) 1,093
FEHM2ME (KE), OTHER COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS)/
Wi (BRBLR) INCOME FOR THE YEAR,
NET OF TAX (43,775) 29,061
FE2EWEHE TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR 1,661,072 1,301,706
AT AT MR- Attributable to:
NEEBA Owners of the parent 1,660,070 1,300,715
FE 2 ) 14 e m Non-controlling interests 1,002 991
1,661,072 1,301,706
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

—ET——%+=-H=+—H 31 December 2011

—E——F —E-FF
2011 2010
B o AR¥E T ARBEF T
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
EREBEE NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Y% - B k& Property, plant and equipment 15 2,974,958 2,991,017
A T B EFKIE Prepaid land lease payments 16 547,407 478,506
EmREE Intangible assets 17 109,728 115,961
REFIEE E Deferred tax assets 27 2,224 =
HBIEMENE E Total non-current assets 3,634,317 3,585,484
REEE CURRENT ASSETS
FE Inventories 19 1,952,814 1,808,784
G S Trade and bills receivables 20 1,313,646 897,211
FENFIE EHE R Prepayments, deposits and other
b e W SR IE receivables 21 301,730 382,049
MEEMTEAE Derivative financial instruments 25 27,331 107,884
M FEZEE=1@A 2  Bank deposits with initial term of
RIT1F 5K over three months 290,125 125,026
RekReZEEY Cash and cash equivalents 22 1,029,596 519,017
BRENE E Total current assets 4,915,242 3,839,971
=R CURRENT LIABILITIES
JER RN R 2B Trade and bills payables 23 490,838 486,856
T8 U BR =X Advances from customers 30,681 53,060
H b JE A FXIE K 5T 7KXIE  Other payables and accruals 24 406,440 376,638
PTESMITA Derivative financial instruments 25 16,656 =
SFRBETREMEE Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings 26 1,244,259 1,349,887
B8 sE A L FR08 Amounts due to related parties 35 1,631 2,257
FE TR 3R Tax payable 246,826 248,805
mnEaE Total current liabilities 2,437,331 2,517,503
BEREBEE NET CURRENT ASSETS 2,477,911 1,322,468
BEERRBAEE TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT
LIABILITIES 6,112,228 4,907,952
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

—T——F+=-H=+—H 31 December 2011

—E——fF —E—FF
2011 2010
B o AR T ARBEF T
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
kRBERE NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
FTERITREMEER Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings 26 - 79,732
FIEFIBE & Deferred tax liabilities 27 = 14,949
BIEREAE Total non-current liabilities - 94,681
FEE Net assets 6,112,228 4,813,271
R EQUITY
BATHEEAEIERELZR  Equity attributable to owners of
the parent
% s Share capital 28 129,717 129,717
15 Reserves 29(a) 5,443,851 4,288,442
¥R R HAAR B Proposed final dividend 13 504,661 381,373
6,078,229 4,799,532
FEE R Non-controlling interests 33,999 13,739
RS Total equity 6,112,228 4,813,271
BER EHEM
Ma Jianrong Huang Guanlin
*E HITEH
Chairman Executive Director
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REERBER

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

HE-_ZT——F+_A=+—HILFE Forthe Year Ended 31 December 2011

BRAREAER
Attributable to owners of the parent
EERS Ed EaRE 34
Ba  BHEER byl 1 PN E RBRE BAIRE RERA RERE g3 FEbEER fER
Share Statutory Exchange Employee Proposed Non-
Share premium Hedging surplus fluctuation equity benefits Retained final controlling Total
capital account reserve reserve reserve reserve profits dividend Total interests equity
ik ARBTT ARBTT ARETT ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT ARETT ABBFL ABBFL AE¥TFT ARETT
Note RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
(HfiE28) (Rfskes)  (Pstoofa)) — (Pf&E29(ali)
(note 28) (note 25)  (note 29(a)(l)  (note 29(al(il)
R=F-%£-A-H At 1 January 2010 129,117 762,499 23,550 600,636 (20,306) 48,191 1,954,530 383,678 3,882,4% 13,201 3,895,696
FEAENEER Total comprehensive income
for the year = = 27,968 = 1,093 = 1,271,654 = 1,300,716 991 1,301,706
RS RRARE  Dividends paid to non-controling
interests - - - - - - - - - (453) (453)
SR-FTAERERE  Final 2009 dividend declared
= = = = = = = (383,678) (383,678) - (383,678)
RE-F-TERERE  Proposed final 2010 dividend 13 - - - - - - (381,373) 381,373 - - -
SRERTRT Transfer from retained profits
- - - 120,602 - - (120,602) - - - -
RZE-FF+-A=1—H At31 December 2010 129,117 762,499 51,518 721,238 (19,213) 48,191 2,724,209 381,373 4,799,532 13,739 481321
BATREARL
Attributable to owners of the parent
ERRS Ei EakE 314
Ba  BRHEER fpil -1 DEE RORE BAlRE RERA ABRE B3 FEbtEs L i
Share Statutory Exchange Employee Proposed Non-
Share premium Hedging surplus fluctuation equity benefits Retained final controlling Total
capital account reserve reserve reserve reserve profits dividend Total interests equity
i3 N S ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT ARETT ARBTT AREFL ARETT ARBTT ARETT
Note RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
(Hio8) (Wos) (o)  (Rfsk29al)
(note 28) (note 25)  (note 29(alfi)  (note 29(alfi)
RZF--%-A-H At 1 January 2011 129,717 762,499 51,518 721,238 (19,213) 48,191 2,724,209 381,373 4,799,532 13,739 481321
FERENEER Total comprehensive income
for the year - - (39,644) - (4,131) - 1,703,845 - 1,660,070 1,002 1,661,072
M3EEE EEZRRARE  Dividends paid to non-controling
interests - - - - - - - - - (453) (483)
FEHIRRLE Contribution from the non-controling
interests - - - - - - - - - 19,711 19,711
E Final 2010 dividend declared - - - - - - - (381,379) (381,379) - (381,373)
Rk Proposed final 2011 dividend 13 = = = = - - (504,661) 504,661 - - -
BRERERA Transfer from retained profits - - - 150612 - - (150,612) - - - -
R=F--F+=H=t-H At31 December 2011 129,117 762,499 11,874 871,850 (23,344)* 48,191 3,772,781 504,661 6,078,229 33,099 6,112,228

* RAaUBRARPZEARBARE

5,443,851,000c (Z T —TF: ARK

4,288,442,0007T ) 1= AR AR -
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These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of
RMB5,443,851,000 (2010: RMB4,288,442,000) in the consolidated

statement of financial position.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HE_ZT——F+-_A=1+—HILFE Forthe Year Ended 31 December 2011

—E——F —ZF
2011 2010
B & AR®B T ARBTT
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
KEXEFEBINELAE  CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES
B 58 B A Profit before tax 2,059,420 1,624,597
R Adjustments for:

7l & R A Finance costs 7 51,243 35,837

B2 A Interest income 5 (11,095) (4,190)

HEME  BE R Loss on disposal of items of property,

RBEB 2B plant and equipment 6 1,855 4,401

AREEBE () - Fair value losses/(gains), net:

BEHRITET R
—PEEHHERZ Derivative instruments — transactions
R 5 not qualifying as hedges 6 41,302 (71,591)
M- BERZEBTE Depreciation of items of property,
plant and equipment 6 313,290 286,026
A TR E R IEHEY  Amortisation of prepaid land lease
payments 6 11,196 8,929
B A E Amortisation of intangible assets 6 6,954 6,874
2,474,165 1,890,883
T?Ei*ﬂl] Increase in inventories (144,030) (623,627)
JE YCBR SR I AR AE N Increase in trade and bills receivables (416,435) (285,088)
FENFIE H'E Rk Decrease/(increase) in prepayments,

H A & WRIE R A deposits and other receivables

(120) 103,977 (238,330)
FERTER K &mﬁ%i pill Increase in trade and bills payables 3,982 100,430
TEUWEE T R ) /A1 (Decrease)/increase in advances from

customers (22,379) 53,060
Hfh e ZRIE K BT FIE  Increase/(decrease) in other payables and

#n, (R ) accruals 56,621 (5,325)
FEAS R &E A L 5K18 (Decrease)/increase in amounts due to

(W 2) related parties (626) 199
KEXBSHRE Cash generated from operations 2,055,275 892,202
EENEESS Interest paid (51,243) (35,837)
EAEEMSH Hong Kong profits tax paid (30,366) (7,573)
BB MG PRC corporate income tax paid (332,219) (137,878)
KEEBAE Net cash flows from operating activities

e mEFE 1,641,447 710,914
RELBFMERESRE CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING

ACTIVITIES
2 A S Interest received 7,070 4,190
BEVE BE K Purchases of items of property, plant and

HEIEE equipment (346,653) (544,022)
HEME  KE & Proceeds from disposal of items of property,

HEBE B 25508 plant and equipment 3,230 1,473
SANTEA L EFKIE  Payments of prepaid land lease payments (80,097) (16,271)
1 B R 7K Purchases of Water Use Rights - (1,000)
W B fhm & E Purchases of other intangible assets (721) (597)
WEE—RWE A A Acquisition of a subsidiary - (284,965)
AT R I EARH Maturity of derivative financial instruments 1,235 25,912
M FERHAB =M H 2  Increase of bank deposits with initial term of

HRITF FRIG 0 over three months (165,099) (87,199)
KREEEMABRLME  Net cash flows used in investing activities

F R (581,035) (902,479)
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MERERER

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HE_ZT——F+-_A=1+—HILFE Forthe Year Ended 31 December 2011

=E——F —T-FF
2011 2010
Bt & AR T ARBTT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
METETBSELAE  CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES
GRS Contribution from the non-controlling
interests 19,711 -
HERITER New bank loans 1,570,218 1,758,797
EERITER Repayment of bank loans (1,755,578) (1,043,656)
M & A F#A AR Z S Dividends paid to owners of the parent (381,373) (383,678)
m) FE 22 il 1 7 25K (- B B, Dividends paid to non-controlling interests (453) (453)
BEEE (FTA) Fi8  Net cash flows (used in)/generated from
Remne#HE financing activities (547,475) 331,010
RERBRLZEY NET INCREASE IN CASH AND
1B E R CASH EQUIVALENTS 512,937 139,445
FHIR e MBS EEY  Cash and cash equivalents
at beginning of year 519,017 377,717
ERFEH B FE Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net (2,358) 1,855
FRESRHELZEY  CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT END OF YEAR 1,029,596 519,017
REeRBELEEYWHS  ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF
i CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Re MIRITHEER Cash and bank balances 609,979 512,528
RERERELR =1 Non-pledged time deposits with
BIHA 7 KR F HI7F 5 original maturity of less than
three months when acquired 419,617 6,489
B AR R & Cash and cash equivalents as stated in
ReRERMIZ the statement of financial position and
HENRESEZEY the statement of cash flows 22 1,029,596 519,017
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Statement of Financial Position

—ET——%+=-H=+—H 31 December 2011

—E——F —E-FF
N 2011 2010
B 7 ARE TR ARETIT
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
ERBEE NON-CURRENT ASSETS
W BB MR Property, plant and equipment 18 =
RIEBLREZRE Investments in subsidiaries 18(a) 648,898 616,293
BTYHBARZER Loans to subsidiaries 18(b) 565,052 973,452
BEIEFHIAE E Deferred tax assets 27 1,704 =
ERBEERE Total non-current assets 1,215,672 1,589,745
REBEE CURRENT ASSETS
JiE Uk BR X Trade receivables 20 435,862 299,149
Ha | Other receivables 21 843,888 749,670
BTYHBARZER Loans to subsidiaries 18(b) 633,867 =
NI B Amounts due from subsidiaries 18(c) 61,459 =
HeRIBESZEEY Cash and cash equivalents 22 92,593 99,113
tTEEm T A Derivative financial instruments 25 - 40,095
BRENEE Total current assets 2,067,669 1,188,027
REBAE CURRENT LIABILITIES
P& BR 5K Trade payables 23 24,500 23,394
H b fE N R E K FESHFIE  Other payables and accruals 24 150 154
TESEBTE \ Derivative financial instruments 25 16,656 =
FFERITREMEE Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings 26 720,452 371,801
FEAST BT |8 A Rl ZRIE Amounts due to subsidiaries 18(c) 801,575 421,961
FEZ T 1R Tax payable 8,270 12,219
BWREaE Total current liabilities 1,571,603 829,529
BRABEE NET CURRENT ASSETS 496,066 358,498
HWEEBRRBEE TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT
LIABILITIES 1,711,738 1,948,243
kRBEE NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
ELERIBEE Deferred tax liabilities 27 - 6,616
BIERBAG Total non-current liabilities = 6,616
FEE Net assets 1,711,738 1,941,627
s EQUITY
H&LK Share capital 28 129,717 129,717
Tt Reserves 29(b) 1,077,360 1,430,537
R R 2R B Proposed final dividend 13 504,661 381,373
RS Total equity 1,711,738 1,941,627
%= 4= = B K
Ma Jianrong Huang Guanlin
*E HITEE

Chalrman Executive Director
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Notes to Financial Statement

—T——F+=-H=+—H 31 December 2011

2.1

—REHR
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2.1

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) was incorporated as an exempted company with
limited liability in the Cayman Islands on 23 June 2005. The
address of its registered office is Cricket Square, Hutchins
Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman
Islands. The Company’s shares have been listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Main
Board”) since 24 November 2005.

The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
the “Group”) are principally engaged in the manufacture and
sale of knitwear products (the “Knitwear Business”). Details of
the principal subsidiaries of the Group are set out in note 18.

In the opinion of the directors, Splendid Steed Investments
Limited, a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands
(“BVI"), is the ultimate holding company of the Company.
Keep Glory Limited, a company incorporated in the BVI, is the
intermediate holding company of the Company.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(*HKFRSs”) (which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”)
and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”), accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They
have been prepared under the historical cost convention,
except for derivative financial instruments which have been
measured at fair value. These financial statements are
presented in Renminbi (“RMB”) and all values are rounded to
the nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.
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Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited

79



B ISR AL

Notes to Financial Statement

—T——F+=-H=+—H 31 December 2011

2.1

80
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2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year
ended 31 December 2011. The financial statements of the
subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting period as the
Company, using consistent accounting policies. The results
of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date of acquisition,
being the date on which the Group obtains control, and
continue to be consolidated until the date that such control
ceases. All intra-group balances, transactions, unrealised
gains and losses resulting from intra-group transactions and
dividends are eliminated on consolidation in full.

Total comprehensive income with a subsidiary is attributed
to the non-controlling interest even if that results in a deficit
balance.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a
loss of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,
(i) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii)
the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; and
recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received, (ii)
the fair value of any investment retained and (iii) any resulting
surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share of
components previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as
appropriate.
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Notes to Financial Statement

—T——F+=-H=+—H 31 December 2011

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY AND
DISCLOSURES
The Group has adopted the following new and revised HKFRSs

22 EF RSB RKE

AEERAFE M BRER B KRR

THA] MR ERT BB M ISR E R -

for the first time for the current year’s financial statements.

ERMBREER BEUBMEE HKFRS 1 Amendment Amendment to HKFRS 1 First-
B 2 BT B 15 218 time Adoption of Hong Kong
R B AR & Financial Reporting Standards
VBB e — Limited Exemption from
Al —# B LR Comparative HKFRS 7
A E & ER Disclosures for First-time
HHEERIE Adopters
TR FEL
B FZHR
HE
BB TR BEEANLZHE HKAS 24 (Revised) Related Party Disclosures
2457
(#&1835T)
BB TR EHEG e HKAS 32 Amendment Amendment to HKAS 32 Financial
E325% Z1EF] B 5325k % &t Instruments: Presentation —
TA:Z3 — Classification of Rights Issues
Vi syl
BEE(BEREHBHR BE (BEEBR HK(FRIC)-Int 14 Amendments to HK(IFRIC)-Int 14
ERELZEY) WEREZE Amendments Prepayments of a Minimum
—REBE14R 2) RESF Funding Requirement
&3] 1458 2 A& ET &=
TR E
BB (BBRY B WUEm T AR HK(FRIC)-Int 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities
mEREZR THREE with Equity Instruments
BE)-RE
1957
—E-TEFHB RZE—ZFH Improvements to HKFRSs ~ Amendments to a number of
R EER 2 RREMEE T 2010 HKFRSs issued in May 2010
i BAEVBRE
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Notes to Financial Statement

—T——F+=-H=+—H 31 December 2011

22 T HEREHRIKE (&)
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BRIXE—BEZRBEERE
2457 (REF]) REBH B HRELAE
3 BAEGAERNEIRLBEGAE
AF27Hi 2 7] (BER T —FFF
B ERE L ZBCER) I FRAFET
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Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)
Other than as further explained below regarding the impact
of HKAS 24 (Revised), and amendments to HKFRS 3, HKAS
1 and HKAS 27 (included in Improvements to HKFRSs 2010),
the adoption of the new and revised HKFRSs has had no

significant financial effect on these financial statements.

The principal effects of adopting these HKFRSs are as follows:

(a)

HKAS 24 (Revised) Related Party Disclosures

HKAS 24 (Revised) clarifies and simplifies the definitions
of related parties. The new definitions emphasise a
symmetrical view of related party relationships and clarify
the circumstances in which persons and key management
personnel affect related party relationships of an entity.
The revised standard also introduces an exemption
from the general related party disclosure requirements
for transactions with a government and entities that are
controlled, jointly controlled or significantly influenced
by the same government as the reporting entity. The
accounting policy for related parties has been revised to
reflect the changes in the definitions of related parties
under the revised standard. The adoption of the revised
standard did not have any impact on the financial position
or performance of the Group. Details of the related
party transactions, including the related comparative
information, are included in note 35 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

(b)

Improvements to HKFRSs 2010 issued in May 2010
sets out amendments to a number of HKFRSs. There
are separate transitional provisions for each standard.
While the adoption of some of the amendments may
result in changes in accounting policies, none of these
amendments has had a significant financial impact on the
financial position or performance of the Group. Details of
the key amendments most applicable to the Group are as
follows:

° HKFRS 3 Business Combinations: The amendment
clarifies that the amendments to HKFRS 7, HKAS
32 and HKAS 39 that eliminate the exemption
for contingent consideration do not apply to
contingent consideration that arose from business
combinations whose acquisition dates precede the
application of HKFRS 3 (as revised in 2008).

In addition, the amendment limits the scope of
measurement choices for non-controlling interests.
Only the components of non-controlling interests
that are present ownership interests and entitle their
holders to a proportionate share of the acquiree’s
net assets in the event of liquidation are measured
at either fair value or at the present ownership
instruments’ proportionate share of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. All other components
of non-controlling interests are measured at
their acquisition date fair value, unless another
measurement basis is required by another HKFRS.

The amendment also added explicit guidance to
clarify the accounting treatment for non-replaced
and voluntarily replaced share-based payment
awards.
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY AND
DISCLOSURES (continuea)
(b) (continued)
o HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements:

The amendment clarifies that an analysis of each
component of other comprehensive income can
be presented either in the statement of changes in
equity or in the notes to the financial statements.
The Group elects to present the analysis of each
component of other comprehensive income in the
statement of changes in equity.

° HKAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements: The amendment clarifies that the
consequential amendments from HKAS 27 (as
revised in 2008) made to HKAS 21, HKAS 28 and
HKAS 31 shall be applied prospectively for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009 or earlier if
HKAS 27 is applied earlier.

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS
The Group has not applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in
these financial statements.

HKFRS 1 Amendments Amendments to HKFRS 1 First-
time Adoption of Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards
— Severe Hyperinflation and
Removal of Fixed Dates for
First-time Adopters '

HKFRS 7 Amendments Amendments to HKFRS 7
Financial Instruments:
Disclosures — Transfers of
Financial Assets '

HKFRS 7 Amendments Amendments to HKFRS 7
Financial Instruments:
Disclosures — Offsetting
Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities *
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

HKFRS 9
HKFRS 10

HKFRS 11
HKFRS 12

HKFRS 13
HKAS 1 Amendments

HKAS 12 Amendments

HKAS 19 (2011)

HKAS 27 (2011)

HKAS 28 (2011)

HKAS 32 Amendments

HK(IFRIC)-Int 20

Financial Instruments ©

Consoligated Financial
Statements *

Joint Arrangements *

Disclosure of Interests in Other
Entities *

Fair Value Measurement *

Amendments to HKFRS 1
Presentation of Financial
Statements — Presentation of
Items of other Comprehensive
Income 3

Amendments to HKAS 12 /ncome
Taxes — Deferred Tax: Recovery
of Underlying Assets ?

Employee Benefits *

Separate Financial Statements *

Investments in Associates and
Joint Ventures *

Amendments to HKAS 32
Financial Instruments:
Presentation — Offsetting
Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities °

Stripping Costs in the Production
Phase of a Surface Mine *

L Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2011

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2012
g Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2012

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013
< Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014
c Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2015
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

Further information about those changes that are expected to
significantly affect the Group is as follows:

HKFRS 9 issued in November 2009 is the first part of phase
1 of a comprehensive project to entirely replace HKAS 39
Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement. This
phase focuses on the classification and measurement of
financial assets. Instead of classifying financial assets into
four categories, an entity shall classify financial assets as
subsequently measured at either amortised cost or fair
value, on the basis of both the entity’s business model for
managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flow
characteristics of the financial assets. This aims to improve and
simplify the approach for the classification and measurement of
financial assets compared with the requirements of HKAS 39.

In November 2010, the HKICPA issued additions to HKFRS 9
to address financial liabilities (the “Additions”) and incorporated
in HKFRS 9 the current derecognition principles of financial
instruments of HKAS 39. Most of the Additions were carried
forward unchanged from HKAS 39, while changes were
made to the measurement of financial liabilities designated
at fair value through profit or loss using the fair value option
(*FVQ”). For these FVO liabilities, the amount of change in
the fair value of a liability that is attributable to changes in
credit risk must be presented in other comprehensive income
(“OCI"). The remainder of the change in fair value is presented
in profit or loss, unless presentation of the fair value change
in respect of the liability’s credit risk in OCI would create or
enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or loss. However,
loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts which
have been designated under the FVO are scoped out of the
Additions.
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HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

HKAS 39 is aimed to be replaced by HKFRS 9 in its entirety.
Before this entire replacement, the guidance in HKAS 39 on
hedge accounting and impairment of financial assets continues
to apply. The Group expects to adopt HKFRS 9 from 1 January
2015.

HKFRS 10 establishes a single control model that applies
to all entities including special purpose entities or structured
entities. It includes a new definition of control which is used
to determine which entities are consolidated. The changes
introduced by HKFRS 10 require management of the Group
to exercise significant judgement to determine which entities
are controlled, compared with the requirements in HKAS 27
and HK(SIC)-Int 12 Consolidation — Special Purpose Entities.
HKFRS 10 replaces the portion of HKAS 27 Consolidated and
Separate Financial Statements that addresses the accounting
for consolidated financial statements. It also includes the issues
raised in HK(SIC)-Int 12.

HKFRS 11 replaces HKAS 31 Interests in Joint Ventures and
HK(SIC)-Int 13 Jointly Controlled Entities — Non-Monetary
Contributions by Venturers. It describes the accounting for joint
arrangements with joint control. It addresses only two forms
of joint arrangements, i.e., joint operations and joint ventures,
and removes the option to account for joint ventures using
proportionate consolidation.

HKFRS 12 includes the disclosure requirements for
subsidiaries, joint arrangements, associates and structured
entities that are previously included in HKAS 27 Consolidated
and Separate Financial Statements, HKAS 31 Interests in
Joint Ventures and HKAS 28 /nvestments in Associates. It also
introduces a number of new disclosure requirements for these
entities.

M B R B AR A R A R 87
Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited



B ISR AL

Notes to Financial Statement

—T——F+=-H=+—H 31 December 2011

2.3 CHEMEERERZEBUE

88

HER (#)
MR E S BRE LR E10% B8
TSRS R FE115% R BB RS 2
F1t A R E B e EaIF275%
REBSER B8R AT HITEREE
JoREEEHRE -2 -—=4—F—0H
BB SRS REERFE10% B8
B IREERI B BN BRE %
B2 RE B G LR LT R RES
& 5HE R SE085E M 14 E B 2T -

ERMBREEE1BRREREEHM
BRELRERAZAREZREESR
AERAREBEFERKEREZE K
B Z BT BMENANEEBER AL
BENER EREEEGCEEM RS
ZHAE AR EHEFERARER 1
fEAAREZES - AEEBEHE =
E—=F—- A BUARRATEVER
EAERIZE135% -

EREENE IR BT EREME
HWARNZFIHIAEHEE - AR BRE
B (PIMBUEER K EER)EH D E
(HER) EB/HMIER - BEENERH
DENEBOHZ AKEBEHE =
T—=F - —BERAZFER -

ERJ B R R R i A PR )
Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

Consequential amendments were made to HKAS 27 and HKAS
28 as a result of the issuance of HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11 and
HKFRS 12. The Group expects to adopt HKFRS 10, HKFRS
11, HKFRS 12, and the consequential amendments to HKAS
27 and HKAS 28 from 1 January 2013.

HKFRS 13 provides a precise definition of fair value and
a single source of fair value measurement and disclosure
requirements for use across HKFRSs. The standard does not
change the circumstances in which the Group is required to
use fair value, but provides guidance on how fair value should
be applied where its use is already required or permitted
under other HKFRSs. The Group expects to adopt HKFRS 13
prospectively from 1 January 20183.

Amendments to HKAS 1 change the grouping of items
presented in OCI. Items that could be reclassified (or recycled)
to profit or loss at a future point in time (for example, upon
derecognition or settlement) would be presented separately
from items which will never be reclassified. The Group expects
to adopt the amendments from 1 January 2013.
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2.3

24

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

HKAS 12 Amendments clarify the determination of deferred
tax for investment property measured at fair value. The
amendments introduce a rebuttable presumption that deferred
tax on investment property measured at fair value should
be determined on the basis that its carrying amount will
be recovered through sale. Furthermore, the amendments
incorporate the requirement previously in HK(SIC)-Int 21
Income Taxes — Recovery of Revalued Non-Depreciable Assets
that deferred tax on non-depreciable assets, measured using
the revaluation model in HKAS 16, should always be measured
on a sale basis. The Group expects to adopt HKAS 12
Amendments from 1 January 2012.

HKAS 19 (2011) includes a number of amendments that range
from fundamental changes to simple clarifications and re-
wording. The revised standard introduces significant changes
in the accounting for defined benefit pension plans including
removing the choice to defer the recognition of actuarial
gains and losses. Other changes include modifications to the
timing of recognition for termination benefits, the classification
of short-term employee benefits and disclosures of defined
benefit plans. The Group expects to adopt HKAS 19 (2011)
from 1 January 20183.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity whose financial and operating policies
the Company controls, directly or indirectly, so as to obtain
benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company’s
income statement to the extent of dividends received and
receivable. The Company’s investments in subsidiaries that are
not classified as held for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 are
stated at cost less any impairment losses.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continuea)

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the
acquisition date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition
date fair values of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
assumed by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree
and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquiree. For each business combination, the
Group elects whether it measures the non-controlling interests
in the acquiree that are present ownership interests and entitle
their holders to a proportionate share of net assets in the event
of liquidation either at fair value or at the proportionate share of
the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other components of
non-controlling interests are measured at fair value. Acquisition
costs are expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial
assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification
and designation in accordance with the contractual terms,
economic circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the
acquisition date. This includes the separation of embedded
derivatives in host contracts by the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
acquisition date fair value of the acquirer's previously held
equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair value as at
the acquisition date through profit or loss.
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POLICIES (continuea)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Subsequent
changes to the fair value of the contingent consideration which
is deemed to be an asset or liability will be recognised in
accordance with IAS 39 either in profit or loss or as a change
to other comprehensive income. If the contingent consideration
is classified as equity, it will not be remeasured. Subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity. In instances where
the contingent consideration does not fall within the scope of
HKAS 39, it is measured in accordance with the appropriate
HKFRS.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of
the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests and any fair value of
the Group’s previously held equity interests in the acquiree over
the identifiable net assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If
the sum of this consideration and other items is lower than
the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired, the
difference is, after reassessment, recognised in profit or loss as
a gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be
impaired. The Group performs its annual impairment test of
goodwill as at 31 December. For the purpose of impairment
testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from
the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s cash-
generating units, or groups of cash-generating units, that are
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group
are assigned to those units or groups of units.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continuea)

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating
units) to which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating
units) is less than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is
recognised. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not
reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill forms part of a cash-generating unit (group
of cash-generating units) and part of the operation within that
unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation
disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the operation
when determining the gain or loss on disposal of the operation.
Goodwill disposed of in this circumstance is measured based
on the relative values of the operation disposed of and the
portion of the cash-generating unit retained.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, financial assets and goodwill), the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable
amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating
unit’s value in use and its fair value less costs to sell, and is
determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those
from other assets or groups of assets, in which case the
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit
to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of
an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to the
consolidated income statement in the period in which it arises
in those expense categories consistent with the function of the
impaired asset.
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POLICIES (continuea)

Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as
to whether there is any indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased.
If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is
estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss of an
asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there has been
a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount of that asset, but not to an amount higher than the
carrying amount that would have been determined (net of
any depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an
impairment loss is credited to the income statement in the
period in which it arises.

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s
family and that person

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or of a parent of the Group;

or
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POLICIES (continuea)
BEAL (£) Related parties (continued)
(o) (WA TIEAEY - BN E R EA (o) the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
SEBHE: applies:
iy ZEREAEBEEBER—%£E ()  the entity and the Group are members of the same
ZKERTA]; group;
iy —FHAEREE —EREMNEE (i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
RASEELE (XS —FE other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
BAKEARZEBBETK subsidiary of the other entity);
BRRIZEE RRHAE ED
%)
iy ZEREANEBEHAR—F (i) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
—HHEERE: same third party;
vy —AERAEFE=-FEENEG (iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
EhE M —ERBA%S other entity is an associate of the third entity;
=S ERBNEE R
vy ERAASEHNEAEHEF (v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
HECEREREEMERKR L benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
BB B AR A ET 2 related to the Group;
(viy EREX@FTHBIA TS (vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
SHEES R person identified in (a); and
(vii) R@0)FTHE B A T E 2 (vi) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
BAXENHEZE R (5 over the entity or is a member of the key
ZEBONEARTEEE management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
B8 - of the entity).
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POLICIES (continuea)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
any impairment losses. The cost of an item of property, plant
and equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition
and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs and
maintenance, is normally charged to the income statement
in the period in which it is incurred. In situations where the
recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major
inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as
a replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant and
equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group
recognises such parts as individual assets with specific useful
lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write
off the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to
its residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal
estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment used for
this purpose are as follows:

Category Estimated useful life
Buildings 20 years
Plant and machinery 10 years
Furniture and fixtures 5 years
Motor vehicles 5 years
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continuea)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at
each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant
part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when
no future economic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognised
in the income statement in the year the asset is derecognised
is the difference between the net sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents buildings, plant and
machinery under construction or pending installation, which
are stated at cost less any impairment losses, and are not
depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs of construction
and capitalised borrowing costs on related borrowing funds
during the period of construction. Construction in progress is
reclassified to the appropriate category of property, plant and
equipment when completed and ready for use.
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POLICIES (continuea)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired
in a business combination is the fair value as at the date of
acquisition. The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed
to be finite. Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently
amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for
impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible
asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the
amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful
life are reviewed at least at each financial year end.

Intangible assets are stated at cost less any impairment
losses and are amortised on the straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives. The principal estimated useful lives of
intangible assets are as follows:

Category Estimated useful life
Software 3-5 years
Water Use Right 20 years
Leases

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets to the Group, other than legal title, are
accounted for as finance leases. At the inception of a finance
lease, the cost of the leased asset is capitalised at the present
value of the minimum lease payments and recorded together
with the obligation, excluding the interest element, to reflect
the purchase and financing. Assets held under capitalised
finance leases are included in property, plant and equipment,
and depreciated over the shorter of the lease terms and the
estimated useful lives of the assets. The finance costs of such
leases are charged to the income statement so as to provide a
constant periodic rate of charge over the lease terms.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continuea)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill) (continued)

Leases (continued)

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted for
as operating leases. Where the Group is the lessor, assets
leased by the Group under operating leases are included in
non-current assets, and rentals receivable under the operating
leases are credited to the consolidated income statement on
the straight-line basis over the lease terms. Where the Group
is the lessee, rentals payable under the operating leases are
charged to the consolidated income statement on the straight-
line basis over the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are initially
stated at cost and subsequently recognised on the straight-line
basis over the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments

All land in Mainland China is state-owned and no individual
land ownership rights exist. The Group acquires the right to use
certain land and the consideration paid for this right is recorded
as prepaid land lease payments, which are amortised over the
lease terms of 30 to 50 years using the straight-line method.

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets within the scope of HKAS 39 are classified as
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
receivables, held-to-maturity investments and available-for-sale
financial investments or as derivatives designated as hedging
instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate. The Group
determines the classification of its financial assets at initial
recognition. When financial assets are recognised initially, they
are measured at fair value plus transaction costs, except in the
case of financial assets recorded at fair value through profit or
loss.
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POLICIES (continuea)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

The Group’s financial assets include cash and bank balances,
trade and bills receivables, other receivables and derivative
financial instruments.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on
their classification as follows:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include
financial assets held for trading. Financial assets are classified
as held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of sale
in the near term. Derivatives, including separated embedded
derivatives, are also classified as held for trading unless they
are designated as effective hedging instruments as defined by
HKAS 39.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in
the statement of financial position at fair value with net changes
in fair value recognised in other income and gains or finance
costs in the income statement. These net fair value changes
do not include any interest earned on these financial assets,
which are recognised in accordance with the policies set out
for “Revenue recognition” below.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continuea)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(continued)

Financial assets designated upon initial recognition at fair
value through profit or loss are designated at the date of initial
recognition and only if the criteria under HKAS 39 are satisfied.

The Group evaluates its financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss (held for trading) to assess whether the intent
to sell them in the near term is still appropriate. When, in rare
circumstance, the Group is unable to trade these financial
assets due to inactive markets and management’s intent
to sell them in the foreseeable future significantly changes,
the Group may elect to reclassify these financial assets. The
reclassification from financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss to loans and receivables, available-for-sale financial
assets or held-to-maturity investments depends on the nature
of the assets. This evaluation does not affect any financial
assets designated at fair value through profit or loss using the
fair value option at designation as these instruments cannot be
reclassified after initial recognition.

Derivatives embedded in host contracts are accounted for as
separate derivatives and recorded at fair value if their economic
characteristics and risks are not closely related to those of
the host contracts and the host contracts are not held for
trading or designated at fair value through profit or loss. These
embedded derivatives are measured at fair value with changes
in fair value recognised in profit or loss. Reassessment only
occurs if there is a change in the terms of the contract that
significantly modifies the cash flows that would otherwise be
required.

Annual Report 2011 4F %}



BA TSR AR AL

Notes to Financial Statement

—T——%F+=-H=+—H 31 December 2011

24 TESTTHEME 2) 2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

REREMEREE (&)
BHREKHE

B RN Wk IR A P A (B E AT A E A
ReR BYEEEMESREZIFTE
TRMEE-RUFHER WFEEHR
18 32 B R R 2R A 12 8 5 X AN F0 B A ] RR
BERGBAE-NAEHEERARK D5t
MEEZEAFTEIEE LEEER
BEFRMEARIHRE D 2B A R -
ERMEZHECT ABERZBER
A BEMEEZEBRETNRBERRAE
BB MBS FIR 2 EMA T &
B FERR -

HEIHRE
MAKRERAFAZI R BRNEE
AR BB E A #EE M R EE 28 A
ZHTESREESDERABEIHER
BRI HREERRERNTRR
i 5H P AN HIBR TR E BT & - 1OAT
HEERAE - R R Z TR
HHE WEEEAERMEEZAS
ZER R - BRI R EHD AR
BRZBEWA REMELEZEET
RiBzE R A E M X S 2 #ER

Annual Report 2011 4F ¥}

POLICIES (continuea)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. After initial measurement, such assets are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate method less any allowance for impairment.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and includes fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The
effective interest rate amortisation is included in finance income
in the income statement. The loss arising from impairment is
recognised in the income statement in finance costs for loans
and in other expenses for receivables.

Held-to-maturity investments

Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments and fixed maturity are classified as held-to-
maturity when the Group has the positive intention and ability
to hold them to maturity. Held-to-maturity investments are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate method less any allowance for impairment.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that
are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate amortisation is included in finance income in
the income statement. The loss arising from impairment is
recognised in the income statement in other expenses.
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POLICIES (continuea)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments

Available-for-sale financial investments are non-derivative
financial assets in listed and unlisted equity investments and
debt securities. Equity investments classified as available for
sale are those which are neither classified as held for trading
nor designated at fair value through profit or loss. Debt
securities in this category are those which are intended to be
held for an indefinite period of time and which may be sold in
response to needs for liquidity or in response to changes in the
market conditions.

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial investments
are subsequently measured at fair value, with unrealised gains
or losses recognised as other comprehensive income in the
available-for-sale investment revaluation reserve until the
investment is derecognised, at which time the cumulative gain
or loss is recognised in the income statement in other income,
or until the investment is determined to be impaired, when the
cumulative gain or loss is reclassified from the available-for-sale
investment revaluation reserve to the income statement in other
expenses. Interest and dividends earned whilst holding the
available-for-sale financial investments are reported as interest
income and dividend income, respectively and are recognised
in the income statement as other income in accordance with
the policies set out for “Revenue recognition” below.

When the fair value of unlisted equity investments cannot be
reliably measured because (a) the variability in the range of
reasonable fair value estimates is significant for that investment
or (b) the probabilities of the various estimates within the range
cannot be reasonably assessed and used in estimating fair
value, such investments are stated at cost less any impairment
losses.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continuea)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)

The Group evaluates whether the ability and intention to sell
its available-for-sale financial assets in the near term are still
appropriate. When, in rare circumstances, the Group is unable
to trade these financial assets due to inactive markets and
management’s intent to do so significantly changes in the
foreseeable future, the Group may elect to reclassify these
financial assets. Reclassification to loans and receivables is
permitted when the financial assets meet the definition of
loans and receivables and the Group has the intent and ability
to hold these assets for the foreseeable future or to maturity.
Reclassification to the held-to-maturity category is permitted
only when the Group has the ability and intent to hold until the
maturity date of the financial asset.

For a financial asset reclassified from the available-for-
sale category, the fair value carrying amount at the date of
reclassification becomes its new amortised cost and any
previous gain or loss on that asset that has been recognised
in equity is amortised to profit or loss over the remaining
life of the investment using the effective interest rate. Any
difference between the new amortised cost and the maturity
amount is also amortised over the remaining life of the asset
using the effective interest rate. If the asset is subsequently
determined to be impaired, then the amount recorded in equity
is reclassified to the income statement.
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POLICIES (continuea)

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is
derecognised when:

o the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

o the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third
party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and either
(@) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the
asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement,
it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risk
and rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the asset is
recognised to the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement
in the asset. In that case, the Group also recognises an
associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated
liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and
obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over
the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of
consideration that the Group could be required to repay.
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POLICIES (continuea)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is any objective evidence that a financial asset
or a group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a
group of financial assets is deemed to be impaired if, and only
if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one
or more events that has occurred after the initial recognition
of the asset (an incurred “loss event”) and that loss event has
an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial
asset or the group of financial assets that can be reliably
estimated. Evidence of impairment may include indications
that a debtor or a group of debtors is experiencing significant
financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or
other financial reorganisation and observable data indicating
that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future
cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic conditions
that correlate with defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first
assesses individually whether objective evidence of impairment
exists for financial assets that are individually significant,
or collectively for financial assets that are not individually
significant. If the Group determines that no objective evidence
of impairment exists for an individually assessed financial
asset, whether significant or not, it includes the asset in a
group of financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics
and collectively assesses them for impairment. Assets that
are individually assessed for impairment and for which an
impairment loss is, or continues to be, recognised are not
included in a collective assessment of impairment.
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POLICIES (continuea)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost (continued)

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been
incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that
have not yet been incurred). The present value of the estimated
future cash flows is discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest rate computed
at initial recognition). If a loan has a variable interest rate, the
discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is the current
effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced either directly or
through the use of an allowance account and the amount of
the loss is recognised in the income statement. Interest income
continues to be accrued on the reduced carrying amount
and is accrued using the rate of interest used to discount the
future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment
loss. Loans and receivables together with any associated
allowance are written off when there is no realistic prospect of
future recovery and all collateral has been realised or has been
transferred to the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is increased or reduced by
adjusting the allowance account. If a future write-off is later
recovered, the recovery is credited to other expenses in the
income statement.
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POLICIES (continuea)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been
incurred on an unquoted equity instrument that is not carried
at fair value because its fair value cannot be reliably measured,
the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows discounted at the current market rate of
return for a similar financial asset. Impairment losses on these
assets are not reversed.

Available-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group assesses
at the end of each reporting period whether there is objective
evidence that an investment or a group of investments is
impaired.

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount comprising
the difference between its cost (net of any principal payment
and amortisation) and its current fair value, less any impairment
loss previously recognised in the income statement, is removed
from other comprehensive income and recognised in the
income statement.

In the case of equity investments classified as available
for sale, objective evidence would include a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of an investment below its
cost. The determination of what is “significant” or “prolonged”
requires judgement. “Significant” is to be evaluated against
the original cost of the investment and “prolonged” against
the period in which the fair value has been below its original
cost. Where there is evidence of impairment, the cumulative
loss — measured as the difference between the acquisition cost
and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that
investment previously recognised in the income statement — is
removed from other comprehensive income and recognised in
the income statement. Impairment losses on equity instruments
classified as available for sale are not reversed through the
income statement. Increases in their fair value after impairment
are recognised directly in other comprehensive income.
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POLICIES (continuea)

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities within the scope of HKAS 39 are classified
as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans
and borrowings, or as derivatives designated as hedging
instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate. The Group
determines the classification of its financial liabilities at initial
recognition.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value plus,
in the case of loans and borrowings, directly attributable
transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and bills payables,
other payables, amounts due to related parties, derivative
financial instruments, amounts due to related parties and
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on
their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss includes
financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit
or loss.
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POLICIES (continuea)

Financial liabilities (continued)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
(continued)

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they
are acquired for the purpose of selling in the near term. This
category includes derivative financial instruments entered into
by the Group that are not designated as hedging instruments
in hedge relationships as defined by HKAS39. Separated
embedded derivatives, are also classified as held for trading
unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments.
Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised
in the income statement. The net fair value gain or loss
recognised in the income statement does not include any
interest charged on these financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair
value through profit or loss are designated at the date of initial
recognition and only if the criteria of HKAS 39 are satisfied.

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest rate method unless the effect of discounting
would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.
Gains and losses are recognised in the income statement when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the effective
interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that
are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate amortisation is included in finance costs in the
income statement.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continuea)

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under
the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from
the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of
an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange
or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original
liability and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference
between the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the
income statement.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position if,
and only if, there is currently enforceable legal right to offset
the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on
a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments that are traded in active
markets is determined by reference to quoted market prices
or dealer price quotations (bid price for long positions and ask
price for short positions), without any deduction for transaction
costs. For financial instruments where there is no active
market, the fair value is determined using appropriate valuation
techniques. These techniques include using recent arm’s
length market transactions; reference to the current market
value of another instrument which is substantially the same;
a discounted cash flow analysis; and other option pricing
models.
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POLICIES (continuea)

Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting
Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

The Group uses derivative financial instruments, such as
forward currency contracts, to hedge its foreign currency risk.
Such a derivative financial instrument is initially recognised
at fair value on the date on which the derivative contract is
entered into and are subsequently remeasured at fair value.
Derivatives are carried as assets when the fair value is positive
and as liabilities when the fair value is negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of
derivatives are taken directly to the income statement,
except for the effective portion of cash flow hedges, which is
recognised in other comprehensive income.

For the purpose of hedge accounting, hedges are classified as:

o fair value hedges when hedging the exposure to changes
in the fair value of a recognised asset or liability or an
unrecognised firm commitment; or

° cash flow hedges when hedging the exposure to
variability in cash flows that is either attributable to
a particular risk associated with a recognised asset
or liability or a highly probable forecast transaction,
or a foreign currency risk in an unrecognised firm
commitment.
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POLICIES (continuea)

Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting
(continued)

Initial recognition and subsequent measurement
(continueq)

At the inception of a hedge relationship, the Group formally
designates and documents the hedge relationship to which
the Group wishes to apply hedge accounting, the risk
management objective and its strategy for undertaking the
hedge. The documentation includes identification of the
hedging instrument, the hedged item or transaction, the nature
of the risk being hedged and how the Group will assess the
hedging instrument’s effectiveness of changes in the hedging
instrument’s fair value in offsetting the exposure to changes in
the hedged item’s fair value or cash flows attributable to the
hedged risk. These hedges are expected to be highly effective
in achieving offsetting changes in fair value or cash flows and
are assessed on an ongoing basis to determine that they
actually have been highly effective throughout the financial
reporting periods for which they were designated.

Hedges which meet the strict criteria for hedge accounting are
accounted for as follows:

Cash flow hedges

The effective portion of the gain or loss on the hedging
instrument is recognised directly in other comprehensive
income in the hedging reserve, while any ineffective portion
is recognised immediately in the income statement in other
expenses.

Amounts recognised in other comprehensive income are
transferred to the income statement when the hedged
transaction affects profit or loss, such as when hedged
financial income or financial expense is recognised or when a
forecast sale occurs.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continuea)

Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting
(continued)

Cash flow hedges (continued)

If the forecast transaction is no longer expected to occur,
the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in equity is
transferred to the income statement. If the hedging instrument
expires or is sold, terminated or exercised without replacement
or rollover, or if its designation as a hedge is revoked, the
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income
remain in other comprehensive income until the forecast
transaction affects profit or loss.

Current versus non-current classification

Derivative instruments that are not designated as effective
hedging instruments are classified as current or non-current or
separated into a current or non-current portion based on an
assessment of the facts and circumstances (i.e., the underlying
contracted cash flows).

o Where the Group will hold a derivative as an economic
hedge (and does not apply hedge accounting) for a
period beyond 12 months after the end of the reporting
period, the derivative is classified as non-current
(or separated into current and non-current portions)
consistently with the classification of the underlying item.

o Derivative instruments that are designated as, and are
effective hedging instruments, are classified consistently
with the classification of the underlying hedged item. The
derivative instruments are separated into current portions
and non-current portions only if a reliable allocation can
be made.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined on the weighted average basis and,
in the case of work in progress and finished goods, comprises
direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of
overheads. Net realisable value is based on estimated selling
prices less any estimated costs to be incurred to completion
and disposal.
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POLICIES (continuea)

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
demand deposits, and short-term highly liquid investments that
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short
maturity of generally within three months when acquired.

For the purpose of the statement of financial position, cash
and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks,
including term deposits, and assets similar in nature to cash,
which are not restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end of
the reporting period of the future expenditures expected to be
required to settle the obligation. The increase in the discounted
present value amount arising from the passage of time is
included in finance costs in the income statement.
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POLICIES (continuea)

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised
outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior
periods are measured at the amount expected to be recovered
from or paid to the taxation authorities, based on tax rates
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the end of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries in which
the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

° when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at
the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

° in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.
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POLICIES (continuea)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, the
carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can
be utilised, except:

o when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;
and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries and joint ventures,
deferred tax assets are only recognised to the extent that
it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in
the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at
the end of each reporting period and are recognised to the
extent that it has become probable that sufficient taxable profit
will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to
be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a
legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the
same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.
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POLICIES (continuea)

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where
there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the
grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income
over the periods necessary to match the grant on a systematic
basis to the costs that it is intended to compensate. Where the
grant relates to an asset, the fair value is credited to a deferred
income account and is released to the income statement over
the expected useful life of the relevant asset by equal annual
instalments or deducted from the carrying amount of the asset
and released to the income statement by way of a reduced
depreciation charge.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be
measured reliably, on the following bases:

(@) from the sale of goods, when the significant risks and
rewards of ownership have been transferred to the buyer,
provided that the Group maintains neither managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership, nor effective control over the goods sold;

(b) rental income, on a time proportion basis over the lease
terms;

(c) interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts through
the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter
period, when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of
the financial asset; and

(d) dividend income, when the shareholders’ right to receive
payment has been established.
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POLICIES (continuea)

Employee benefits

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in
Mainland China are required to participate in a central pension
scheme operated by the local municipal government. These
subsidiaries are required to contribute certain percentage
of their payroll costs to the central pension scheme. The
contributions are charged to the income statement as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the central
pension scheme.

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”)
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for
those employees who are eligible to participate in the MPF
Scheme. Contributions are made based on a percentage of
the employees’ basic salaries and charged to the income
statement as they become payable in accordance with the
rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are
held separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest
fully with the employees when contributed into the MPF
Scheme.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready
for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the
cost of those assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing
costs ceases when the assets are substantially ready for
their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on
the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs are
expensed in the period in which they are incurred. Borrowing
costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in
connection with the borrowing of funds.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continuea)

Dividends

Final dividends proposed by the directors are classified as a
separate allocation of retained profits within the equity section
of the statement of financial position, until they have been
approved by the shareholders in a general meeting. When
these dividends have been approved by the shareholders and
declared, they are recognised as a liability.

Foreign currencies

The financial statements are presented in RMB, which is the
Company’s presentation currency. Each entity in the Group
determines its own functional currency and items included in
the financial statements of each entity are measured using that
functional currency. Foreign currency transactions are initially
recorded using the functional currency rates ruling at the dates
of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the functional currency
rates of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period. All
differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary item
are taken to the income statement. Non-monetary items that
are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency
are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the
initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value
in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at
the date when the fair value was determined. The gain or loss
arising on retranslation of a non-monetary item is treated in line
with the recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value
of the item (i.e., translation differences on item whose fair value
gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or
profit or loss is also recognised in other comprehensive income
or profit or loss, respectively).
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POLICIES (continuea)

Foreign currencies (continued)

The functional currencies of the Company is Hong Kong dollars
(“HK$”). The functional currency of certain subsidiaries located
outside the Mainland China are currencies other than RMB.
As at the end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities
of these entities are translated into the presentation currency
of the Company at the exchange rates ruling at the end of the
reporting period, and their income statement are translated
into RMB at the weighted average exchange rates for the year.
The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
fluctuation reserve.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flow, the
cash flows of the Company and certain overseas subsidiaries
are translated into RMB at the exchange rates ruling at the
dates of the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of
overseas subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are
translated into RMB at the weighted average exchange rates
for the year.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets
and liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at
the end of reporting period. However, uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could
require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the
assets or liabilities affected in the future.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from
those involving estimations, which have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in financial statement:

Classification between investment properties and owner-
occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an
investment property, and has developed criteria in making
that judgement. Investment property is a property held to
earn rentals or for capital appreciation of both. Therefore, the
Group considers whether a property generates cash flows
largely independently of the other assets held by the Group.
Some properties comprise a portion that is held to earn rentals
or for capital appreciation and another portion that is held
for use in the production or supply of goods or services or
for administrative purposes. If these portions could be sold
separately or leased out separately under a finance lease, the
Group accounts for the portions separately. If the portions
could not be sold separately, the property is an investment
property only if an insignificant portion is held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes. Judgement is made on an individual property basis
to determines whether ancillary services are so significant that
a property does not qualify as an investment property.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are described below.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Useful lives of plant and equipment

The Group’s management determines the estimated useful
lives and consequently related depreciation charges. This
estimate is based on the historical experience of the actual
useful lives of plant and equipment of similar nature and
functions. It could change significantly as a result of technical
innovations and competitor actions in response to the industry
cycles. Management will increase the depreciation charge
where useful lives are less than previously estimated lives, or it
will write off or write down technically obsolete or non-strategic
assets that have been abandoned or sold.

Estimated impairment of property, plant and equipment
and prepaid land lease payments

The Group assesses annually whether property, plant and
equipment and prepaid land lease payments have any
indication of impairment, in accordance with the accounting
policy stated in note 2.4 to the financial statements. The
recoverable amounts of property, plant and equipment have
been determined based on value-in-use calculations, while
that of prepaid land lease payments has been determined with
reference to independent valuations. These calculations and
valuations require the use of judgements and estimates.

Estimated impairment of receivables

The Group records impairment of receivables based on an
assessment of the recoverability of trade and bills receivables
and other receivables. Provisions are applied to trade and bills
receivables and other receivables where events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the balances may not be
collectible. The identification of doubtful debts requires the use
of judgement and estimates. Where the expectation is different
from the original estimate, the difference will impact carrying
value of trade and bills receivables and other receivables and
doubtful debt expenses in the period in which the estimate has
been changed.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimated write-downs of inventories to net realisable
value

The Group writes down inventories to net realisable value
based on an assessment of the realisability of inventories.
Write-downs on inventories are recorded where events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the balances may not
be realised. The identification of write-downs requires the use
of judgement and estimates. Where the expectation is different
from the original estimate, the difference will impact carrying
value of inventories and write-downs of inventories in the years
in which the estimate has been changed.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into
business units based on their products and there is one
reportable operating segment: the manufacture and sale
of knitwear products. Management monitors the operating
results of its business units as a whole for the purpose of
making decisions about resources allocation and performance
assessment.

In the opinion of the directors, a majority of the revenue was
generated from customers which have world-wide locations,
and therefore, the disclosure of the location of customers
would not be meaningful in the consolidated financial
statements.

99% of the non-current assets of the Group were located in the
PRC during the year ended 31 December 2011 (2010: 99%).
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5. WA Htt AR WKz= 5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS
WATAAREB 22 %58 AEHEE Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents the net
VIHMBREERESITNBER 2 E2F invoiced value of goods sold, after allowances for returns and
(=R trade discounts.

WA B AR z=S AT : An analysis of revenue, other income and gains is as follows:
K&
Group
=E——F —E-FF
2011 2010
AR¥ T AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
WA Revenue
HERY Sale of goods 9,043,442 6,719,172
Hap g A Other income
R 4 B Government grants* 153,144 120,718
H|ITH S WA Bank interest income 11,095 4,190
e WA Rental income 4,560 4,404
HAty Others - 304
168,799 129,616
Wz Gains
E N Z R 55 Foreign exchange differences, net 11,706 =
NIBEW S FEE Fair value gains, net:
METARE-TKFEER Derivative instruments — transactions not
B 2R qualifying as hedges - 71,591
180,505 201,207
* BS@EBEZEM T BTS TAEE * Government grants mainly represent incentives granted by local
2 SRED o BUN 8 B I S B 75 £ (] R ERK governments to the Group. There are no unfulfilled conditions or
1R kA EIE - contingencies related to the government grants.
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6. FRBiATRE 6. PROFIT BEFORE TAX
AREBZBRBATFEE IR (FTA) The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/
(crediting):
AEE
Group
—EB——F —ZE-FF
2011 2010
Bt 5 AR T AR For
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
EHEFERA Cost of inventories sold 6,396,470 4,665,853
e Depreciation 15 313,290 286,026
FENLTEE Amortisation of prepaid land

SRIEHEGH lease payments 16 11,196 8,929
B E Amortisation of intangible assets 17 6,954 6,874
*ETJ%%«%@‘EJEHZ Minimum lease payments

RIEM S KB under operating leases:

EF Buildings 25,937 25,657
FaT A& Auditors’ remuneration 2,260 2,000
EERAMAT (B  Employee benefit expense (including

BEEME (MfzE8) ) :  directors’ remuneration (note 8)):

TELHS Wages and salaries 1,620,990 1,324,609

RARETEI R Pension scheme contributions 10 55,212 48,948

H b 128 7| Other benefits 67,103 27,154

1,743,305 1,400,711
fEHZ% EHRE Foreign exchange differences, net* (11,706) 15,424
WMOR 77 S &= 7] B F(E Write-down of inventories to net realisable
value 7,411 6,664
ANfMEEE, (Y25) » Fair value losses/(gains), net:
B R
METE-TFE Derivative instruments — transactions
HARER 2R G not qualifying as hedges** 41,302 (71,591)
RITH B WA Bank interest income (11,095) (4,190)
HEME - HE R Loss on disposal of items of property,
HIEIBE 2 B8 plant and equipment 1,855 4,401

O BE-F—Ft-A=t—RAR=
F-TFE+-_A=Z+-RALEEZE
REBEFBCORFAREGBERZ
[E AR M| R [H A BST ] Ae

o BEZF—Ft+ZA=ft-BRk=
F-FEL-_A=+-HLEFEZR
REEBRKRED D FIFALRE B
R THEAR ) R [ E A A R s |
Ao
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*k

The foreign exchange differences, net for the years ended 31
December 2011 and 31 December 2010 are included in “Other
income and gains” and “Other expenses”, respectively, on the
face of the consolidated income statement.

The fair value losses and gains for the years ended 31 December
2011 and 31 December 2010 are included in “Other expenses”
and “Other income and gains”, respectively, on the face of the
consolidated income statement.
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7. BERA 7. FINANCE COSTS
BB An analysis of finance costs is as follows:
rTEE
Group
—E——F —E—FF
2011 2010
ARE T ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARAFATBHEREZ Interest on bank and other borrowings
RITREMEEZFE wholly repayable within five years 51,243 35,837
8. EEM= 8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION
BIEEMRAERES D AEHFE161{E Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to the
iR REEZEEMESO T : Listing Rules and Section 161 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, is as follows:
KEE
Group
—E——F —E-FF
2011 2010
AR¥ET T ARET T
RMB’000 RMB’000
we Fees 235 180
e RBEREYHN = Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 2,728 2,299
RRET B4 3K Pension scheme contributions 46 19
2,774 2,318
3,009 2,498
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8. EEM = »)

() BTES FUTESRBIFY

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued)

(a) Executive directors, a non-executive director and

TES independent non-executive directors
E2 A= 3 )M RIRGTE
ne BENA & (S MemE
Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits scheme Total
Fees in kind contributions remuneration
ARETRT AR%TR AR®Tx AR¥Tx
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
—E——F 2011
HITES: Executive directors:
BREEE Mr. Ma Jianrong - 4 18 759
BRMEE Mr. Huang Guanlin - 580 16 596
SCMEE Mr. Ma Renhe - 450 6 456
@+ Ms. Zheng Miaohu - 451 - 451
FEREE(RZF——5F  Mr. Wang Cunbo
AA=+HZME) (appointed on 30 May 2011) - 447 6 453
- 2,669 46 2,715
FRITEE: Non-executive director:
BREEEE Mr. Chen Zhongjing 60 - - 60
BUEHTES: Independent non-executive
directors:
BRELEE(RZZE——F  Mr Chen Genxiang
NATABREE) (appointed on 16 August 2011) 20 9 - 29
BEAE(RZE——F M SuShounan
NRTBEE) (resigned on 16 August 2011) 35 10 - 45
TEELE Mr. Zong Pingsheng 60 20 - 80
BHREE Mr. Dai Xiangbo 60 20 - 80
175 59 - 234
235 2,728 46 3,009
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8. EEM = (») 8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued)
() BTEZ FFTESERBILEH (a) Executive directors, a non-executive director and
TES (£) independent non-executive directors (continued)

T RER RIRGHE

e ENH & 5% BeesE
Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits scheme Total
Fees inkind  contributions  remuneration

ARBTT  ARETT ARBTR ARETR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000

—Z-%f 2010
WITES: Executive directors:
BRELE Mr. Ma Jianrong - 739 9 748
EEMEE Mr. Huang Guanlin = 571 5 576
BSLA%E Mr. Ma Renhe - 450 5 455
@it Ms. Zheng Miaohui = 450 = 450
- 2,210 19 2,229
FRTES: Non-executive director:
BRARBLE Mr. Chen Zhongjing = 65 = 65
BUFHTES: Independent non-executive
directors:
Bamit Mr. Su Shounan 60 8 - 68
REAESE Mr. Zong Pingsheng 60 8 - 68
BHREE Mr. Dai Xiangbo 60 8 = 68
180 24 - 204
180 2,299 19 2,498
FN - WEESHENREHRESE There was no arrangement under which a director waived
A& 2 8k - or agreed to waive any remuneration during the year.
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9. IEBSHFMES 9. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES
FAhERaTMNEERE—R (= The five highest paid employees during the year included one
—EF MB)EF FEZHEFBEE (2010: two) directors, details of whose remuneration are set out
R EXHEES - FAEBSIUE (ZE—F in note 8 above. Details of the remuneration of the remaining
F:=R)IEERATNEE ZBESF four (2010: three) non-director, highest paid employees for the
BT year are as follows:

rEH
Group
—F2——-F —T-FF
2011 2010
AR TR ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
e R REYNE Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 4,528 1,984
RIRET B Pension scheme contributions 24 24
4,552 2,008
MENFUATHERCIEESES HBE The number of non-director, highest paid employees whose
B A remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows:
EEAH™
Number of employees
—E——F —E-TF
2011 2010
£ %1,000,000/% 7T Nil to HK$1,000,000 - 3
1,000,000/ 7t £2,000,0007% 7T HK$1,000,000 to HK$2,000,000 4 -
4 3
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10. EIREF 10. RETIREMENT BENEFITS

—E——F —E-TF
2011 2010
ARET T ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
Bk Dk Income statement charge for
— R IRR R A 5K — Retirement benefit contributions 55,212 48,948

AEBNFEAEZ Z2BEE ZRIKE
NZZHA BN E B 2 RIKEF SR
B RBZEFE AEEARERH
CREZETEDLBEETEBRE L
RAEERRE RENHER LHEH
BT E REMA -

RER B IR IR R B DR A R AR
BERARERSERESHEZEES
H-TFRERFRBESE - HRIIZ
BEEAFERKBEADLXMN LR
ERETARANEAXNBEREER
k- RBEEAECEEFABYLEE
ZEGR BAKBNEESHARE
AEEZ BERFNABESFEER

HRAKZ2BRES -

RRBEITEEIMAR L 2ENBA
AN (REE) AR DE ([HMERE
E)ERBEBEHRBIATLES
e mRABNEEHER (FEHRK) -

B bRt 2 RN - AN SR B B R A AR
Hi R EBNREF A AEEZ2EE-
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The retirement benefits of full-time employees of the Group in
Mainland China are covered by various government-sponsored
pension plans under which the premiums and welfare benefit
contributions that should be borne by the Group are calculated
based on percentages of the total salary of employees, subject
to a certain ceiling, and are paid to the relevant government
authorities.

The Group also participates in a defined contribution MPF
Scheme in Hong Kong under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance, for those employees who are eligible to
participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made based
on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are
charged to the income statement as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of
the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group
in an independently administered fund. The Group’s employer
contributions vest fully with the employees when contributed
into the MPF Scheme.

Shenzhou (Cambodia) Co., Ltd. (“Shenzhou Cambodia”),
a wholly-owned subsidiary incorporated in the Kingdom
of Cambodia, is required to contribute amounts based on
employees’ salaries (defined contribution) to the retirement
benefit scheme as stipulated by the relevant local authority.

The Group has no further obligation for post-retirement benefits
or housing funds beyond contributions in respect of the above.
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11. FrIB % 11. INCOME TAX

BE_Z——FR_ZT—TFE+_A
=+ HUEFEZHEHEAXEEXKD

The major components of income tax expense for the years
ended 31 December 2011 and 2010 are:

rEE

Group
—E——F —E-FF
2011 2010
AR¥ T ARBF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
BB EHREM Current Hong Kong profits tax 39,012 19,792

B KRE 2 & Bl % Current Mainland China corporate income tax

e ([REMBRI)  (‘CIT) 321,594 325,746
EIEF IR (MFE27) Deferred taxation (note 27) (6,033) 6,414
354,573 351,952

REFSEENKERE(—NAINEF
ERTMR)ENGE ARAREEREHS
REBEERTBAAG AEFBLEXR
IR RBHARBRBHAENEHL
WA FIBER - R AR AR
ERRERG WARBTBEL 2
JERTLAHRE16.5% (ZE—TF:
16.5% ) Z MR BB FFH -

REBE LS MM EA A
BEBHAEHR FRARZEHEB AR
REBRELZHEESTELEWIE(RE
HMBEE) TEREBRELHSE
THEMER Bt REBEXAESTE
MR ZHBRRIXKFEEHEEBRRA A
([k%F]) BEEREERAR(IE
HE|)RERBV.LARAR ([EE
BVI) B EME - HRKFER BN
EREMNEEN WERBBELL
EEr AR EAEZ16.5% (ZE—F
F:16.5% ) 2B EHMBENEH -
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Pursuant to section 6 of the Tax Concessions Law (1999
Revision) of the Cayman Islands, the Company has obtained
an undertaking from the Governor-in-Council that no law
which is enacted in the Cayman Islands imposing any tax to
be levied on profits or income or gain or appreciation shall
apply to the Company or its operations. As the Company
carries on business in Hong Kong, it is subject to Hong Kong
profits tax at the rate of 16.5% (2010: 16.5%) on the estimated
assessable profits arising in Hong Kong.

The subsidiaries incorporated in the BVI are not subject to
income tax as these subsidiaries do not have a place of
business (other than a registered office only) or carry on any
business in the BVI. Accordingly, Top Always Investments
Ltd. (“Top Always”), Buddies Investments Limited (“‘Buddies”)
and Maxwin (B.V.l.) Limited (“Maxwin BVI”), subsidiaries
incorporated in the BVI, are not subject to tax. As Top Always
was engaged in property leasing business in Hong Kong, it is
subject to Hong Kong profit tax at the rate of 16.5% (2010:
16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit arising in Hong
Kong.
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11. Fr8 % (#2) 11. INCOME TAX (continued)

BRERBRIEHBE RRBREIE
M AL 2 2 BB R m M (SRIHER)
BRAB (THMRIBHER]) BIR20%H
RGMPAED . XN E N EENFRE
HREBAMEN BN RBRNAEE
I #5 & R A7 o

REBEMAZZMBARREMNESE
BRAB([RMES]) KFR(FBE)KR
BEARRAA([XFBEEFE (&
B)ERAE ([BEEFE])ALR16.6%
—E-FF:16.5% ) NBEHB XN
BRELEZ AT AR BHMATIE-

RBEAEMAZZZEMB AR RMA
AR g ([HMNBAR])RIEAAH
BERIR ISR E30% N B AELE
Z RN BB TR -l 1 F A B M
BRI S5 B AN B A AT FERR A A -
BB B AP S B AT IR B

RIBFEARIMBERMETAE (15
EMEBE]) &P BB QRN
MR XM EBATE 2 BRTA
BIR25% 2 R G - 1EE T FH B
NEIRSN ZERRBHEEERNFE
B-ERRBAMETBEMAEN kR
BER=FEERP R+ ZEE KA
HRELRRRER _T——FE_FT——
FHAR B A
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Shenzhou (Cambodia) Co., Ltd. (“Shenzhou Cambodia”) ,
a wholly-owned subsidiary incorporated in the Kingdom of
Cambodia, under the Law on Taxation, is subject to income tax
at a rate of 20% and is entitled to be exempted from income
tax for the first four profit-making years. Shenzhou Cambodia
had no assessable profits during the year.

Shenzhou Trading Company Limited (“Shenzhou Trading”), Top
Always (Hong Kong) Investment Limited (“Top Always HK”)
and Maxwin (Hong Kong) Limited (“Maxwin HK”), subsidiaries
incorporated in Hong Kong, are subject to the profits tax rate
of 16.5% (2010: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits
arising in Hong Kong.

Shenzhou Japan Co., Ltd. (“Shenzhou Japan”), a wholly-
owned subsidiary incorporated in Japan, under the Law of
Taxation of Japan, is subject to income tax at a rate of 30%
of the assessable profits arising in Japan. No provision for
Japan income tax has been made as Shenzhou Japan had no
assessable profits arising in Japan during the year.

Pursuant to the Corporate Income Tax Law of the People’s
Republic of China (the “New CIT Law”), the assessable income
of each of the PRC subsidiaries for the period as determined
in accordance with the New CIT Law is subject to a tax rate
of 25%, except for certain of these subsidiaries, which are
exempted from the PRC income tax for two years starting from
their first profit-making year, followed by a 50% reduction in the
applicable tax rate for the next three years. The tax holidays
and concessions will expire between 2011 and 2012.
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11. Fr8 % (#2)

11.

BEMXEEH A BRABE S ——
FR-F—BFE+-A=+—HILRH
FEZPEFABEL HEMT

INCOME TAX (continued)

A reconciliation between tax expense and the product of
accounting profit multiplied by the PRC’s domestic tax rate
for the tax years ended 31 December 2011 and 2010 is as
follows:

&
Group
=E——F —E-FF
2011 2010
AR T ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
B 758 B A Profit before tax 2,059,420 1,624,597
LAYE FE Ft 2 25% Tax at the statutory tax rate of 25%
—T-TF:25%) (2010: 25%)
B ZHIEA 514,855 406,149
FFRE A 10 gt 77 BB FT Lower tax rate for specific provinces or
B2 BRIK T & enacted by local authority (179,682) (120,804)
HUARTEARE 2 AR IE AY Adjustments in respect of current tax of
FakS previous periods 3,431 58,937
AT X Expenses not deductible for tax 3,817 1,706
Tt 2= 4 &) S R ST A TE HY Effect of change in tax rate on deferred tax
T & (331) (477)
FRARBRZHMIEEE Tax losses not recognised during the year 17,242 9,994
FIA R AR AN Utilisation of previously unrecognised
MIAER deductible tax losses (4,759) (3,553)
354,573 351,952
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12. B R EHEE AELFE

BHE—_ZT——F+-_A=+—RBIEE
ZERAHE ANEGEE N EEENE
AR#108,771,0007 (ZF—FF : A
R #143,121,00070) ' ERA R R B 7%
MRAFRIE -

13. KRB

12. PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF
THE PARENT
The consolidated profit attributable to owners of the parent
for the year ended 31 December 2011 includes a profit of
RMB103,771,000 (2010: RMB143,121,000) which has been
dealt with in the financial statements of the Company.

13. DIVIDENDS

KAFE
Company
—E——F —E—FF
2011 2010
ARET R ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
BORARHIIE S FI L @AY Proposed final dividend of HK$0.50
0.50/8 0 (—ZE—ZT 4 (2010: HK$0.36) per ordinary share
0.36/8 7T ) 504,661 381,373

REF 2 HBR RIS AR AR A RR
RIEE R RBF RS k-
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The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to the
approval of the Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.
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14. BRFAEBERRESEAENL
BERERN

BRERBNNIZE QBT BERBEER
BEARGEFENBERAFADETER
Bz g8 &

AR EEREARBERN 2 WA R
iy EF RBREAT :

14.

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE

TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
PARENT

Basic earnings per share amounts are calculated by dividing
the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of
the parent by the weighted average number of ordinary shares
in issue during the year.

The following reflects the income and share data used in the
basic and diluted earnings per share calculations:

Group
—F——F —TFF
2011 2010
AR TR ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
=l Earnings
FARERRERFAE A Profit attributable to ordinary equity
JE A5 7)) holders of the parent 1,703,845 1,271,654
BRHEE
Number of Shares
—E——F —E-TF
2011 2010
Sl T i
Thousands Thousands
% 4 Shares
ARetEEREAREFIZ  Weighted average number of ordinary shares
T @A hnkE T & used in the basic earnings per share
calculation 1,245,000 1,245,000

BE_T——Fk=-F-FTF+-A
ST RLEFE AREYESETZ
TRARABCEELE -
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The Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in issue
during the years ended 31 December 2011 and 2010.

FMBEREEZERAERAR 135

Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited



B ISR AL

Notes to Financial Statement

—T——F+=-H=+—H 31 December 2011

15. 1% - BERRE 15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
£%8
Group
HHRR
BF BERKSE RE BEkE EEIR @t
Furniture
Plant and Motor and Construction
Buildings ~ machinery vehicles fixtures  in progress Total

ARBTR  ARBTR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

“E--E+Zf=1-H 31 December 2011

WZZE-FF+-A=+—HK At31 December 2010 and

R_E——%—-f—H: at 1 January 2011:

XA Cost 1,557,747 2,382,048 56,077 140,240 183,660 4,319,772

ZAMERRE Accumulated depreciation and

impairment (251,602) (988,897) (26,131) (62,125) - (1,328,755)

REFE Net carrying amount 1,306,145 1,393,151 29,946 78,115 183,660 2,991,017
W-ZE——%-f—-R" At 1 January 2011, net of accumulated

BEMRZFTERRE depreciation and impairment 1,306,145 1,393,151 29,946 78,115 183,660 2,991,017
RE Additions 13,854 207,020 12,112 20,431 50,672 304,089
HE Disposals (520) (3,533) (964) (68) - (5,085)
FENERR Depreciation provided during the year (83,924) (199,644) (8,994) (20,728) - (313,290)
B Transfers 197,118 1,049 - 423 (198,590) -
5 AR Exchange realignment (433) (1,201) (41) ©) - (1,773)
RZE——F At 31 December 2011, net of

+ZA=t-8 accumulated depreciation and

EHREFHTE RiE impairment 1,432,240 1,396,752 32,059 78,165 35,742 2,974,958
RZE——F At 31 December 2011:

+=A=1+-8:

XA Cost 1,767,766 2,585,293 67,184 161,018 35,742 4,617,003

ZEAMERRE Accumulated depreciation and

impairment (335,526)  (1,188,541) (35,125) (82,853) - (1,642,045)
ERFE Net carrying amount 1,432,240 1,396,752 32,059 78,165 35,742 2,974,958
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15. Y% BWERRE (#) 15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(continued)
rEE
Group
BiR R HR
BF e "E EEHE FEIR by
Furniture
Plant and Motor and  Construction
Buildings machinery vehicles fixtures  in progress Total

ARBTT  ARBTT ARETT ARETE AREBTR ARETR
RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000

“Z-FF+-A=+—H 31 December 2010

RZZZNF+=-A=1+—H At 31 December 2009 and
FRZE-ZF-A—-8: at 1 January 2010:

KA Cost 1418475 2,079,668 46,753 90,568 153,104 3,788,568
ZHMERRE Accumulated depreciation and
impairment (167,721) (845,196 (20,730) (46,125) - (1,079,772)

FEFE Net carrying amount 1,250,754 1,234,472 26,023 44,443 153,104 2,708,796
RZZ-F%¥-/A—-8" At 1 January 2010, net of accumulated

BEMREHTERRE depreciation and impairment 1,250,754 1,234,472 26,023 44,443 153,104 2,708,796
RE Additions 30,265 281,328 12,067 20,283 170,247 514,190
WE—RIMB AR Acquisition of a subsidiary 56,993 - S - - 56,993
HE Disposals - (1,096) (271) (807) - (2,174)
FENERRE Depreciation provided during the year (73,772)  (185,848) (7.909) (18,497) - (286,026)
EE Transfers 42,243 64,701 50 32,697 (139,691) -
L Exchange realignment (338) (406) (14) 4 - (762)
R-E-Z& At 31 December 2010, net of

+=-A=+—-8" accumulated depreciation and

BEMREHTERRE impairment 1,306,145 1,393,151 29,946 78,115 183,660 2,991,017
RZFE-TF At 31 December 2010;

t+-A=t+-8:

KA Cost 1,557,747 2,382,048 56,077 140,240 183,660 4,319,772

ZHMERRE Accumulated depreciation and

impairment (251,602)  (988,897) (26,131) (62,125) - (1,328,755)
FEFE Net carrying amount 1,306,145 1,393,151 29,946 78,115 183,660 2,991,017
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15. Y% BWERRE (#) 15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(continued)
RZE——F+_A=+—8 &% At 31 December 2011, certain of the Group’s buildings with
B iR FELN A/ AR S518,751,0007T a net book value of approximately RMB518,751,000 (2010:
—FT—-FF: AK%180,317,0007T) RMB180,317,000) were pledged to secure general banking
ZETEFERFERETAERE 2 — facilities granted to the Group (note 26).

MRIRTTEE 2 2R (F43E26) -

16. A LA EFIE 16. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS
NEBZEMN TR ERBERED T The carrying amounts of the Group’s prepaid land lease
R payments are analysed as follows:

rEH
Group
—E——fF —E-FF
2011 2010
AR T ARET T
RMB’000 RMB’000
%N Cost:
R—H—H At 1 January 498,910 217,296
NE Additions 80,097 16,271
WE—RMB AT Acquisition of a subsidiary - 265,343
R+=ZA=+—H At 31 December 579,007 498,910
RErHEE Accumulated amortisation:
w—A—H At 1 January 20,404 11,475
F 2T Amortisation during the year 11,196 8,929
R+=—A=+—8H At 31 December 31,600 20,404
BREF(E Net book value:
R+=ZA=+—H At 31 December 547,407 478,506
n—H—H At 1 January 478,506 205,821
AEEZEMN L wHEEFBMRFE K The prepaid land lease payments of the Group are situated in
B WA ERFA A HRIS B - Mainland China and are held under medium term lease.
R-ZE——F+-_A=+—H KA&£H At 31 December 2011, certain prepaid land lease payments
BREFEN A ARES6,165,0007T (= of the Group with a net book value of approximately
T —ZT4F: AR¥32,135,0007T) 2 5& RMB86,165,000 (2010: RMB32,135,000) were pledged to
FrEMLHEAEREDERIEAE TR secure general banking facilities granted to the Group (note
S8z —MBRITEEZER (HMizE26) ° 26).
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17. B EE

17. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

rEE
Group
B4 K et
Water Use
Software Right” Total
ARETT ARET R ARETRT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
—E——F 31 December 2011
+=ZB=+—H
MN-_ZT——%F—F—H Costat 1 January 2011, net of
A BEHUR RET accumulated amortisation
ki 3,623 112,338 115,961
NE Additions 721 - 721
FREEBIERE Amortisation provided during the year (504) (6,450) (6,954)
R-ZZE——F At 31 December 2011
+=B=+—H 3,840 105,888 109,728
R-Z2——F% At 31 December 2011
+=ZB=+-—-8”:
BN Cost 5,277 129,001 134,278
B § Accumulated amortisation (1,437) (23,113) (24,550)
REFE Net carrying amount 3,840 105,888 109,728
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—T——F+=-H=+—H 31 December 2011

17. B EE (&)

17. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

ZEERFNATZZHEARAK
B8 ZRmibmEKFREER T
BERKBARRZ-ZZEZNEFFILZ =
DHAEHZ AEEERERE K
T2 4 AR #129,000,0007T * MA{R
FUNEBBRERHEESKEARER A
H20F ([AKE]) - BHE=-T——
F+-_A=+—H AEBEELZFA
K #53,000,000t (Z T —ZTF: A
R #53,000,0007T) ' 8 T AR
76,000,0007T B 51 A H fth f& (< 5118 ©
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rE
Group
Bt FK#E Bt
Water
Software Use Right* Total
ARETT ARETT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
—T-FF 31 December 2010
+=—A=+—H
RZZE—ZFF—H—H Costat 1 January 2010, net of
2R BHR 25T accumulated amortisation
i 3,450 118,788 122,238
NE Additions 597 - 597
FEBIEEE Amortisation provided during the year (424) (6,450) (6,874)
RZZE-TF At 31 December 2010
+=-—A=+—8 3,623 112,338 115,961
R-F-TF At 31 December 2010
+ZA=+—-H:
BN Cost 4,556 129,000 133,556
ZETHEH Accumulated amortisation (933) (16,662) (17,595)
R FE Net carrying amount 3,623 112,338 115,961
R AR B 0= it m @ BT R * Pursuant to an agreement entered into by the Group and the

Government of Beilun District, Ningbo City, in April 2006 and
three supplementary agreements entered into by the Group,
Ningbo Beilun Water Conservancy Bureau and Ningbo Water
Supply General Company in 2008, the Group has agreed to pay
the local government an amount of RMB129 million in exchange
for a guaranteed constant water supply with a favourable
price for a period of 20 years (“Water Use Right”). As at 31
December 2011, the Group has paid RMB53,000,000 (2010:
RMB53,000,000), and the remaining RMB76,000,000 was
included in other payables.
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18. RB AR ZBRERKTHE

18. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES AND

ARIZEXK LOANS TO SUBSIDIARIES
(a) RHBARZERE (a) Investments in subsidiaries
KA T
Company
—2-—-F C—T-BF
2011 2010
AREBF T ARETTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
JE EWRR LKA Unlisted shares, at cost 648,898 616,293

TEWBARZFEBWOT : Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:
AR ES
AL L 3t B R e NER FTEEBR
£8 EARRZES BRTRA BE B Rl
Percentage of
Place of equity attributable to
incorporation and Issued the Company Principal activities and
Name kind of legal entity share capital Direct Indirect  place of operations
X RRREAES. 30,002 7T 100% - REGRREENE
BBREART
Top Always BVI, limited US$30,002 100% = Investment holding and
liability company property leasing
BN AR AR e N 116,000,000 7 - 100%  REEAEER
(leista]) NEBERE HESBREER
Ningbo Shenzhou Knitting ~ Mainland China, US$116,000,000 = 100% Manufacture and sale of knitwear
Co., Ltd. (“Shenzhou wholly-foreign-owned products in Mainland China
Knitting”) enterprise
Bkt B AT IR - 7,814,655 7T - 100%  RAPERENRK
BRAR (THEEFE]) NEBERE HESBREER
Ningbo Shixing Knitwear Mainland China, US$7,814,655 = 100% Print and sale of knitwear
Printing Co., Ltd. wholly-foreign-owned products in Mainland China
(“Shixing Printing”) enterprise
ERELOTERLT REIARE - 140,000 7T - 100%  RAPEAREDSK
(T4487%]) NEBERE HESBREER
Ningbo Lele Printing Co., Mainland China, US$140,000 = 100% Print and sale of knitwear

Ltd. (“Lele Printing”)
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18. RIB A RIZRERALTHE 18.

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES AND

REZER (#) LOANS TO SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
(a) RHEBARZERE (&) Investments in subsidiaries (continued)
AN EEE
AR ER i ENER TEXBR
£ EAERZE ERTRA E# B KERE
Percentage of
Place of equity attributable to
incorporation and Issued the Company Principal activities and
Name kind of legal entity share capital Direct Indirect  place of operations
ERBRNEERAT hBIRRE 10,000,000% 70 - 91%  RHBEIARHE
([B#EEE]) MEEERE HES BRE F‘uu
Ningbo Yongmian Fashion  Mainland China, foreign US$10,000,000 = 91% Manufacture and sale of knitwear
Garment Co., Ltd. equity joint venture products in Mainland China
(*Yongmian Fashion”)
ERRRERERAT KR 5,000,000% T - 91%  RHBEIARHE
(MR&EE]) NERERE HEHBRE F‘uu
Ningbo Shendie Fashion Mainland China, foreign US$5,000,000 = 91% Manufacture and sale of knitwear
Co., Ltd. (“Shendie equity joint venture products in Mainland China
Fashion”)
BNRER RERTHE 30,000,000% 7t - 100% RRERHER
NEBERE HESHEREER
Shenzhou Cambodia Kingdom of Cambodia, US$30,000,000 = 100% Manufacture and sale of knitwear
wholly-foreign-owned products in Cambodia
enterprise
BERATHHARERAR  FEKE 60,000,000% 7T - 100%  REEAEHE
(TRF5H&]) NEBERE iﬁ‘%ﬁ%&ﬁﬁ Fuu
Ningbo Dagian Knitting Co., ~ Mainland China, wholly- US$60,000,000 = 100% Manufacture and sale of knitwear
Ltd. (‘Dagian Knitting”) foreign-owned enterprise products in Mainland China
B AR 2 A e 8,036,260% 7T - 100%  REEAERE
([PAhstsil) NEBERE ﬂuliﬂa&ﬁ& F‘uu
Ningbo Linlin Knitting Co., ~ Mainland China, wholly- US$8,036,260 = 100% Manufacture and processing of
Ltd. (“Linlin Knitting”) foreign-owned enterprise knitwear products in Mainland
China
ERERRHERAA eI 9,200,100% 7T - 100%  AHREAREEE
([ZREE]) NEBERE MISHE % Fuu
Tuton Textile (Ningbo) Co., ~ Mainland China, wholly- US$9,200,100 = 100% Manufacture and processing of

Ltd. (‘Ningbo Tuton”)
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knitwear products in Mainland
China
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18. R B AR 2 RE KRG THE

18.

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES AND

REZER (#) LOANS TO SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
(a) RHEBARZERE (&) (a) Investments in subsidiaries (continued)
AN EEE
AR ER i ENER TEXBR
£ EAERZE BRTRA BEE B KERE
Percentage of
Place of equity attributable to
incorporation and Issued the Company Principal activities and
Name kind of legal entity share capital Direct Indirect  place of operations
BNEA (ZB)ERAR  REAR 10,000,000% 70 - 100%  RAEARRESE
(leizsl) NEBERE JJDI@H&%H& F‘uu
Shenzhou Knitting (Anhui) Mainland China wholly- US$10,000,000 = 100% Manufacture and processing of
Co., Ltd. (“Shenzhou foreign-owned enterprise knitwear products in Mainland
Anhui”) China
BNEA (BN BRAR  REAR 8,000,000% T - 100%  WAEAMERE
(lepEn) NEBERE ﬂuliﬂf&ﬁ& F‘uu
Shenzhou Knitting (Quzhou) ~ Mainland China wholly- US$8,000,000 = 100% Manufacture and processing of
Co., Ltd. (“Shenzhou foreign-owned enterprise knitwear products in Mainland
Quzhou”) China
LEERRHERAA BN AK#2,000,0007C - 100%  RAREARE
(T E&SE]) %é‘i%*“ 2B HRA
Shanghai Maxwin Garments ~ Mainland China sole RMB2,000,000 = 100%  Trading company in Mainland
Co., Ltd. (“Shanghai proprietorship company China
Maxwin”)
BERATHELOBREA HEKE AR #10,000,0007T - 100%  RAEE KR
RA([RFELAT) BBREART ELOER
Ningbo Dagian Import & Mainland China, limited RMB10,000,000 = 100% Import and export of
Export Co., Ltd (‘Dagian liability company commodities in company
Import & Export”) Mainland China
BNE S R 10087 - 100% REFELAEM
BREELA
Shenzhou Trading Hong Kong, limited liability HK$100 = 100% Import and export of
company commodities in Hong Kong
XREE N 100 7T - 100% BREZRERRBBELOER
BREELA
Top Always HK Hong Kong, limited liability HK$100 = 100% Investment holding and import
company and export of commodities in
Hong Kong
Ei&’\ﬁfﬁﬁﬁ*‘*ifﬁiﬁl hEARE. AR #8,000,0007T - 100%  RAPEAEES
BRAA([EE]) BREFLA KK AR
Ningbo Hengzh| Clothing Mainland China, limited RMB8,000,000 = 100% Clothing detection in Mainland

Detection Co., Ltd.
(*Hengzhi”)
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18. RIB AR 2R ENRL FHE 18. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES AND
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REZER (#) LOANS TO SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
(a) RHEBARZERE (&) (a) Investments in subsidiaries (continued)
AN A EE
AL AR Lt B R e NER TEXBR
£ EARRZER BRTRA EE B REBH
Percentage of
Place of equity attributable to
incorporation and Issued the Company Principal activities and

Name kind of legal entity share capital Direct Indirect  place of operations

ERBEHBERAA mEIAE SEBERE 3,060,000 ¢ - 100% MR EAESER NI ERE
(IBEstE] Al Em
[ERABEFERAAL)

Ningbo Yongyi Knitting Co., ~ Mainland China, wholly- US$3,060,000 = 100% Manufacture and process of
Ltd. (“Yongyi Knitting” foreign-owned enterprise knitwear products in Mainland
former “Ningbo Chuangyi China
Electronics Co., Ltd.")

Y lI=R B 5,000,0008 - 100% MRBAZEHAR

BREART

Shenzhou Japan Japan, limited liability JPY5,000,000 = 100%  Trading company in Japan

company

ERTARGERAR (12 HEAE AR #:80,000,0007 - 100% A EIARE
BERL ABIERAE  BREARA ETTERH
FREERAT])

Ningbo Maxwin Fashion Mainland China, limited RMB80,000,000 = 100% Retail in Mainland China
Co., Ltd. (“Ningbo liability company
Maxwin”, Former
“Ningbo Hongma
Fashion Co., Ltd.")

ZERMNELOBRAR  HEAE. AR #5,000,0007C - 100% WA EARE
(FM=E]) BREERA ELOER

Anging Shenzhou Import Mainland China, limited RMB5,000,000 = 100% Import and export of
& Export Co., Ltd. liability company commodities in Mainland
(“Shenzhou Anging”) China

FEBAEEERARA (IS HEAE. AR #10,000,0007 - 100%  MAEAE
HEX]) BEREERT ETHEERRH

Shanghai Maxwin Industry ~ Mainland China, limited RMB10,000,000 = 100% Property management in
Co., Ltd. (“Maxwin liability company Mainland China
Industry”)

BEE ERRLHEE BREAAA 10,000% 7T 100% - REER

Buddies BVI, limited liability company US$10,000 100% = Investment holding

Annual Report 2011 4 %}



B ISR AL

Notes to Financial Statement

—T——F+=-H=+—H 31 December 2011

18. RIB AR ZBRERKTHE

18.

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES AND

REZER (#) LOANS TO SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
(a) RHEBARZERE (&) (a) Investments in subsidiaries (continued)
ANFEL
AR ER ENER TEERR
2% EABRZER ERITRE B % HE-$ik
Percentage of
Place of equity attributable to
incorporation and Issued the Company Principal activities and
Name kind of legal entity share capital Direct Indirect  place of operations
SEBVI RERAEE BREAAH 10,000 T 95% - REEK
Maxwin BVI BVI, limited liability company US$10,000 95% = Investment holding
SEES BB BREEAA 10,0007 - 95% REZR
Maxwin HK Hong Kong, limited liability HK$10,000 = 95% Investment holding
company
SR (FE)ERAR REARE HNEBEELE = - 95% IR E AR EREEAIME
(TEEwE])
Maxwin (China) Limited Mainland China, wholly- = = 95% Pre-operating in Mainland China
(“Maxwin China”) foreign-owned enterprise
ERGEARAT HEARE HNEBEELE = - 100%  FIRFREAE  EREERER
([#2])
Huayao Textile Limited Mainland China, wholly- = = 100% Pre-operating in Mainland China
(*Huayao”) foreign-owned enterprise
(b) HTHEBLAEZER (b) Loans to subsidiaries
RIERBEEFLTHBARZ The loans to subsidiaries included in the Company’s
FEERG AEER R REE non-current assets are unsecured, interest-free and
TE B HAS B A 0] KA B o settlement is neither planned nor likely to occur in the
BTWBRARIZERBRERAA foreseeable future. The loans to subsidiaries included in
RIZRBEEN ZEERAER the Company’s current assets are unsecured, interest-
B RBRERKIN—FAE free and repayable on demand or within one year.
= .
(c) FEW FENHEBRIRE (c) Amounts due from/to subsidiaries

AARRAIRBEE,BEZEK
SR A R RIE R EER £
BREARBERIR—FAERE-

Annual Report 2011 4 %

The amounts due from/to subsidiaries included in the
Company’s current assets/liabilities of are unsecured,
interest-free and are repayable on demand or within one
year.
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19. &8 19. INVENTORIES
rEE
Group
—E——fF —E—FF
2011 2010
ARET T ARBF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
R Raw materials 403,109 502,453
RS Work in progress 878,288 793,963
BIRY Finished goods 671,417 512,368
1,952,814 1,808,784
20. EWRA R EE 20. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES
X 5@ NG
Group Company
—Z——F —T-%F —E——F —E-ZF
2011 2010 2011 2010
ARETR ARET T ARET T ARET T
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
JEYRF R RE Trade and bills receivables 1,313,646 897,211 435,862 299,149
ERED Impairment = - - _
1,313,646 897,211 435,862 299,149
AEBERFZESHERFEUEER The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly on
RET EEHANTSEAUA & & credit with credit terms of within six months. Overdue balances
EREe TR BARMNEHS - are reviewed regularly by senior management.
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20. ENERRERE (#) 20. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued)
RFEBRR BRIEBERZEBRFE 2 EK An aged analysis of the trade and bills receivables as at the
RN ERERROTUOT end of the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as

follows:
AEE NN
Group Company
“E-—-% —EZ-TF ZB--f C"T-F%F
2011 2010 2011 2010
ARETRE ARETT AR®Tx ARETR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
=EAR Within three months 1,237,370 863,011 435,862 299,149
=EANLE Over three months 76,276 34,200 - =
1,313,646 897,211 435,862 299,149
REAR AR E 2 EBEER R EIRIRER D The aged analysis of the trade and bills receivables that are not
T considered to be impaired is as follows:
r5E b N
Group Company
“E-—-% 2T BE--f CT-%%
2011 2010 2011 2010
ARETR ARETn AR®Tx ARETR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
A HRE Neither past due nor impaired 1,292,169 855,625 435,862 299,149
BHIR=MEA Less than three months past due 10,071 38,287 - =
BH=EANE Over three months past due 11,406 3,299 - =
1,313,646 897,211 435,862 299,149
IR 380 HA oY (B 2 FE WU Rk I8 B 3 HA NP 4 48 Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to
AN BEPEM- the customers for whom there was no recent history of default.
B BE R R E 2 BRI A T Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a
XM ZEBEFPRASENRZE number of independent customers that have a good track
BRI -REBALRH ANARESR record with the Group. Based on past experience, the directors
A AR EEERTEEANEE Bz of the Company are of the opinion that no provision for
SRR AR 28U E - WEAER impairment is necessary in respect of these balances as there
ZEBRETIRAER M ANEE X has not been a significant change in credit quality and the
ZEERFTFEEWER R E MR balances are still considered fully recoverable. The Group does
FAlEEEELHE- not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over these
balances.
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20. EWWERF R ERE (&)

20. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued)

RZB——F+A=+—8H EB¥KE
RRERIATIIEEFE:

At 31 December 2011, the trade and bills receivables were
denominated in the following currencies:

AEE
Group
—2--% —T-FF
2011 2010
F&E%  AR%ZEE RE®  AREZE
Original RMB Original RMB
currency equivalent currency equivalent
Trn ARBT:R Tr ARETRT
in’000 RMB’000 in’000 RMB’000
ET Us$ 139,389 878,276 88,565 586,541
AR RMB 435,370 435,370 310,670 310,670
1,313,646 897,211
N
Company
—2--% —Z-%F
2011 2010
F&E%  AR%ZEE RE®  AR¥ZE
Original RMB Original RMB
currency equivalent currency equivalent
Fr AR®Tx Fr ARETR
in’000 RMB’000 in’000 RMB’000
ETT Us$ 69,175 435,862 45,170 299,149

&/

o
T

o
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The carrying amounts of the trade

approximate to their fair values.

and bills receivables
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21. AR RE - REREMEWS 21. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER

| RECEIVABLES
r5E b NG|
Group Company
—E--§ —T-TF “E--f —T-FF
2011 2010 2011 2010

ARBTR ARETT ARBTR ARETR
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000

AN RIBERIES Prepayments and deposits
—BERME ~ Purchase of raw materials 68,558 142,770 - -
—BEWME HBENX - Purchase of items of property,
HE2EE plant and equipment 24,687 5,054 - =
- A RIES - Prepaid rental and deposits 49,162 36,130 - =
—E At - Others 9 523 = =

FEU R AT YL BI3E{E R VAT refund receivable and
S recoverable 104,412 166,498 = =

e = F KT B A = j% B Dividends receivable from

certain subsidiaries - - 843,888 749,589

E & Y 5K IE Other receivables 54,815 31,074 - 81
301,730 382,049 843,888 749,670

FEESESRT SR E - il & None of the above assets is either past due or impaired.
BETE & ¢ B & B3 5 30 48 R FRGE 8% The financial assets included in the above balances relate to
ZIEWGRIBEE R - receivables for which there was no recent history of default.
TENFIE e REMERFKIE KRR The carrying amounts of prepayments, deposits and other
EEEQNDERS - receivables approximate to their fair values.
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22 HERREEEY 22. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

b= AAF
Group Company
“2--f 2T CZB--§ _"ZT-TF
2011 2010 2011 2010
ARETR ARET T ARET R ARET T
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
Re RFTHER Cash and bank balances 609,979 512,528 92,593 99,113
MEFEIR=EA 2 Bank deposits with initial term of
RITER less than three months 419,617 6,489 - =
RekReEEY Cash and cash equivalents 1,029,596 519,017 92,593 99,113

R|EHR KREBUAARBAEZR
& MIRITH 82 B AR 751,504,000
T(ZZE—ZFF: AR#¥273,339,000

TL) s ARB AR EHABRARMER -
SR - AR T B A 3 2 SN BE B IR 1R ) K
BE - EERNEERRTE AEEE
HEE BERER AETEL R 2R
TRARBABASHEME -

RITEFRBRBRITZEAERMNELZ
FMERBAE - EHRFRA-BE=@
ATEZTRAYEEE RFAKEZ
BIRS 3R & &5k € - WIRHE KRS 17 3%
RIS - RITEBREFAREL
BRRCEZEEBRFRIT -HE MR
CHEEYZEREEREQAERE-
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At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank balances
of the Group denominated in RMB amounted to approximately
RMB751,504,000 (2010: RMB273,339,000). The RMB is
not freely convertible into other currencies. However, under
Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange
RMB for other currencies through banks authorised to conduct
foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. Short-term time deposits are made
for varying periods of between one day and three months
depending on the immediate cash requirements of the Group,
and earn interest at the respective short-term time deposit
rates. The bank balances are deposited with creditworthy
banks with no recent history of default. The carrying amounts
of the cash and cash equivalents approximate to their fair
values.
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23. ENRRRERE 23. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES
REmERR BNERERAEERRE ST An aged analysis of the trade and bills payables as at the end
R of the reporting period is as follows:
AEE ARF
Group Company
“E-——-% 2T BE--% CT-%%
2011 2010 2011 2010

ARBTRE ARETT AR®TR ARETR
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000

NMEA R Within six months 473,916 460,447 24,500 23,394
NIAE—F Six months to one year 6,792 16,745 = =
—EEME One year to two years 5,378 6,027 - =
N E Over two years 4,752 3,637 - -
490,838 486,856 24,500 23,394
ENEREEENTE EBNEREE The trade and bills payables are non-interest-bearing. The
BeHREEBEEARNAERES- carrying amounts of the trade and bills payables approximate

to their fair values.

24, Hitt B REREFTRIE 24. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS
AEE NG
Group Company
—E-—-% CZE-TF -E--f CT-T%
2011 2010 2011 2010
ARETRE AR%ETn AR®Tx ARETR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
e X Accrued expenses 221,217 229,125 150 154
Rk JE IR Payable for Water Use Right
(MEE17) (note 17) 76,000 76,000 - -
BENE BERREZ Payables for purchase of property,
JEfT5R0E plant and equipment 11,184 33,862 - -
BEHEETIRZRES Guarantee deposits related to
construction projects 3,260 S013 - -
H ot AR Other payables 42,164 32,054 - -
Hib 58 Other taxes payable 52,028 8,497 - =
BB R 2R E Dividends payable to
non-controlling interests 587 587 - -
406,440 376,638 150 154
E M REREFRIE RAERERE The carrying amounts of the other payables and accruals
AREEE HMWENFKIEDGE - approximate to their fair values. Other payables are non-

interest-bearing.
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25. fTHEE€m T A 25. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
—B--F
2011
A&H NG|
Group Company
i3 8% 8E 8
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities

AR®TR  ARMTR AR®TR AR%TR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

RHERAEH Forward currency contracts 27,331 (16,656) - (16,656)
—E-%F
2010
A5HE /NG|
Group Company
BE afE BE B8&
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
AREFT AREFTT ARETT ARETR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
RPEEAND Forward currency contracts 107,884 - 40,095 -
RHEBSYZEMEREE QA The carrying amounts of forward currency contracts are the
EE same as their fair values.
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5. fTE€®MTITH (%)

BHEEH-RL KR
A IR BTN B % R85
BEHEZHA TR RHEE AN
BRBE TR £ SN S8 8 A R 2 KT RSN
SHEST DLF ER

ﬁ%a%ﬁ%ﬁ,ﬁﬁmﬁﬁ%,ﬁﬁﬁaﬂ%ﬁ%

HEBEHZFH AEEEFH _-F
——E%EHﬂEIféiﬁﬁaﬁﬁfﬁéu@z%
/EPIEE ﬁzm]%"“ﬂﬁ)& JE?TE/%%E/\E
#5389,644,0007C (ZZF —ZTF : = A
R #27,968,0007T ) & T 5l 75 s 51 A ¥
R

25. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(continueq)

Forward currency contracts - cash flow hedges

Forward currency contracts are designated as hedging
instruments in respect of forecast future sales to overseas
customers. The forward currency contract balances vary with
the levels of expected foreign currency sales and changes in
foreign exchange forward rates.

The terms of the forward currency contracts have been
negotiated to match the terms of the forecast future sales.
The cash flow hedges relating to forecast future sales in the
year 2011 were assessed to be highly effective. Net losses
of RMB39,644,000 (2010: gains of RMB27,968,000) were
included in the hedging reserve as follows:

—E——F —T-FF
2011 2010
AR®B T ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
FFAE R FEE 2 A A Total fair value gains included in
Wk iR the hedging reserve 89,528 88,416
AAEWE 2 BEFRIE Deferred tax on fair value gains (22,534) (18,266)
HEMEEBAEITTHEE Reclassified from other comprehensive
Bk HHER income recognised in
the income statement (140,313) (50,920)
ENOE IR IBE ABzE  Deferred tax on reclassifications to
profit or loss 33,675 8,738
WemEsmz (E18), Iz Net (losses)/gains on cash flow hedges
HRR (39,644) 27,968

BEoN NEB IR T DEE R 2 HE
HIEAAREFABRS ZIINEEL Z
EINEEHRARBEETER 2 A
BERELAE FREAEEERINARBA
BUREEERRSHFRAEAS-
YN EETAT A ARBEES A
B 18 A R #41,302,0007T ' E R EFERNTE
BREANNBR (ZE—ZE: WHAR
#71,591,00070) - R=ZFT——F + =
A=+—HB X&EEFERFRING
4 #9210,000,000% L (=T — T F:
685,000,000 7t ) * B|HAE N F111@ A
Z16fEA(ZE—ZF 1@ A =24
A) -
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In addition, the Group has also entered into other foreign
currency contracts which are not designated for hedge
purpose and measured at fair value through profit or loss.
Such foreign currency contracts are settled based on the
extent of the appreciation of the RMB against the US$
exchange rates as management forecasts that the rate of
such appreciation will be different from that forecasted by
the counterparty. Changes in the fair value of non-hedging
currency derivatives amounting to loss of RMB41,302,000 were
charged to the income statement during the year (2010: gain
of RMB71,591,000). As at 31 December 2011, the Group held
outstanding foreign currency contracts of US$210,000,000
(2010: US$685,000,000) with periods ranging from 11 months
to 16 months (2010: from 1 month to 24 months).
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26. FFERITREMEBE 26. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER
BORROWINGS
r5E
Group
“Z--F ZT-%F
2011 2010
ERAZE(E) E ARET R BRI (E) g AREFT
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate (%) Maturity RMB’000 rate (%) Maturity RMB'000
ik} Current
ROER-BHH Bank loans - unsecured 250-275 —E-Zf& 283,820 128528 5% 1,206,393
2012 2011
RBBOEE -B-F 50,407 =
FEZ+1.00 2012
Libor+1.00
B/ RABOAE -3-=F 157,523 -
FEZ41.75 2012
Hibor/Libor+1.75
EABAEE —B-2f% 48,402 =
FEZ+2.00 2012
Hibor+2.00
wARTEE —F-2f 180,300 -
FEZ4+2.55 2012
Libor+2.55
ROER-BHA Bank loans - unsecured (due for EB/WARTAE —E-z&£» 75,611 =
(REXER) repayment on demand) FEEH.T5 2013 *
Hibor/Libor+1.75
BE/ARBTRE —T-mE# 113,416 -
FEZ41.75 2014 **
Hibor/Libor+1.75
REBIEE -B-f% 63,009 -
HEE4.70 2012
Libor+1.70
REBIEE —B-ZfF+ 126,018 -
HEE4.70 2013 *
Libor+1.70
REBIEE —B-mE~ 126,018 -
HEE+.70 2014 **
Libor+1.70
RTER-BHEA Bank loans - secured 855 C—E--F 10,000 128149 Z—Z——% 119,209
2012 2011
REPAEFZHSH  Current portion of WEBTEE -E--f 9,735 RABTRE -T—-F 25,285
Br-RER long term bank loans - secured FEZ+1.00 2012 HEE(AMER) +1.00 2011
Libor+1.00 Libor (6 months)
+1.00
1,244,259 1,349,887
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26. it ERTREMEE (&)

26. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER
BORROWINGS (continued)

558
Group
“E--% —5-%%
2011 2010
ERAI%(E) HHA AEETT ERAE(E) 5R ARETTL
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate (%) Maturity RMB’000 rate (%) Maturity RMB'000
Eik ) Non-current
EfEHMETER  Other secured bank loans - RABTAE -F--% 10,232
FEEH.00
Libor+1.00 2012
EfAEMBTER  Other secured bank loans S * —E-QE 69,500
2014
- 79,732
1,244,259 1,429,619
* FREARBRITIEMZZERAFHER * 10% discount of benchmark interest rates for loans with periods

EAER EHTE10%

o ZERTEERENRBEEAR  RT
BERBLHREN AR R ZRAR SN
BERMBRAE-SEEAEEELR
REBRAREEERNRITZEME

of three to five years announced by the People’s Bank of China

> These bank borrowings are included in current liabilities as
the banks have an overriding right to call for cash cover on
demand at any time without further reference to the Group and
to demand settlement of any balance owing by the Group to the

R o banks.
NG|
Company
“g--f —5-%%
2011 2010
ERAZ(E) H#A ARETR BRF%(E) E)if= AREFT
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate (%) Maturity RMB’000 rate (%) Maturity RMB'000
ikl Current
BOER-BEH Bank loans - unsecured 1.26-276 —E-Z% 720,452 128226 —E——F 318,819
2012 2011
BTER-BEA Bank loans - unsecured - - - AEREXH00 —F-—-% 52,982
Libor+1.00 2011
720,452 371,801
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26. T 2R HttEE (#) 26. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER
BORROWINGS (continued)
b= ¥ N
Group Company
—E——f —E-%F —E——F —E-ZF
2011 2010 2011 2010
ARETR ARET T ARET R ARET T
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
Mok Analysed into:
AR T HREEERZ Bank loans and overdrafts
RITEFREY : repayable:
—ERHREKR Within one year or on demand 1,244,259 1,349,887 720,452 371,801
FoF In the second year - 10,232 - =
F=FERF In the third to fifth years, inclusive
(BREEWE) - 69,500 - -
1,244,259 1,429,619 720,452 371,801

R=ZF——&%+=-—A=+—8"
AEBZEEREEEAARKE
2,263,084,000t (ZFE—FF:
AR #4 346,369,0007T) » Erh A
R #1,250,075,000T (=& — =&
F: AR¥1,791,869,0007T) E A
HREMBKEA - RREIR " K ED
AEEREREE (XRNE T
%) A AE#1,013,209,0007T (=

—ZF: AR ¥2,554,500,000
JT) °

AEBETRAOEBEUNLAEE
BFEREMN L EEZE (R R
EHRCBREEENABARKE
604,916,000 (ZZE —FF : A
R #212,452,0007T ) 2 % 18 £ 1K
(M FE15 KM zE16) °

B EEAR160,000,000
T(ZZFE - F: AR
569,500,0007T) 2 & TRI1TEE
AAREEEN BENUET A
B RABTTFE

ZK%@&Z’S’A*TZ“FE%T%??X
%’K%ﬁruzﬁ ARAREE
%T B 2 PR R RIESE LR ©
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(@) As at 31 December 2011,

the Group had borrowing

facilities amounting to RMB2,263,084,000 (2010:
RMB4,346,369,000), of which RMB1,250,075,000 (2010:
RMB1,791,869,000) had been utilised as at the end of
the reporting period. The unutilised borrowing facilities,
subject to certain conditions, was RMB1,013,209,000
(2010: RMB2,554,500,000) as at the end of the reporting

period.

Certain bank borrowings of the Group are secured by
mortgages over the Group’s buildings and prepaid land

lease payments, which had an aggregate carrying value
at the end of the reporting period of approximately
RMB604,916,000 (2010: RMB212,452,000) (note 15 and

note 16).

(c) Except for certain bank borrowings with an aggregate
amount of RMB160,000,000 (2010: RMB569,500,000)
which are denominated in RMB, the borrowings are
denominated in United States dollars, Japanese yen and

Hong Kong dollars.

Certain bank loans and credit facilities of the Group

and the Company are secured by the Company and the
holding companies controlled by the directors of the

Company.
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27. EEBIE
B A FARITRA SR IE L ER
R ES EEY BEEMAR SR
R — B B 2 15 S T+ B AT S B AT A
BREERBBETAEY-

27. DEFERRED TAX
Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate
to the same fiscal authority.

AEE b NG|
Group Company
“2--§% -T-TF C-B--§ C-T-IZF
2011 2010 2011 2010
ARBTRT AR%ETT AR®TR ARETR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
EETIRE E Deferred tax assets 9,057 7,936 1,704 =
RERIBEE Deferred tax liabilities (6,833) (22,885) - (6,616)
BELERBEE Deferred tax assets/(liabilities), net
(BE)FE 2,224 (14,949) 1,704 (6,616)
R B R R T Reflected in the statement of financial position as follows:
AEE b N
Group Company
“E--f -E-%f CB--f —Z-%F
2011 2010 2011 2010
ARETRr ARETT AR®TR ARETR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ERHEAE Deferred tax assets 2,224 = 1,704 -
ERTIEAE Deferred tax liabilities - (14,949) - (6,616)
EEHBEEE/ Deferred tax assets/(liabilities), net
(BR) 38 2,224 (14,949) 1,704 (6,616)
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27. IEEBLH () 27. DEFERRED TAX (continued)
EEFTISTARE < B EEMT The gross movements on the deferred tax accounts are as
follows:
AEE b NG|
Group Company
“E--% 2T BE--% C-T-%%
2011 2010 2011 2010

ARBTRE ARETT AR®TR ARETR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

=3 At beginning of year (14,949) 993 (6,616) 1,874
RAFEEEZEREA Deferred tax credited/(charged) to
(k) 2 BB the income statement during
(FF&E11) the year (note 11) 6,033 (6,414) 6,616 (8,490)
RAFEEERTA/ Deferred tax credited/(charged) to
(0B) 2 BERLIR equity during the year 11,140 (9,528) 1,704 =
FIR At end of year 2,224 (14,949) 1,704 (6,616)
BEEFHIHEEERBERFAZEE (K The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during
FFREEAR B RE RN 2 E8R) the year, without taking into consideration the offsetting of
NE balances within the same tax jurisdiction, are as follows:
(a) EEHEEE (a) Deferred tax assets
F5@
Group
TRAREH
A#&ER BenE
HEzER HE B HHER @t
Loss available
for offsetting
against future Cash flow
taxable profits  Impairment Provisions hedges Total

AR%TT  ARETT ARETT ARETR AR TR
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000

R=ZZ-Z%5—-Hf—H At 1 January 2010 1,874 1,329 4,531 - 7,734
WAFEBRER (NKB)/ Deferred tax (charged)/credited to the
FAZERERIE income statement during the year (1,874) (1,329) 3,405 = 202
RZZ-%F At 31 December 2010
+-A=t-8 - - 7,936 - 7,936
RAEEBRERMG ZELERE  Deferred tax charged to the income
statement during the year - - (583) - (583)
WAFE R AZBIERIE Deferred tax credited to the equity during
the year = = = 1,704 1,704
RZB-——% At 31 December 2011
+=A=t+-H - - 7,353 1,704 9,057
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27. IR IE (&)
(a) EEBEEE (£)

27. DEFERRED TAX (continued)

(@) Deferred tax assets (continued)

PN
Company

A AR 8
HE&ERB RERE

ME2EE HHER #st
Loss available
for offsetting
against future Cash flow
taxable profits hedges Total
ARETT ARETT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
R-ZT—FTF—H—H  At1January 2010 1,874 - 1,874
RAFEEZ KM 2  Deferred tax charged to
EETIR the income statement during
the year (1,874) - (1,874)
RZE—ZF Gross deferred tax assets at
+-A=+—Hz 31 December 2010
ELERMEEELE = = -
RAFE#ERTAZ Deferred tax credited to
EET I the equity during the year = 1,704 1,704
R-ZZB——F Gross deferred tax assets at
TZA=t—-HZ 31 December 2011
BERAEEARE - 1,704 1,704

RZFE——F+ZH=1+—H =K
SEFUNMMREREZHEHOARE
107,019,000t (ZE —FF : A
R ¥ :67,072,0007T) ° AN & B I
R M S AT =B RERE
EFHIBEEE  BRBT AR E
R 5 N R DA 4 S AT 40 A R A

B

PR B b 2 AR 3 AT AR R BE R
RZERBRAMBHBBESR

—E=RFEH

Annual Report 2011 4F ¥}

temporary differences can be utilised.

The Group has deductible temporary differences of
approximately RMB107,019,000 as at 31 December 2011
(2010: RMB67,072,000). Deferred tax assets have not
been recognised in respect of these deductible temporary
differences and it is not considered probable that taxable
profits will be available against which the deductible

The tax losses arising in Mainland China will expire in one
to five years for offsetting against future taxable profit.
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27. IEERIE (&)
(b) BEFEEME

27. DEFERRED TAX (continued)

(b) Deferred tax liabilities

rEE
Group
BeRE FH P EHE
HIEHE $TETIAR @t
Non-hedging
Cash flow currency
hedges derivatives Total
ARETT ARBTFT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
RZE—ZTF—A—H At 1 January 2010 6,741 - 6,741
RAFEEBZHERMB 2E Deferred tax charged to
EFIE the income statement during
the year - 6,616 6,616
RAFE#ERNRZ Deferred tax charged to
EETIR equity during the year 9,528 = 9,528
RZE—ZF At 31 December 2010
+=-A=+—H 16,269 6,616 22,885
RAFEBIERTAZE Deferred tax credited to
FERIIR the income statement during
the year - (6,616) (6,616)
RAREEERTAZIEL Deferred tax credited to
BiIE equity during the year (9,436) - (9,436)
R-ZE——F At 31 December 2011
+=ZH=+—H 6,833 - 6,833
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27. EEMIE (&) 27. DEFERRED TAX (continued)
(b) EZEHEBEEE (&) (b) Deferred tax liabilities (continued)

PN
Company
FEHERITETR
Non-hedging
currency derivatives
ARBTT
RMB’'000
RZZE—ZTF—H—H At 1 January 2010 -

MARFEEERAKRNB ZELEFE  Deferred tax charged to the income
statement during the year 6,616

R-ZZFE—ZFF+-_A=+—HZ Gross deferred tax liabilities at

EIETIE B EATE 31 December 2010 6,616

RAFERZERING ZIELFE Deferred tax credited to the income
statement during the year (6,616)

R-ZZE——F+-_A=+—H2Z Gross deferred tax liabilities at

EERIARARR

31 December 2011 -

BEABCEMESHE RZTT
NE—A—B R EAK
ZHEINEECEME R 2K EA
B 0% TE 0B o fis = B 828 S &
BEMBRIZHERBRBE L A
AEARE AR E - AEE
= @A E A% o Fi 15 1% B8
RZZEZENF A=+ =—HH%EM
Z M B(2008)F 15 FIBHE — T F
+tE+ A=+ —HIEMRDE
FE =k & &Lz EE
MR AMMIET -

Annual Report 2011 4F ¥}

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to from
the foreign investment enterprises established in Mainland
China effective from 1 January 2008. A lower withholding
tax rate may be applied if there is a tax arrangement
between the PRC and the jurisdiction of the foreign
investors. For the Group, the applicable rate is 5%. On 22
February 2008, Caishui (2008) No. 1 was promulgated by
the tax authorities to specify that dividends declared and
remitted out of the PRC from the retained earnings as at
31 December 2007 are exempted from the withholding
tax.
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27.

28.

IE E B IE (1) 27. DEFERRED TAX (continued)
R-_E——F+_A=+—8 #EHR At 31 December 2011, no deferred tax has been recognised
7R 5 B 50 AR B K B ik 2 2 B B R B B for withholding taxes that would be payable on the unremitted
RIEMB 2 RE L RF) 2 B TEOR earnings that are subject to withholding taxes of the Group’s
MEREERB-EERE % EH B subsidiaries established in Mainland China. In the opinion
RNARA R R DK% SR F 2 Al a1k of the directors, it is not probable that these subsidiaries
ITR-RZE——F+=ZA=+—8" will distribute such earnings in the foreseeable future. The
B AR B K B BT BB R B 2 AR R RRIR JE 7 IE aggregate amount of temporary differences associated with
BECRECVEREZBBHNAARE investments in subsidiaries in Mainland China for which
4,191,924,000C (ZZE—ZTF: ARK deferred tax liabilities have not been recognised totaled
2,797,488,0007% ) ° approximately RMB4,191,924,000 at 31 December 2011
(2010: RMB2,797,488,000).
AARMERRZ TR B EMEHE There are no income tax consequences attaching to the
R payment of dividends by the Company to its shareholders.
iR A< 28. SHARE CAPITAL
—B--F —T-ZF
R Shares 2011 2010
TErT AR®Tx THLT ARBT:T
HK$’000 RMB’000 HK$’000 RMB’000
EIE Authorised:
3,000,000,000 F& 3,000,000,000 (2010:
(ZE—-ZF; 3,000,000,000) ordinary
3,000,000,0008% ) & F& A shares of HK$0.10 each
{H0.10/8 L 2 & B 300,000 312,000 300,000 312,000
BETRAR: Issued and fully paid:
1,245,000,0008% 1,245,000,000 (2010:
(ZE-ZF; 1,245,000,000) ordinary
1,245,000,0008% ) & A shares of HK$0.10 each
{H0.10B L2 & B 124,500 129,717 124,500 129,717
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29. & &

(a)

FEE

AEBRBMEEBEFEZHE
CHRLEEHE 2INPHRE
FICAGAERE K-

() ZEBSABE ([ZZTEE
REZ])
RIE A B A BA K& A B R BE
MEARzHEGSERZME
EHERENERRARKE
RBPBEAREFTRANEE 2
BrAi 18 T E10% 8 A=A E
BHAES BEEE@AE
©3E P B RREM B A R
it B A 250% % LE © & 99 &
TE B AR S 7] ARG A4
RBRA - EERE ZEREE
PMELOREMAR AR 225% °

(i) EZKEERE
PEE 34,8 B {5 A 1 T 8% R 42
HEBINB AR 2T BHREK
EECZELEZ®R-
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29. RESERVES
(@) Group

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements

therein for the current and prior years are presented in the

consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 75

of the financial statements.

(i)  Statutory surplus reserve (“SSR”)

In accordance with the Company Law of the PRC

and the articles of association of the Mainland China

Subsidiaries, the Mainland China Subsidiaries are

each required to allocate 10% of their profit after

tax, as determined in accordance with the PRC

generally accepted accounting principles, to the
SSR until the reserve reaches 50% of the registered

capital of the Mainland China Subsidiaries. Part

of the SSR may be converted to increase paid-

up capital, provided that the remaining balance

after the capitalisation is not less than 25% of the

registered capital.

(i) Exchange fluctuation reserve

The exchange fluctuation reserve is used to record

exchange differences arising from the translation of

the financial statements of foreign subsidiaries.
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29. s (#) 29. RESERVES (continuea)
(b) ZAAF (b) Company
ESikE 34
Bt RORER  REBE  HWEE fE  REBYN  RERR @it
Share Exchange Proposed
premium Capital Hedging  fluctuation Retained final
Note account surplus reserve reserve profits dividend Total

ARETE ARETL ARETL ARETT ARETT ARETL ARETZ
RMBO00  RMBO00  RMBO00  RMBO00  RMBOO0  RMBOOD  RMBOOD

RZZ-345-f-A At 1 January 2010 762,499 727,430 - (8904 207,29 383,678 1,801,999
FERANALE Total comprehensive income

for the year - = = (61,184) 454,773 = 393,589
“ITNFERAERS Final 2009 dividend declared - - - - - (383678) (383,67
“E-TERRRBRE Proposed final 2010 dividend 13 - = = - (381,373) 381,373 =
R-B-2£+-A=+-R At 31 December 2010 762,499 727,430 - (340,088) 280,69 381373 1,811,910
EFRAMALE Total comprehensive income

for the year - = (8.622) (76,593) 236,699 = 151,484
“3-SESRAERE Final 2010 dividend declared - = = - - (381373 (381,373
ZE—ERRERBRE Proposed final 2011 dividend 13 - - - - (504,661) 504,661 -
REB--5+ZA=t-A At 31 December 2011 762,499 727,430 (8622 (416,681) 12,734 504,661 1,582,021
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30. ZEHEsZ2EMIT A 30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

REmESHR S e T A ZREE The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial
(e instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:
EWMEE Financial assets
rEE
Group
—E——fF —E-FF
2011 2010
BERR BER Kk
FE W SR 1E JE YR IE
Loans and Loans and
receivables receivables
AR TR ARET T
RMB’000 RMB’000
mE2mIT A Derivative financial instruments 27,331 107,884
H th & U R IA Other receivables 54,815 31,074
FE U BR 7R & ZE AR Trade and bills receivables 1,313,646 897,211
M FxEBAa=FEA 2 Bank deposits with initial term of
RITER over three months 290,125 125,026
HENREZEY Cash and cash equivalents 1,029,596 519,017
LRBE Financial liabilities
F5H
Group
E--f ZT-Tf
2011 2010
RRHRE RBHIR
BIFEEZ tEZ BIFEEZ HEZ
SHaR SRER @ SRAE ERMAE b
Financial Financial Financial Financial
liabilities liabilities at liabilities liabilities at
held for ~ amortised held for amortised
trading cost Total trading cost Total
ARETn ARETrn AR%Tn ARETr ARETR ARETR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ERERREE Trade and bills payables - 490,838 490,838 - 486,856 486,856
e A LTHE Amounts due to related parties - 1,631 1,631 - 2,257 2,257
SRRIREMEE Interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings - 1,244,259 1,244,259 - 1,429,619 1,429,619
HitERFIE Other payables - 133,195 133,195 - 146,016 146,016
fTESBTE Derivative financial instruments 16,656 - 16,656 - - -
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30. RERNE S Z2EMIE (&) 30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

(continued)
SREE Financial assets
AT
Company
—E——-F —T-TF
2011 2010
BERR BERR
FE W R 1B FE W kI8
Loans Loans
and and
receivables receivables
ARBT R ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
PTHEeBMIT A Derivative financial instruments - 40,095
H {th i W3R8 Other receivables 843,888 749,670
JE 5 Bt /BB X B R IE Amounts due from subsidiaries 61,459 =
BTHBEBRARIZER Loans to subsidiaries 633,867 =
JE U5 BR R Trade receivables 435,862 299,149
ReRAEEZEED Cash and cash equivalents 92,593 99,113
=R Financial liabilities
b
Company
—g--F —3-%f%
2011 2010
REHERE RBHEHA
BiFEEZ dEZ BIFEEZ e
LRERE SRER @zt eRER ERER it
Financial Financial Financial Financial
liabilities liabilities at liabilities liabilities at
held for amortised held for amortised
trading cost Total trading cost Total

ARBTRE AREBTR ARETR ARETT ARETR ARETX
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'OOO  RMB'000  RMB'00D

ERHERRZE Amounts due to subsidiaries - 801,575 801,575 = 421,961 421,961
e B3R Trade payables - 24,500 24,500 - 23,394 23,394
fTE4RIE Derivative financial instruments 16,656 - 16,656 - - -
SEBTRAMEE Interest-bearing bank and

other borrowings - 720,452 720,452 - 371,801 371,801
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1. 2 A ERAREER 31. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY
AEEERARAzeBMTAREAERA The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s and the
AET Company’s financial instruments are as follows:

REE Group
REE ARE
Carrying amounts Fair values
—E--f —Z-%F CZB--§ C—T-%F
2011 2010 2011 2010
ARETT ARETT AR¥TR AR®Trn
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
SHREE Financial assets
TESRmIA Derivative financial instruments 27,331 107,884 27,331 107,884
H b JE W 5E Other receivables 54,815 31,074 54,815 31,074
E S Trade and bills receivables 1,313,646 897,211 1,313,646 897,211
MisGErHn="A2 Bank deposits with initial term of
RITER over three months 290,125 125,026 290,125 125,026
ReRBEEED Cash and cash equivalents 1,029,596 519,017 1,029,596 519,017
SRAE Financial liabilities
ERERKIEE Trade and bills payables 490,838 486,856 490,838 486,856
TESRmIE Derivative financial instruments 16,656 - 16,656 -
JETEAHE A T500E Amounts due to related parties 1,631 2,257 1,631 2,257
TERAREMEE Interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings 1,244,259 1,429,619 1,243,463 1,425,969
H b e 508 Other payables 133,195 146,016 133,195 146,016
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1. RRERAIAREER (&) 31. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY
(continued)
AT Company
REE ARE
Carrying amounts Fair values
—E--f —E-FF —E——-F —T-TF
2011 2010 2011 2010
ARETR ARET T ARET T AR®ET T
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
SREE Financial assets
ESMTA Derivative financial instruments - 40,095 - 40,095
H i W B Other receivables 843,888 749,670 843,888 749,670
NGRS Amounts due from subsidiaries 61,459 = 61,459 =
BYINBLRRIZER Loans to subsidiaries 633,867 = 633,867 =
JE U BR X Trade receivables 435,862 299,149 435,862 299,149
RekHeEEY Cash and cash equivalents 92,593 99,113 92,593 99,113
tRAE Financial liabilities
BB A AR Amounts due to subsidiaries 801,575 421,961 801,575 421,961
ERERERRE Trade and bills payables 24,500 23,394 24,500 23,394
TEEMIA Derivative financial instruments 16,656 - 16,656 -
TERAREMEE Interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings 720,452 371,801 719,706 371,602

ERMEEMNBBZAREBENZIARE
R 57 (MIFRAIFRIFE)EA
RBTHARZEBALR NTAR
SRR EEARE:

TEHRBESRRSFEY EERTF
R BUERRRERE  BUERIEER
AN FRIE - BE R EAMERFIR
EREE SHAHMENREBEZERE
E EEENHBRARRRZARE

FTAREHAZE HEEKREEM

o
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The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included
at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged
in a current transaction between willing parties, other than
in a forced or liquidation sale. The following methods and
assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

The fair values of cash and cash equivalents, pledged
deposits, trade and bills receivables, trade and bills payables,
financial assets included in prepayments, deposits and other
receivables, financial liabilities included in other payables and
amounts due from/to subsidiaries approximate to their carrying
amounts largely due to the short term maturities of these
instruments.
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—=

31.

NRERAAREBERE®R &)

AARRITREMERE 2 ARENERA
BEROGR EERREAKTIHAZ
T AR AT RIS 2 Bl R BE R FEHIR SRR
EREMTE -

AEEEZEH I LITEER T A
TEER TR (BREHERSH) IR
REEME EBRU 2 BERMEE (K
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31. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY

(continued)

The fair values of the interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings have been calculated by discounting the expected
future cash flows using rates currently available for instruments
on similar terms, credit risk and remaining maturities.

The Group enters into derivative financial instruments with
various counterparties. Derivative financial instruments,
including forward currency contracts are measured using
valuation techniques similar to forward pricing, using present
value calculations. The models incorporate various market
observable inputs including the credit quality of counterparties,
foreign exchange spot and forward rates. The carrying amounts
of forward currency contracts are the same as their fair values.

As at 31 December 2011, the marked to market value of the
derivative asset position is net of a credit valuation adjustment
attributable to derivative counterparty default risk. The changes
in counterparty credit risk had no material effect on the hedge
effectiveness assessment for derivatives designated in hedge
relationship and other financial instruments recognised at fair
value.

M BIBR & B AR A BR A A 169

Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited



BA TSR AR AL

Notes to Financial Statement

—T——%F+=-H=+—H 31 December 2011

31.
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31.

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY
(continued)

Fair value hierarchy

The Group uses the following hierarchy for determining and
disclosing the fair values of financial instruments:

Level 1: fair values measured based on quoted prices
(unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities

Level 2: fair values measured based on valuation technigues
for which all inputs which have a significant effect on
the recorded fair value are observable, either directly
or indirectly

Level 3: fair values measured based on valuation techniques
for which any inputs which have a significant
effect on the recorded fair value are not based on
observable market data (unobservable inputs)

Assets measured at fair value:

Group

As at 31 December 2011

£—1& ot 14 F=8& o
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

ARBTR ARMTR AR®TR AR®Tx
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

TEERIA

Derivative financial instruments 27,331 - - 27,331

R-F—

TE+_-_RA=1+—H

As at 31 December 2010

£ E& E=R @t
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
ARETT ARETE ARETT ARETR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

TEERIA

Derivative financial instruments 107,884 - - 107,884
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31. D RERLAAREEBR (&) 31.

R=-FE——F+=-H=+—H

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY

(continued)
Fair value hierarchy (continued)
Assets measured at fair value: (continued)

Company

As at 31 December 2011

£—1& ot 14 F=8& @
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
ARETR ARETR ARET T ARET T
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
TEEBMIA Derivative financial instruments - = = =
RZE—ZFF+_A=+—H As at 31 December 2010
F—R E_H E=R B
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
AREFT AREFT ARET T ARET T
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
THESRMIA Derivative financial instruments 40,095 - - 40,095
URABETEZEE Liabilities measured at fair value:
NEE Group
R=-ZE——%+=-H=+—H As at 31 December 2011
F— B E=R @t
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
ARET R AR®ET R AR®ET R ARET T
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
TESRMIE Derivative financial instruments 16,656 - - 16,656
¥ NN Company
R=-ZFE——F+=-H=+—H As at 31 December 2011
£-1& -t 14 F=8 @
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
ARETR ARETR ARETR ARET T
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
TESRIA Derivative financial instruments 16,656 = = 16,656
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31.

32.

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY
(continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

The Group and the Company did not have any financial
liabilities measured at fair value as at 31 December 2010.

During the year ended 31 December 2011, there were no
transfers of fair value measurements between Level 1 and Level

2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments, other than
derivatives, comprise bank loans and cash and short-term time
deposits. The main purpose of these financial instruments is to
raise finance for the Group’s operations. The Group has various
other financial assets and liabilities such as trade receivables
and trade payables, which arise directly from its operations.
The Group also enters into derivative transactions, including
principally forward currency contracts. The purpose is to
manage the currency risks arising from the Group’s operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments
are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and
liquidity risk. The board of directors reviews and agrees policies
for managing each of these risks and they are summarised
below. The Group’s accounting policies in relation to
derivatives are set out in note 2.4 to the financial statements.
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HEEEEEEERKE 32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(#&) OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continuead)
F 2 7 Interest rate risk

AEERMEHMISHNEEPRKEENR
AEEFERBEFRT (BRAER
ERBFTEXEER—FRIFERE
RITEE)ER-

TRINTNBEHRR EMEEMER
NEZERT  ANEBEER A B R A

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest
rates relates primarily to the Group’s long term debt obligations
(including the bank borrowings due to repayment after one year
which contain a repayment on demand clause) with a floating
interest rate.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of
the reporting period to a reasonably possible change in interest

SEHERHMNESEAED 2 FURE rates, with all other variables held constant, of the Group's
pak il profit before tax and the Group’s equity.
rEE
Group
BR B AT
@/ FEEm EHEEMS
THEE (A 2) (R2)
Increase/

Increase/ (decrease) Increase/
decrease in in profit (decrease)
basis points before tax in equity

ARBTT ARETTT
RMB’000 RMB’000

—B——-F 2011

AFIE £ If interest rate increases +50 (2,205) (2,205)
AF E T If interest rate decreases -50 2,205 2,205
—T-FF 2010

IFI == F 3 If interest rate increases +50 (399) (399)
AR E TR 3 If interest rate decreases -50 399 399
HhEE 3 B Foreign currency risk

REBEMERZ 5 E B R 7% 5 = k2K The Group has transactional currency exposures. These
BEE AEEBHN7I9% (ZZE—FF: exposures arise from sales. Approximately 79% (2010: 79%) of

79% ) $HE A SNE EHE - M IE LA 1T 88
EZREBEMNAREHE AEEER
TEREBEMNERERERSL B
FRIEHI BRI E M H 2 JME R

BAEEZBER  AiRE AR 2 HIHE
BEEEHRTETAZFH UESRAK
$m B
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the Group’s sales were denominated in foreign currencies other
than RMB of the operating units making the sale. The Group
requires the major operating unit to use forward currency
contracts to eliminate the foreign currency exposures on the
forecast future sales.

It is the Group’s policy to negotiate the terms of the hedge
derivatives to match the terms of the hedged item to maximise
the hedge effectiveness.

FMBEREEZERAERAR
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32. EBEEEERBEE 32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(%)

M EE LB ()
RZEBE-——F+ZA=+—H F5HE
¥ A (B {E875,000,000%( T (=T —F
% :620,000,000( L) 2 EHEHKA
#-EEREEHARABEBITFHEE
ZE A

Pboh - REE IR L T D ES R 2 B
BRARBEGTABRZINES L - ZEI
BENRAREBHETERZ AERE
HE RAAETEERIGHEAELE
BERARZEFMEAE - R_T——
F+ZA=+—H AEEFBEARFER
HNEE A #9210,000,000% L (—E—F
£ : 685,000,000 7T ) * B H /v F11
EAZ16EA (ZE—ZF 1@ A =24
®A) -

TRIIRARE M - EFTE R 2 B
B2 ERT A% B BB
SRS B A LS B REE SN
(RREREERA G2 AR BRI
B) -

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continuead)

Foreign currency risk (continued)

At 31 December 2011, the Group held forward currency
contracts of US$875,000,000 (2010: US$620,000,000)
designated as hedges in respect of forecast future sales to
overseas customers.

In addition, the Group also enters into other foreign currency
contracts which are not designated for hedge purpose and
measured at fair value through profit or loss. These foreign
currency contracts are settled based on the extent of the
appreciation of the RMB against the US$ exchange rates as
management forecasts that the rate of such appreciation will
be lower than that forecasted by the counterparty. As at 31
December 2011, the Group held outstanding foreign currency
contracts of US$210,000,000 (2010: US$685,000,000) with
periods ranging from 11 months to 16 months (2010: from 1
month to 24 month).

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of
the reporting period to a reasonably possible change in foreign
currency exchange rates, with all other variables held constant,
of the Group’s profit before tax (due to changes in the fair value
of monetary assets and liabilities).

SPUSEE = HRRBL AT
EH T FMEzeeg
Increase/
decrease in Effect
foreign on profit
currency rate before tax
% ARET T
% RMB’000
—EB——-F 2011
fig A R H T HE If RMB strengthens against US$ +5 (115,266)
W AR HETHE If RMB weakens against US$ -5 115,266
—T-FF 2010
i AR LA If RMB strengthens against US$ +5 (266,138)
MAREHETRE If RMB weakens against US$ -5 266,138
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32. EBEEEERBEE 32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(%)

EERRE
AEBERNAREBRFZF=TE
TRB-BAKEZBR  FiAREE
EMETRGZER LEAKBEERZ
BEiEF I AEEFEERBUWHK
Higsy BASEERS ZERRRL A
EXR-HRWIFARBEEEM 2T
EEFEZRS BIFREEZHRE
BERRME BAAEETGRTEER
Ho

ERASEEMEREE (BRATR
ReEFEY  HMRUEGIENRETIT
ATR)EEZEERR KEXSHT
BRRE FAZESEBRESENZS
THZERHEE-

HRAEERENGAEERTFZE=
FEORS ARBEERR-FES
HEBRER/ XZHFEE -NRE
HR AEEREETEESFTREK
AREEHII% (ZZE—FF:183% ) &
88% (ZZT—ZF :85% ) FEUWER 5K 5 5l
RERAEBEZREAZFRAARS °H
RAEBZETERFHAERHRES
mEz R A BEREEY RAXKH
R AL AEEAZEERETEE
SRR

FRASERERBREER Z2EERR
#E—FE(BIE  RPEHRRME20H

==
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OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continuead)

Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
third parties. It is the Group’s policy that all customers who
wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification
procedures. In addition, receivable balances are monitored on
an ongoing basis and the Group’s exposure to bad debts is
not significant. For transactions that are not denominated in
the functional currency of the relevant operating unit, the Group
does not offer credit terms without the specific approval of the
Head of Credit Control.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets, which
comprise cash and cash equivalents, other receivables and
certain derivative instruments, arises from default of the
counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying
amounts of these instruments.

Since the Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
third parties, there is no requirement for collateral.
Concentrations of credit risk are managed by customer/
counterparty. At the end of the reporting period, the Group
had certain concentrations of credit risk as 19% (2010: 13%)
and 88% (2010: 85%) of the Group’s trade receivables were
due from the Group’s largest customer and the five largest
customers, respectively. As the major customers of the Group
are all companies with world-famous brands, and a long-term
business relationship has been established by both parties,
certain concentrations of credit risk are well managed by the
Group.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure to
credit risk arising from trade receivables are disclosed in note
20 to the financial statements.
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32. EKREEBERBXK

(%)
REBES R

AEEERARBRRRBDES S TAER
EecRRER R IAZEESRT
AR @MEE (PIMEKKRNR) 25
BARREXBZAFRERE

32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continuead)
Liquidity risk
The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using a
recurring liquidity planning tool. This tool considers the maturity
of both its financial instruments and financial assets (e.g., trade
receivables) and projected cash flows from operations.

R E R - 1R E T 4 &AL IR AT 3RGET The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at
EAKEeRmARBZYBHABRNA the end of the reporting period, based on the contractual
™ undiscounted payments, was as follows:
+5H
Group
E--F
2011
~MERE
REX  SRAEA SWT=MEA -EmME MERL st
6to
Less than less than 1to2 Over
On demand 6 months 12 months years 2 years Total
ARBTR AR®TR ARETT ARETR AR%TR AR%T:x
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
SERTRAMES Interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings - 740,187 63,009 201,629 239,434 1,244,259
R ES Trade and bills payables - 473,916 6,792 5,378 4,752 490,838
Hi e 7B Other payables 133,195 - - - - 133,195
ERBEATHE Amounts due to related parties - 1,631 - - - 1,631
fTESRIE Derivative financial Instruments - (4,674) 4,634 16,696 - 16,656
133,195 1,211,060 74,435 223,703 244,186 1,886,579
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32. BEMREEERERBX 32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(#&) OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continuead)
REBESER (#2) Liquidity risk (continued)
r5E
Group
%%
2010
~NERE
RERX  SRAEA SRTZfER —ERE RE N £ &5t
6to
Less than less than 1t02 Over
On demand 6 months 12 months years 2 years Total

ARETL  ARBTR ARETL ARETE ARETR ARETR
RMB'OO0O ~ RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'00D

SERTRAMES Interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings = 446,812 903,075 10,232 69,500 1,429,619
ENERRZE Trade and bills payables 385,989 91,208 6,027 3,637 - 486,856
Hit eI 5E Other payables 146,016 - - - - 146,016
JEfT B A T30 Amounts due to related parties - 2,257 - - - 2,257
532,005 540,272 909,102 13,869 69,500 2,064,748
b
Company
“E-—-§
2011
~MERE
REX  SRAER SWT=MEA -ERME MEAL b
6 to
Less than less than 1to2 Over
On demand 6 months 12 months years 2 years Total
ARETR AR%TR AR%Tn ARETR AR¥Tn ARET:x
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
STRRIREMEE Interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings - 720,452 - - - 720,452
LT ES Trade and bills payables - 24,500 - - - 24,500
BB AR5 Amounts due to subsidiaries - 801,575 - - - 801,575
fTEeBIE Derivative financial Instruments - (4,674) 4,634 16,696 - 16,656

- 1,541,853 4,634 16,696

1,563,183
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32. HEREEREREE

32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(#&) OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continuead)
NG
Company
3%
2010
~ERZE
RER  SRAEA SRTZER —EREF MER L &t
610
Less than less than 1t02 Over
On demand 6 months 12 months years 2 years Total
ARETT ARETr ARETr ARETn ARETz ARET:
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’'000 RMB’000
SERAREMEE Interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings - 371,801 - - - 371,801
T ES Trade and bills payables - 23,394 - - - 23,394
ERMEARRE Amounts due to subsidiaries - 421,961 - - - 421,961
- 817,156 - - - 817,156
BERERE Capital management

AEEEARNEEZTZARAERGERN
SEBBREZRNRERRIFEARL
T AXFHEEB R ABRRFREAE
B-

AEERBEERAEHERRAER
BEARARE REFIABELREE K
EETREFAERREIRMS 2R S - MK
RREEARBITHR - BE_T——
F+ZA=+—HEZZE—ZTF+=
A=+—RHIEFE BREEEANE
Z BMRREFLEES-
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The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are
to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its
business and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions.
To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital
to shareholders or issue new shares. No changes were made
in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital
during the years ended 31 December 2011 and 31 December
2010.
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2. EEAMEEEERBEK 32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(#&) OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
EXRER (57) Capital management (continued)
REBRBEAAGBL X (BERFE The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is
BRERNBRENMER TR ) BEEER o B net debt divided by the total capital plus net debt. Net debt
FREBEERITREMEE  FBRE includes interest-bearing bank and other borrowings, advances
FKENERREE HEMEMRER from customers, trade and bills payables, other payables and
FEETSRIA LA K FE T B 38 A £ 5038 - 3R accruals, amounts due to related parties, less cash and cash
e RBEEEY EXBRENARHSE equivalents. Capital includes equity attributable to the owners
ANFE(GRE RS - R RS - RIS HIR of the parent less the hedging reserve. The gearing ratios as at
BERBFELERMT : the ends of the reporting periods were as follows:
rEH
Group
=E——F —E-FF
2011 2010
AR®BT ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
SFRBTREMEES Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings 1,244,259 1,429,619
ER R R EE Trade and bills payables 490,838 486,856
T8 UK AR 3k Advances from customers 30,681 53,060
Hith fEF ZIB K JE5HFIE  Other payables and accruals 406,440 376,638
FEAS A HSE A 3K T8 Amounts due to related parties 1,631 2,257
BoRERIAESEEBY Less: Cash and cash equivalents (1,029,596) (519,017)
B %R Net debt 1,144,253 1,829,413
AR AE(LEE Equity attributable to owners of the parent 6,078,229 4,799,532
R G Hedging reserve (11,874) (51,518)
LB E AN B Total adjusted capital 6,066,355 4,748,014
BRREBFH Capital and net debt 7,210,608 6,577,427
BEARBELE Gearing ratio 16% 28%
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33. &iE 33. COMMITMENTS
(a) REFERIE (a) Operating lease commitments
AEBIRBE NI RBECERELH The Group leases certain of its office premises and plant
HEEETHAEZMEREE ° under non-cancellable operating lease arrangements.
RNZE——F+-_A=+—H 'K At 31 December 2011, the Group had total future
SEREBETIRELEHEREN aggregate minimum lease payments under non-
IARKEHESHBBEOAT cancellable operating leases as follows:
rEH
Group
=E——F —E-FF
2011 2010
AR T ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
—FR Within one year 22,653 14,945
EFE_EFERF In the second to fifth years,
(RREERMF) inclusive 57,706 41,143
hF1E& After five years 18,247 23,565
98,606 79,653
(b) EXREE (b) Capital commitments
rEE
Group
—E——F —E-TF
2011 2010
AR TR ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
SHESER ST Contracted, but not provided for:
BETEN LA E BN Acquisition of prepaid land lease
P& IEN & payments and property, plant and
equipment 51,560 31,898
FEY - RE R Construction of property, plant and
equipment 40,365 48,687
91,925 80,585
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33. A (#)

(c) RXFREHIESH
RZE——&H+=-A=+—8"
REBIFERTERBINES
wo AR MEARAEIEAR (=ZF
—EF1AAE4@AA)HE
875,000,000& T (ZE —FF:
620,000,0003 JT ) LA EL 49 A
R #5,546,791,0000 (= F — &
F ) AR®4,148,951,0007T ) °

34. RREE
AR 45 HA K - % £ B 5k 2K 2 B 4 (14
BEARRAE-

35. ABEA LR Z
(a) AEBMIEEBASZHMK

33.

34.

35.

COMMITMENTS

(c) Outstanding forward foreign exchange contracts
As at 31 December 2011, the Group had
commitments in respect of outstanding forward foreign
exchange contracts to sell US$875,000,000 (2010:
US$620,000,000) for approximately RMB5,546,791,000
(2010: approximately RMB4,148,951,000) within periods
ranging from 11 months to 16 months (2010: from 1
month to 24 months).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
At the end of the reporting period, neither the Group nor the
Company had any significant contingent liabilities.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(@) Compensation of key management personnel of the

Group

KEE

Group
—E——fF —E—ZF
2011 2010
ARE T AREEFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000

EENEREBEAEME Remuneration of directors and

senior management 9,936 8,622

EREEFecE—THBER
A 7% R P 58
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Further details of the directors’ emoluments are included
in note 8 to the financial statements.
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35. AR B (2)
HEBALTSRS

(b)

o7

SRAMBRRAEFLZZHI
AEERFAR BB ALET
TIERRS:

35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b)

Transactions with related parties

Continuing

In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in these
financial statements, the Group had the following material
transactions with related parties during the year:

Group
—F——F —T-FF
2011 2010
AR®B T ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
MEFENEEERARF  Lease of property, plant and
(TEEMEZ])* equipment from Ningbo
HEWE BE &EHE Shenzhou Properties Co., Ltd.
(“Shenzhou Properties”) * 7,262 7,262
RKEEKARRRASE Purchase of steam supply from
BRA7A Ningbo Mingyao Environmental
([AABEAHRA]]) > Thermal Power Co., Ltd.
g 227 (“Mingyao Electric Company”) ** - 38,625

R RN B A AR QA
(TERM ) Btz hn

Processing services provided by
Ningbo Shenzhou Shitong Knitwear

THR7 Co., Ltd. (“Shenzhou Shitong”) * 10,830 -
B BN KB & A Processing services provided by

BRAF] Ningbo Shenzhou Dagang Knitwear

(TERM R Co., Ltd. (“Shenzhou Dagang”) * - 9,181
7] 43 B PR 2 7 B 2 ) Purchase of packing materials from

BRAA Shaoxing County Huaxi Packaging

(TEwRBERAF]) > Materials Company Limited

R BRYE (“Huaxi Packaging Company”) *** 36,046 29,741

*k

* kK

RIME S RINRE KRN ER
HARR —BRITESES -

RIRE N R B HAARRE — BT

EERERAB%NEE -

ERBERARBAARRAEP—
RATEREZEBES -
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Shenzhou Properties, Shenzhou Dagang and Shenzhou
Shitong are controlled by one of the Company’s executive
directors.

> Mingyao Electric Company is 48%owned by one of the
Company’s executive directors.

Huaxi Packaging Company is controlled by the relatives of
one of the Company’s executive directors.
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Notes to Financial Statement

—T——%F+=-H=+—H 31 December 2011

35. BEBEAERRF (&)

35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b) HEHEBALTZXRZ (£) (b) Transactions with related parties (continued)
FE () Continuing (continued)
M A AL 2 RERBETIRE The purchases and lease from the related parties were
EHEARREFZERPREHZA made according to the published prices and conditions

FEMS R IRFETT

(c) EERAHEA L Zi&ER

offered by the related companies to their major
customers.

(c) Outstanding balances with related parties

AREBHEBRATEUTER The Group had the following significant balances with its
R related parties:
rEH
Group
—E——F —E-FF
2011 2010
AR T ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
FE S BB Bk A = FIR Amounts due to related parties
—HEZ5H#: — Trade related:
ERBRMBAF Huaxi Packaging Company 1,631 2,257
1,631 2,257

36. #L/EM B HmK

ExenN _T——F=A—

IR AE T E R K -
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36. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS
TN BHtE The financial statements were approved and authorised for
issue by the board of directors on 26 March 2012.
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Financial Information Summary

(RABERN MESBERARKETT)

AEERBEAMBHREMBEERFRAER
EFBFEZEAGEEAREE BER
DR EREEEIMT

(Amounts expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise stated)

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities and
minority interests of the Group for the last five financial years,

prepared on the basis as set out herein, is set out below:

BE+t-A=+-BLEE /R+t=A=+-H

For the year ended 31 December/As at 31 December

—E—-—§ —T-TF ZTTHhF ZTENF CZITZTLHF
2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
ARETR ARETT ARBTT ARETT ARETR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
E Results
WA Revenue 9,043,442 6,719,172 6,093,485 4,822,596 3,655,613
BB KA Finance costs (51,243) (35,837) (25,393) (51,417) (34,279)
B BT 1S5 B0 B Profit before income tax 2,059,420 1,624,597 1,473,553 757,420 401,736
FTEHHEX Income tax expense (354,573) (351,952) (220,439) 56,968 6,352
FEFHE Profit for the year 1,704,847 1,272,645 1,253,114 700,452 408,088
AR AT s Attributable to:
SRARRERE A Equity holders of
the parent 1,703,845 1,271,654 1,252,030 699,380 406,882
FE4 B M 5 Non-controlling Interests 1,002 991 1,084 1,072 1,206
1,704,847 1,272,645 1,253,114 700,452 408,088
BE -B8ER Assets, Liabilities and
DERRER Minority Interests
BEE Total assets 8,549,559 7,425,455 5,427,229 4,321 251 3,903,920
BaE Total liabilities (2,437,331) (2,612,184) (1,531,533) (1,448,278) (1,423,288)
FEPE I A Non-controlling Interests (33,999) (18,739) (13,201) (12,586) (11,514)
6,078,229 4,799,532 3,882,495 2,860,387 2,469,118
ax: AEBEBEE-"FT-—ZFTFER-_F——F+- Note: The consolidated results of the Group for each of the two years

A=+ BUMEEESFEZRAEE "
UMER-_E—ZEFER-_FT——F+_ 8
=t+—HZEHREEE BBENEEHMHER
TR SRR ET1IEEF183H ©
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ended 31 December 2010 and 2011 and the consolidated assets,
liabilities and non-controlling interests of the Group as at 31
December 2010 and 2011 are those set out on pages 71 to 183 of

the financial statements.
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SHENZHOU INTERNATIONAL
GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
MBI R E R B RA A

Headquarter #5B

18 Yongjiang Road
Ningbo Economic and Technical
Development Zone
Ningbo, Zhejiang Province, PRC

BT & 2K
BN B M % &
FOLER 1855

Tel B5E: (86) 574 8698 0102
Fax {8E: (86) 574 8698 0162

Hong Kong Representative Office

FENER

Unit 2708, 27th Floor
Billion Plaza

8 Cheung Yue Street
Kowloon, Hong Kong

BEBNERWBESE
B EIS 27182708

Tel B: (852) 2310 4919
Fax 8E: (852) 2310 4929

Shanghai Representative Office

L BNEE

26th Floor You Yi Time Building
159 Zhao Jia Bang Road

Xu Hui District

Shanghai, PRC

HE EBIRER

BB 1599%

LR ERRRE261E

Tel BEE: (86) 21 6403 1166
Fax {8E: (86) 21 5496 0947
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